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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

MOTO, INC. (Swansea), 

Petitioner, 

v. 

ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION AGENCY, 

Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

PCB 17-044 
(UST Appeal) 

CERTIFICATE OF RECORD ON APPEAL 

Pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1 05.116(b) and 105.410, the following constitutes an index 

of documents comprising the record: 

PAGES 
001-066 

067-207 

208-222 

223-225 

226-229 

230 

231-237 

DOCUMENT 
CWM e-mails with Illinois EPA and attachments 

CWM Corrective Action Plan and Budget 

Illinois EPA Leaking UST Technical Review Notes 

CWM e-mails with Illinois EPA and attachments 

Illinois EPA CAP 

Illinois EPA Environmental Justice Area Reporting Fonn 

Illinois EPA decision letter 

DATE 
07/05/2016 

I 0111 /2016 

11118/2016 

12/08/2016 

12/09/2016 

12/14/2016 

12/20/2016 

I, SHIRLENE SOUTH, certify on infonnation and belief that the entire record of the 

Respondent's decision, as defined in 35 Ill. Adm. Code 105.410(b), is hereby enclosed. 

BY: Sh~ 
Project Manager/Environmental Protection Specialist III 
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Section 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Shirlene, 

cwm @cwmcompany.com 
Tues;day, July 05, 2016 12:49 PM 
South, Shirlene 
RE: :2002-0431 Moto Mart in Swansea 

I will prepare and send them to the client for signature, and forward them to you as soon as I receive them. 
Vince 

--------- Original Message ---------
Subject 2002-0431 Moto Mart in Swansea 
From: "South, Shirlene" 
Date: 7/5/1611:31 am 
To: "CWM Company, Inc." 

Hello Vince, 

I saw that you were going to send the affidavits of the access denial in the CACR, but tlhey are needed 
in the SICR. They are needed to prove that delineation of the contamination was attempted. Can you 
please send the as soon as possible so I can finish my review? 

Thank you 

Shirlene South 

217/558-0347 

l 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Shirlene, 

cwm @cwmcompany.com 
Thur:sday, July 07, 2016 8:15AM 
Soutlh, Shirlene 
RE: ~W02·0431 Moto Mart in Swansea 
Offsitte affidavits.pdf 

A scan of the affidavits is atta,:hed, the originals will be delivered soon to the Agency. Let us know if you need 
anything else. 
Vince 

--------- Original Message ------
Subject: 2002-0431 Moto Ma1rt in Swansea 
From: "South, Shirlene" 
Date: 7/5/16 11:31 am 
To: "CWM Company, Inc." 

Hello Vince, 

I saw that you were going to send the affidavits of the access denial in the CACR, but they aJre needed 
in the SICR. They aJre needed to prove that delineation of the contamination was attempted. Can you 
please send the as soon as possible so I can finish my review? 

I Thank you 

Shirlene South 

217/558-0347 

1 
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.. 

In accordance witlil. the 415 ILCS 5/57-57.17, I do solemnly swear that every ,effort has been 
attempted in order to gain access to properties west of the Moto, Inc. facility iin Swansea, 
Illinois, owned by Medstar Ambulance, Inc., Sparta,lllinois. The Moto, Inc .. facility property 
is located at 1324 North I11inois Street, Swansea, Illinois and has been assigned Incident 
number 2002-0431. The Medsmr Ambulance, Inc. properties are identified as 1209 North 
Illinois Street, andl a parking lot located north of 1209 North Illinois in Swans,ea, illinois 
located adjacent tc1 the west side of illinois street. The access requests have been completed 
for the pW'pOses of site investigation and remediation of Che Moto, Inc. property. The 
folJowing is the alltempt that has been made and the neighboring property owner's response to 
the attempt. 

• A request for Etccess was dated January 25, 2008 and sent via Certified Mail #7006 2760 
0000 6494 499'J to Medstar Ambulance. The letter was received January :26, 2008. This 
letter included the language required by 351llinois Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• A second request for access was dated March 25, 2008 and sent via Certified Mail #7006 
2760 0000 6494 4328 to Medstar Ambulance. The Jetter was received M~trch 28, 2008. 
Tb.iB Jetter incllllded the language required by 35 IDinois Administrative Cc1de 742.350 b). 

• A third request for access was dated January 14, 2009 and sent via Certifil:d Mail #7008 
0500 0001 20512540 to Medstar Ambulance. The letter was received JaiJluary 16, 2009. 
This letter incl1aded the language required by 35lllinois Administrative CCI,de 742.350 b). 

• To date, no r~:ponse to the requests has been received. 

Copies of the requ,ests and proof of delivery are attached. 

Owner/Operator: _ Rob Whittington Title: -=A.=.r.g"-=en=t::...._. __ 

Signature: Ad-A&~ 
Subscribed and SWIOm to before me the _..;{c,::;_{:-.;..h...:....._ day f'of,.,.,_~~~~,:'~' ,;:;20~1:;:6,_...,.,."" 

\ J I ~ /) OffiCial Seal 

~it(~[) I[Je}£_ Notary~~~~~~~lllltlellt 
at. Ola r OCtun~ 

~(Notary Public) OommiHion l!x lrtll Juno 20 8017 
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In accordance with. the 415 ILCS 5/57-57.17, I do solemnly swear that every f~ff'Ort has been 
attempted in order to gain access to the property west of the Moto, Inc. facility in Swansea, 
Illinois, owned by Ms. Karen Roussel, Waddell, Arizona. The Moto, Inc. fac:ility property is 
located at 1324 North illinois Street, Swansea, IDinois and has been assigned Incident number 
2002-0431. The Roussel property is identified 1309 North Illinois Street, SwalilSea, Illinois 
located adjacent to the west side of Illinois Street. The access requests have b1een completed 
for the purposes of site investigation and remediation of the Moto, Inc. property. The 
following is the attempt that has been made and the neighboring property ownc!'r's response to 
the attempt. 

• A request for access was dated January 14, 2009 and sent via Certified MsUI #7008 0500 
0001 2051 255'7 to Karen Roussel. This letter included tbe language required by 35 Illinois 
Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• To date, no response to the request has been received. 

Copies of the requ1~ts and proof of delivery are attached. 

Owner/Operator: _ Rob W~ Title: Agent 

Signature: ~ .«:~--bat~;:_....~.-z?L/....!!~:.;.1b~lff::b _____ _ 

L II ..-. - I 
Subscribed and sw1om to bef'Ore me the IJT!') . day of..J LA-I Lj 112016 

~m.o'D~L Seal: 
(Notary Public) 

Clfllclal Seal 
Helen MODell 

Notary Pulbllc, State of Illinois 
Sl 1Cialr County 

M Oommlslloi~~!ZJ 
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• 

In accordance wilh the 415 ILCS 5/57~57.17, I do solemnly swear that every effort has been 
attempted in orde~r to gain access to the property west of the Moto, Inc. facility in Swansea, 
llllnols, owned by Mr. Dave Wuebbels, Belleville, Illinois. The Moto, Inc, facility property is 
located at 1324 North Illinois Street, Swansea, illinois and has been assigned Incident number 
2002-0431. The Wuebbels property is identified 1307 North Illinois Street, Swansea, illinois 
located adjacent to the west side of lllinois Street. The access requests have lbeen completed 
for the purposes tof site investigation and remediation of the Moto, Inc. prope:rty. The 
following is the attempt that has been made and the neighboring property OWJiler's response to 
the attempt. 

• A request for access was dated January 14, 2009 and sent via Certified Mail #7008 0500 
0001 2051 2533 to Dave Wuebbels. The letter was received January 15, 2009. TWs letter 
included the language required by 35 Illinois Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• To date, no rt~onse to the request has been received. 

Copies of the requests and proof of delivery are attached. 

Owner/Operator: --~-....:R:.::o::.::h:_Whi/J~'~:.:::~=·n:.at==.on=---~~---- Title: 

Signature: _ -~~-~ Date: 7/6/Jb . , 

Subocribcd and swom to before me lhe C:, -b_~ day of JL J 1 
~hi! . (!) '!G.L£ ~ 

(Notary Public) 

Agent 

-· 2016 

Seal: 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Shirlene, 

vi neE~ @cwmcompany.com 
Tuesday, July 12,2016 2:50PM 
South, Shirlene 
RE: :2002-0431 Moto mart 
Cap1rure.JPG 

Looking at the aerial (captune.jpg), the right-of-way looks like it could be tight. I am also afraid the edges 
are full of utilities, since that is really the only location they could be. Not saying it is Impossible to get a 
borings in there, but it might: be difficult to find a location safe from utility conflicts. 

We really hadn't started the modeling yet, but in a quick preliminary assessment, it looks like BH-5 would 
model a little less than 60 fe1et. The highest soil contamination, at BH-1, would model about 115 feet. The 
highest groundwater contamination, MW-1, would model about 265 feet, with MW-4 about 200 feet. 
Groundwater flow is away from the highway towards the east (and to a lesser extent south). 

If you want us to complete the modeling now, let me know, and I should be able to get it to you in the 
next day or two. 

Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, Inc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, Il 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany .com 

-------- Original Message --·-----­
Subject: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@IIIinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 12, 2016 8:22 am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.c1om" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

HI Vince, 
The question came up of whether a sb/mw could be put in the right-of-way, in 
order delineate the contamination at BH-5? I was also wondering if you have 
perhaps already model1ed how far the contamination will travel across HWY 159? 
Shirlene South 
217/558-0347 
Shirlene.South@illinois~ 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Shirlene, 

vi neE! @cwmcompany.com 
Tues;day, July 26, 2016 2:50PM 
South, Shirlene 
RE: :2002-0431 Moto mart 

We never finished the modeling, but will. It should be ready either late today or tomorrow morning, and 1 
will forward it to you. 

Vince 

----- --- Original Message --··----­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Mo1t0 mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@IIIinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 26, 2016 1~!:02 pm 
To: "vince@cwmcomoany.c,om" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Vince, 
Could you please re-send the modeling that you did for the MotoMart in 
Swansea? 
Thank you, 
Shirlene 
From: vince@cwmcompany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 12~, 2016 2:50 PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
Looking at the aerial (capture.jpg), the right-of-way looks like it could be tight. I 
am also afraid the edge~s are full of utilities, since that is really the only location 
they could be. Not saying it is impossible to get a borings in there, but it might be 
difficult to find a location safe from utility conflicts. 
We really hadn't started the modeling yet, but in a quick preliminary assessment, 
it looks like BH-5 would model a little less than 60 feet. The highest soil 
contamination, at BH-1, would model about 115 feet. The highest groundwater 
contamination, MW-1, would model about 265 feet, with MW-4 about 200 feet. 
Groundwater flow is away from the highway towards the east (and to a lesser 
extent south). 
If you want us to complete the modeling now, let me know, and I should be able 
to get it to you in the next day or two. 
Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, Inc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, IL 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany.com 

1 
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--------Original Message--­
Subject: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <~ihirlene.South@Dlinois.gov> 

Date: Tue, July 12, 2016 8:22am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

HI Vince, 
The question came up of whether a sb/mw could be put in the right-of-way, in order delineate 
the contamination at BH-5? I was also wondering if you have perhaps already modeled how 
far the contamination will travel across HWY I 59? 
Shirlene South 
217/558-0347 
Shirlene.South@ illinois.gov 

2 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

vince~@cwmcompany.com 
Wednesday, July 27.2016 8:22AM 
South, Shirlene 

Subject: RE: :2002-0431 Moto mart 
Attachments: cwmcompany2000@gmail.com_20160727 _080532.pdf; Mota Mart· model.pdf 

Shirlene, 

The modeling and a drawing showing the approximate limits of the contamination are attached. Let me 
know if you need anything else. 

Vince 

-------- Original Message --·-----­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Mo,to mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@lllinois.gov> 
Date: Wed, July 27, 2016 4:55am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.c1om" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Sorry, I thought you had sent me some figures. 
From: vince@cwmcomoany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 2:50 PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
We never finished the modeling, but will. It should be ready either late today or 
tomorrow morning, and I will forward it to you. 
Vince 

-------- Original Message --····--­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Sihirlene.South@nlinois.!WV> 
Date: Tue, July 26, 2016 12:02 pm 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Vince, 
Could you please re-send the modeling that you did for the MotoMart in Swansea? 
Thank you, 
Shirlene 

From: vince@cwmcompany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.coml 
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 2:50PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
Looking at the aerial (captUJre.jpg), the right-of-way looks like it could be tight. I am also 
afraid the edges are full of utilities, since that is really the only location they could be .. Not 
saying it is impossible to get a borings in there, but it might be difficult to find a location safe 
from utility conflicts. 
We really hadn't started the modeling yet, but in a quick preliminary assessment, it looks like 
BH-5 would model a little lc!ss than 60 feet. The highest soil contamination, at BH-1 , would 

1 
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model about 115 feet. The highest groundwater contamination, MW -1, would modell about 
265 feet, with MW-4 about 200 feet. Groundwater flow is away from the highway towards the 
east (and to a lesser extent south). 
If you want us to complete: the modeling now, Jet me know, and I should be able to get it to 
you in the next day or two .. 
Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, Inc. 
70 I W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, IL 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany.com, 

------Original Message -------­
Subject: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@fllinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 12, 2016 8:22am 
To: "vince@cwmcomparw.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

HI Vince, 
The question came up of whether a sb/mw could be put in the right-of-way, in order 
delineate the contamination at BH-5? I was also wondering if you have perhaps 
already modeled how far the contamination will travel across HWY 159? 
Shirlene South 
217/558-0347 
Shirlene.South@illinois.gov 

2 
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HydliUic Gradient 

Text dlseu .. lon for "1", L, d., d,. S... S. 

The Hydnallc G1radleat (I) was dctcnnined from m onsito survey of each ofthD groundwater monitoring wells. The riser 
olcvationa wcro determined and the depth to groundwater was noted in each well. This da111 was wed to gem:ratc a 
potentiometric now map with contour lines which show potentiometric hcad. A oorrcspondlng flow line, pe!;Pmdlcular lo the 
c:on!Our lines, was determined betweon two known poinll of groundWIIIcr ciCVIIlion. The hydroulic gradient wu delcnnined by 
the difference in cllcvatlon divided by the length of flow bctMC~~ thopolnl.!. 

The Source Le•gt:h ParAllel to Groaod"tnltcr Flow (L)-was dctcnnlncd liom the site map and analytic:al re~sult&. A value of 
45.1104 m W1IS US<:d lo enc:ompasa the length of contamination parallel to sroundwator flow. Thl• value i• th·e dl61anco 
between soil borln,IIJ BH·I and BH·2. 

AquWer ThlckneN Tho Aquifer Thlc:luleu (d.} is a silo specific value determined by the lonsth oflheJlilonltoring well screen. 1n1e Aquifer 
Thickncs.s valuo u:1ed in the modeling equations was 3 048 meters. 

IDeplh of Source 

Ols!IIICO (X) 

LocaUon 
BH1 
8H2 
BH3 
BH5 
BH9 

The Depth orSourec (dJ was determined from the anelytloal resulll and soil boring logs. A value of3.048 tn 'A'I.S used 1o 
encompus tho ve11tlcal thickness ofcontamlnetlon based upon a clean soD umplc at BH-IA, "hot' SllJIIpiC3 at BH-.28 and BH· 
2C, and a clean soiil &ample 111 BH·2D. Thus !he vertical thfolmen of son contamination has bcGn dctormtncd 1o be 3.048 m. 

The soure~ wldtll perpendltuln lo crouadwaler now dlreclloaln I he Uorlzool.lt P1anc (S,.) was detem1incd from tl1e site I 
map and annlytical results. A value of3S66.16 em was used to eneompass lh~ ~idth of contamination in the lhorizonlltl plane. 
This value ia the diiata."'cc between clean wells MW-4 and and MW-6. 

Tile soun:c wldtll perpendicular lo croundwater fi1111' dlrccllollln tbc Vertltal PIRIIC (S.) was detorminrld i:om tho soU 
boring loss and analyticali"CCiiull.ll. A value ot304.8 em W115 used to cncompu:~lho width or COtllllminalion in tha vortlcal plane 
based on the depths of contamination present and th~ PlD readinl!l ftom tho bon! Joss. 

BENZENE 
SoiU Exceedanc.- Ground~nlerExceodanc:ee 

Soli X ow,..(fllllll) C(IC) Groundwater )( C{l) 

ConcentraUon (rnglklll (II) R26CIOU!a! I mall) Locallon Concentration (mq/L) (II) (~) 

3.03 118 0.217 0.0049 MW1 8.300 285 0 .0049 
0.096 10 0 .007 0.0048 MW2 0.269 124 0 .0048 
0.463 &a 0.033 0.0048 MW4 2.000 201 0 .0049 
0.474 &a 0.034 0.0049 
0 .312 48 0.022 0.0048 
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Toluene 
Boll E:xcaadanCH Grot~ndwater El!CHclancetl 

Soil X Gw..,{mg/1.) C(x) Groundwater )( C(x) 

locaUon Concentratlon_l_m_nlkg) /Ill R28 Caoun:a (mgl\.j_ Location Concentration {mall..\ Ill) (mg/1.) 

Elllvtbenune 
Soli E:Xceedancea Gnoundweter ExceedanceJI 

Soil X Gw.-(n¢) C(X) Groundwater )( C{t) 

locaUon Concentration C~llkal (ft) R28 CaouR:o lmalll location Concentration (mall..) (1\) /mall I 
MW1 3.2~0 15 0.6381 
MW~ 3.830 1a 0.6875 
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Total Xyl•nea 
Boll Exceedanc .. CJroundW•Iar Excaedanc•u 

Soli X GM"~(mgA.) C{~ Groundwater X C(x) 

Locallon Concantrallon (mQ/kQ) (II) R28Caal.lll8 (mgll) Location Concentration (malll Ill) (ma/U 
BH1 16.4 0.300SC3354 
BHS 25.7 0.471 

MTBE 
Soli Exceedancea OroundWIIIerExcottd&ncn 

Soli X Gwojj(mgJl.) C{X) Groundwater X C(l¢ 

Location Concentration (~n111k0l 1ft) R28CIOUICO (mg/1,) ILocaUon Concentration (mo/Ll 1ft) lm111ll 
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Nll!!!lllll•n• 
Soli EO.cHdanc .. I Graundwlltar Exeee~cetl 

Soli X Gwoe~(mg/1.) C(X) Groundwater l( C(X) 

LocaUon Concentration Cmcllkol tAl R28CIIOUiti8 lma/LI tocaOon ConcentraUon (moll) 11n1 lmlll'l.l 
t.IW1 0.887 10 0.1388 
MW4 1.230 ~!4 0.1332 

Benza llovntno 
sou E:XCeedancea GroundwatarExceedancelt 

Soli X Gw.,.(mgll.) C(x) Groundwater ;I( C(x) 

locaUon ConcentraUon(~~~ {Ill R:l8CIICIUII:e (fTill/t.} location Concentration (mWl.) (Ill) (mg/1.) 

BH2 ~16 0.000001352 
BH9 2.6 0.000021973 

BH11 0.11 o.ooooooe:!O 
BH12 1.5 0.000012817 
BH14 0.13 0.000001099 
BH16 0.12 0.000001014 
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Dtbenrra n antllnleana 
Soli Eltcoedancea Groundwalor Eltctedanco• 

Soli X Gw.,.(mQJt.) C(x) Groundwater X coo 
Loc!ltlon Concentrallon (rng/kg} cnl R2eCIOUrat (mg/l) Location Concentration {moiL\ lftl (mgJL) 

BH2 0.23 0.000000522 
BH9 0.54 0.000001225 

BH12 0.26 o.oooooosm 

uad 
Sol! EltcHtl•ncea 

Soli X Gw.,.(mgll) C(l() 
Locatlon Conoenlratlon (rng/kg) (It) R2eC~ (mg/l) 
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Benz a anlllrecene 
Soiii:X~ancaa Oroundwlller Exceedln<:ell 

Soil X OWIIj(mgll) C(x) Groundwater ;)( C(IC) 

Locallon Concenlnlllon lmcllka) (1\l R26Caouta1 !moil) Location Concentration lmaA.\ (ft\ II'MI\.) 

BH9 2.5 0.000054142 

Acenaphlllant 
Solli:Xcaedanc:es Groundwater Exeeoclante:a 

Soli X Ow~(mgll.) ~ll) Groundwater .X C(X) 

Location Concentration lmn/ka) 1111 R2BCioun:e (moil\ Location Concentrallon lmaA.I (ftl I!MJ\.1 
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A. SltelclonUIIcoUon 

Illinois Envtro~Mt~lal Protec:llon Agency 
Lteklng Underoround S!Dnge Tank Prognm 

R8CA Input Panmeterw lor Utt wllh ller 1 Cllculltlono 
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U. 
II f. t f; 

R~1e: a.,eo;so·x ,.. __ -- .. I I R-17: .. - ... /3 ...-.r ... _, .. 1 ~ . A-18: a.•a.f2D _ .... 
UW...•CWIDil _..._ "JI "Tonn 1"• l't/CZ" o,l) _.._ .... _ ..... 

n II ; "Tonnr•{I·6QR'Tl1•(••A•a,~tM& _J .. r - ~fi 
..... I~ J It' M -.7.a»PENDJJlC:TllllloO 

.J .:; c;,t: c_. Jl ei'.,..U,_. ll edlJ11 X llftH 
Sample 

... _ 
c.. Gw,..(lllQIL) X X C(loj .. .. .. y...,, 

'""'' ERF(JI) ERFQ121 ,,. 
I.Jx:don 

,_ 
R26c.o...e 1111 ..,., (moo\) (tml (c:mj !all) .. It•"""""'""" 

BH1 16.4 6.011 0.30054 
BH5 25.7 9.418 0.47D!l7 

-(Xrtoftot) 

112• 
.. ,a.-·., 
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Tier:! Vertical Modeling & R-26 CalculaUons for Total Xylenea 
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JGOloOQI 

j~l t t f~ 
IMI: a,•D,1D"I( -- I "''7: ...... 3 _, .. "-11: a.•a,t%0 ...-...... _,.,.., 1"• pt/IZ" ... )J --· ... Jl 

.. J .,..,.2"•11·80RTI1•1•"1"a.l1tvlll - 01t s-.7UHP9QXC:~O J, u u Et.._•c_ X ..,_, __ X 0111),) a ot~oJ 
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Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Naphthalene 
Mota Marl · Swon&oa 

SSL ttSSL& RIII:At 
Z002.0.U1 

Soli Cocnponant Dfllla Migration 10 Gmunctwatar CIHnup DbJectMt (C:I..., 1) 

x[ [ (ll.+ l .. xH1 J c.. +( 0.327 
S-17 = c.. " K.o • --P;-- = 2.9 

Target Sol luc:b.S. Coneentrallon (Cia&s 1) 

S-18= Cw= OFxGw,.. = 20.00 X 0.140 

ISoii-Wamr Partition Coetllalant 

S-19= K.i= I<."'· = 500.00 X 0.008 

Wac.r-Fillod Porotlty 

{ J-I 
_., 

0.300 S-20• e,.= .. = 0.62 
K. 540.000 

Oct• Compiled: 02/231111 
v.niiii'C'~5 

l]= 0.292 " 0.020 

0.987 

C..x 3.244 maJI;g 

= 2.8 

= 2.9 

= 0.3273 
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s-21• e.= 
, .......... _ 

'I • e. 

5·22= OF= Kxlxd 

lxL 

S-24 a 11 = r .. --.. p, 
1 --~p,i--

Speclllc Discharge 

R-19= u " 
Kxi 
e. 

Volu-lrie Air Con- Ill Vadose Zane Sol Ia 

R-21 = e ... = e,. (Wxll>) 

p, 

Volumetric W111arConlltlllln Vadose ZOne Solie 

R-22= Elw. 
WJCP, 

P. 

R-23= 9r 
r-1 Son ...,_ICy 

o. a.. 

R-24• Ugw"" 

,_ .. .,,_ 
Kxl 

Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Naphthalene 
llllotDMart. swan&•• 

21102~4.11 

"' 0.62 0.33 

= 13.56 X 0.0841 10.135 + 
D.JOO 67.056 

= 2054 

= ( 0.0112 " 

= 3.72.800 X O.ll841 
0.43000 

= 0.~30 
0.2i X 0.1187 - 1.00 

= D.29 X 0.1187 
1.00 

0.1534 0.27056 

,. 1.361:<03 " 0.0841 

'"' 02920 

= 1.5748 

• 0.6193 

10.135 m 

• 0.72695 anld 

.. 0153 

= 0.27BSG 

.. D.~ 

= 1359 cmly 
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Ta111et Soiii.Mehll!a Concenlnllon (Solve 9·11 for GW.,.J 

S-18= c.. 
GW ... • -----,-OF;;_---- = 

Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Naphthalene 
lolololol<llt-Swanaoa 

2001~1 

VERT1CAL SOIL MODI!UNG AHD ASSOCIAll!D R-211 MODEUNG OF\IIlRl!CAL MODELED SOIL 

11,l ,it t t ~~ 
R-111: a.=0.10"X Tho,_,..._ 1=- '*-'""UioV i 

~ R-17: a,=a./3 
-II( ~~ -hoiOio sa- I R-111: a. • a./2.0 ......._ ...... 

II:~ OW••CWI~ ---- ~~~~ a. 8f ~ ..... ··= JX1(2"a.)J ..-..... 
-l!lloltom• n ~ .. ,:-...... ., ... llf ........ u J.:r :: ~ann%"• {1·SOR111• (4 • A "a.)I(U)JI - 0: 1111: SectiOn 742.APPENDot C: Tablo G H? > 

Co!=C,_. X efl-htw.ll X orf(JI.J X erflllal 

Sample Sal~ c.. Gw_,(mg/l) X X C(lQ ... a, ... Term1 T.,2 ERF(p1) ERF(Jl) 111" 
loeallon ~) R2BCsource 110 (..-nl {nVI.) ,,..,. {em) ! lanl .. , , •• SQRl)oy"lQ) 

Ill• 
114112. SCinta "lQ) 
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MW4 1.23 

Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 CalculaUons for Naphthalene 
Mc>u>Mert • Sw.nue 

2002~~1 

• 

1f 
t i~ 

IH6: a,•U.lU 'X 

i' I R-17: a,•cr./3 
Dlolm:o~ 

R-18: "•,. u,/20 c.ot.era.ote. 

H ~~ !1 
~-........... " 'Tonnt·~ (X/(Z"a,.)J 
.......r"Ghln• p •• 

tit 
lennTc {1 - SOR111 +(4"A 'aJI(U)D 

.. ,_ 
a lf . ,. <It' elf: Section 7•2APPENOIX C: llll>leG .. .J c..,.c ....... " •"_,.,_., X •113·1 X ef11P,) _,_= (:.) I t;;,l 

[renn1 [r ..... ~ ERF(ill) ERF~) 

tcml (em) 

0.13882 ls .. a 11:1."' 1..!24 5 1 .. ~ 1 1 
24 l7:t1.12 0.13320 I rut ~ I s.a571 s ~~~ 1 

-

PI 112• 

·~ ... 
42.-11821 
17~ 
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SSL IISSl&RBCAI 

TIJIIIl SoU Laacllaw Concelllntlon (Clan 1) 

$-18a Cw• OFxGW"f 

r-.---S-19"' K,s • 

S-20= e.= r·-- I '""""' 'I...--.,;.!(,--

Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Benzo[a)pyrene 
MotoMart-&w1nsea 

2002.001 

x[ 5916 

"' 20.00 X 0.005 

• 1.02E+06 X 0.008 

= 0.112 [ 
0.300 

X 540.000 

08111 Comlplled: 02123/16 
lllf'Jt::wr~S 

+I--~O~~~v~--~·~---~~~~o~.~~--~x~~4~.~~~~~~~~J = 
Cwa 5916.338 

= 0.1 

= 5916 

= 0.3213 

m 
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Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Benzo[a]pyrene 
MoloMart. Swansoa 

211024Q1 

s-21 a e.· ,~~-- .. - e.. 0.62 0.33 0.2920 

Dilution Factor 

S-22= OF• Kxlxd . = 13.56 X 0.11841 a 10.135 + 15749 = 
lxl 0.300 61.056 

rolal SoU Poroally 
1 

P> 
p. S-24= tt"' 

U.M = i54 = 0.6193 

rwO.plh 

S-25• (O.DI12xL2)us+cl,[ 1- _j;U_"L___J 
(l<xlxdo) 

:a { 0.0112 X 67.D66 ')QS+ 

3.048 "[ 
, __ 

R X 0.3 l ~ • 10.135 m 
X ll.llll41 X :t:m 

rpedlle Ollcharga 
Kxl R-19= U 8r = 3.72E<OD 

0.43000 
X 0.0841 = 0.72695 cm/d 

Volumolllc Air Conlltnt In Vadose Zone Soils 

R-21• e. llr 
(wxp,> • 0.430 

0.29 0.1181 
"' 0.153 

P. diii 

Volumetric Water c..nttnt In VocloM Zone Soils 

R-22• e... wxp, .. 0.29 X o.eor = 027&56 
P. 1.00 

R-23= 9r 
rolal&oG PonN~IIy 

s. • e.. 0.1534 + 0.27650 • O.<C30 

R-24e Up: 
rtoundWiter Dllrqo Velocity 

Kxl .. 1.3&E+03 X 0.0841 = 1358 cmly 
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Ta~~~et Son Leadlola Conc:ontntlon (Solve S-11 for GW,.d 

S-18• c. 
GWol>l• ----....,

0
-:,F----- = 

Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Benzo[a]pyrene 
Mo1oMart-SW.....,• 

2002.(1431 

\/EinlCAl. SOIL MODEUNG AHD ASSOCIATED R.Za MOOEUNG OF VI"RllCAL MODELED SOIL : 

'& f! 

~s~# t f J~ 
R-16: a.~o.1o•x 

Tho~"** ~~ -. ....., I R-17: a, * a,/3 

a.:=:... nm.~r .. o~ .. r··g R-18: a, • a,./20 !'&. 

·~ I --ccw 11, <IW,..•CW/OP D-IM- JUi II 
"Tann1"a IXJ(2•a,)l ,_.,.,. -·-· u H 1: "T...., 2• • (1 • SQRr[H 14 • A • a,) I (U)D - 'IIJ ~ IOUIW. 

:j ~ r- ~ ert Sedlon 742J\PPENDIX C: T-G 
J '! !1.5" c,.,•c,_ X ,.rt-tn_," •<IIlio! )C •~M.I 

Sample Soaec.n- c.. Gwobi (mgll) X )( C{X) ... a, ... Term1 Tcm2 ERFU11) ERF(jl2) 
LDcaUon ~ R26Csoun:e (II) (CIO) (mg/1.) (an) (an) • (an) 

8H2 0.16 0.000 0.00000 
BH9 2.6 0.000 0.00002 
BH11 0.11 0.000 0.00000 
BH12 1.5 0.000 0.00001 
BH14 0.13 0.000 0.00000 
BH16 0.12 0000 0.00000 

PI= 112= 
""' <•. SQRfloy ""'I ""' Q •IIQRllo< •;q 
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Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R·26 Calculations for Benzo[a)pyrene 
MotoM&It • SWIInoU 

21102<0431 

11 •E .. R·lli: O.D0.1D ')( - .... !j'!!~ I R-17: a,=c,/3 __ , ... 
,..._, ... ~ R· IB: c,•a,l20 lllj Ul HI _ UIJI --· "' "Toon1" " (.X/lZ"a,.)) _,., .. I p,.,-c __ " •"_,.,_., z •rl'll.l x ••IP.J 

·(~~ (~ lt;;,l ,.::.) Tannl ,T~m~2 ERF(JII) ERF(II21 
I (em) 

Ill• 112 
Cd 1 a· &QRT~ar·>m 
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SSL II SSURIIC4l 

nar 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Dibenz{a,h]anthracana 
lolotolbrt--... 

2002-(JClt 

Soli Componwnt of the Mlgndlon lo Gn>......,._Cinnup ObJocttv•IC&M 1) 

• c.. 22QoiO +( O;!UJ 0.2!12 [ l&.. • &.x:H1 ] S-17. c.. X K. + --;;-- x[ 
0.987 

Tuvet SOU l.eetllllla C<lnoentntlon (ct.M 1) 

8·18• C.,= DFxGW01 = 20.00 X 0.005 

llolloWater l'altltlon Coetr<dent 

5-19= K.i"' ~-r.. :z 3.80E<OS X o.ooe 

WJIIW-Fitllldl'orotily 

{ J-I ._ .. 
0.300 S-20• E>.,• 'I K. = 0.62 

5«1.000 

112123/16 

X 6.03£.07 
·] = 

<:.orx :l2040.3311 !!'!!!l!g! 

• 0.1 

= 22040 

= 0.3273 
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Tier' 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 CalculaUons for Dibenz(a)l]anthracane 
Matollolt-s...n-

s-21• e.= r·N- 11 - e. = 
:1002-0CI 

0.62 0.33 = 0.2920 

OUutlonFitCIDr 

S-22= OF• Kalxd = 13.56 

lxL 0.300 
X 0.0841 10.135 + 1.5748 

67.066 r-Soli Pon~tlty Po 0.967 • 0.6193 1 -
"' • ;u:a S-24., 'II=-

&tt...aon of Mbdnolone Depth 

s-25= d• (D.D112xl')
01•d.[ 1-exp 1-lxlj J (K"Ixci,J 

= 0.0112 a: 67.056 .) ... 
3.048 x[ 1 -exp :!l7Jl58 X 0.3 I ~ .. 10.135 m 13..560 X l!.I!Rl • !!1311 

ISpodtiG ot.ctwv· Kxl = 3.72E<OO X 0.0841 = Onti95 anfd .R·19 • U 9r 0.43000 

Votumecrtc:AirCoft-lnVadoMZ-Sol._ 

R-21• 8u llr 
(wxp.r 

= p. 0.430 0.29 X 0.1167 0.1$3 
HID 

Volu--Content in Vlld-lone Solla 

R-22• e... WXP, • 0.29 A 0.967 = D..27B56 ,... 1.00 

R·23 • 9r 
rotal SoH P""'elty 

a,. a.. 0.1$34 0.27656 = 0.4JO 

R-24= Ugw • 
rro-r Den:y VelOCity 

Kxl .. 1.36E+U3 X 0.0841 • 1356 cmly 
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Tletr 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculatlons for Dlbenz[a,h}anthracene 
MotoMort·llwanaM 

2002-001 

TugotloD Leaclt8111 Concentration (Sol .. S.18forGW,..) ~ 
S·1B= GW~a-----;;:_ ____ c 

L--------
VERTICAL 1011. MODEliNG AHD ASSOCIATED R :z& MODEliNG OF VEFITICAL MOD !LEO SOli. . 

"t ..lj f h 
R-16. o, • 0.10 • X 

TlooiJ-- & • -.. ..... t I R-17: a,=o,/3 _ .. 
~~ _of ... J!Ji ~~ E R·1B: a,=o,/20 '=!.== H, GW••CNit# .....-...... !t: "Tenn1""' IX1{2"a,ll 

.. _,_.d ... --· !"' •c Jl .:: - 1f~ 
_,. .. 1: tl H 

., "Tetm 2"" {1 • SORltl + (4 • A • C!J I (U)D 
-;- i" If lit. Sedlan 742APPEND!X C: Table G 
d ~ .... ea.•c...., Jt .rr-•a,._,. s art(p,) & ntt8J 

Sample -~ c.. Gw~(mg/L) X X cw ... a, ... Tann1 r..,.z !RF(JII) ERF(JI2) j31= 112• 
Locelion ~, R28 C.Ourc:e (Ill (ami (IIVIJ (an (Q'II) [em) hl(4 • fllllnlay" XII $dl(2"tlafll!ar"~ 

BH2 0.23 0.000 0.00000 
BHB 0.54 O.GOO 0.00000 
BH12 0.28 0.000 0.00000 
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Tie1r 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Calculations for Dibenz[a,h)anthracene 
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2002-11431 

n 
~~ .. , .... ,. .. -...... 

Jli IJJj 
R·17: a,• ~~o/3 -., .. 

u: -- R-111: ....... ,20 

~·!WI· "Tem~1""' IX112"o.ll -· &! C,ac_ lt el'_h_ll X erflll,} X erfl; Is} 

~~ 
Term\ T01102 ERF~I) ERF~I .... , llcmJ (ern) (em) 

Ill 1!2• 

"'' ' """"" "XII :wm • ~IU!or "XII 
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Tlor 2~ Ve111cal Modollng & ft.ZG Calculations for Benz(a)anthr'ICene --s-~~ 

SOIICom_.,_T,.o .. --,~~11] 

S.17. c. k K. • ,.. • c. .. [ 230aA +( cuzr 

S-18c C.,• DFsGW,. 
r-....... -.,.-·CMo1) 

2DOO X a.oos 

r-PiilidOft &iiii-
.S-19• 1<,• Jl(.xf. .. 3He.06 X G.CIDII 

,-~~-~ I - {~~]-~ 1(, • D.SZ .s.zo• a." 

~~.-~ 
.s-21.. a ... .. e. o.a 0.3:J 

IDI_F_r 
Klllat: ,. 13-" 0.0141 10.136 + 
lxl 0..100 11.060 

S..z2= OF• 

0.2!IZ UlE-06 ']. J cuorr 
cwx ZJQII.IJa 

~ 

0.1 J 
23011.C J 

.. 0.3273 J 
0.2920 J 
1.5748 J 
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Tier 2 Vertical Modeling & R-26 Caleulallons ror Benz[a)anttuacem• _...,. __ 
.QU1 r--,·- "" UOT 

0.6193 ] "" 
. -no-S..24• 'I"' 

. .... 

. l S·25= d• (UOilZxL')U •cl,[ ·- C~5D ] (Kxlall,l 

• I 0.0112 IT.o5e . .,. 
1lMI ·[ t-up f:di 03 :J 10.135 DAJ ERI 

lllpoctfto D-111• 

.R-18" U . Kxl --0.-- 372!!oiXJ OONt • 0.1'206 ~] OCOIXJ 

NrCern.n&tnYa.._.ZOntSoPI ] a. .. IWXI\l 0.430 11.28 0.117 
0.1~ --,._-- 1.00 

lv·--&niOiiion -""'" i060 .. 0:18 • UU7 • D.l71~ ] R-22• 9.. • •:: 1.110 

R-23= 9r 
r1alaoriPCiiill~tr .. ._ 0.1$)4 Q.Z7I5e OCSII ] 
,0-IIV<J'V"*'J 
.R.:Z4• u .. • Kal 1.:JDC..a:3 0.0141 13511 ~] 
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Tier 2! V•rtlcal Modeling " R-26 Cak:ul.tiol\8 for Benz(a]anth!'llcane 
""*'*"·s.ne.. 
~ 

Yelnlc:AL801L MODI1JHO ANDAIIIIOCIATI!D ft.U MOOEUNO OF.mtTIC.r.L MODELED 11011. 

U, i~l t L i~ 
R-te:: a.•a.ta•x ""-- -- I 
R-11: o,•a./3 _,. _ .... R-111: a.• ... t:ID 

:::=:..::~ G'/llt,.•CWIDF -- ""'" ,.. pup• a.ll ............ n r tl II} _ ..... - I· J 'T•m2"• (t·somtt• (4• A •aJI(U)D -- lf· • !i J m -7~1XC:T-o 
,J j C:,•e_ X .c'-"-• • ~,1 • M J,J 

S.1!111t ...,.,_ c.. Gw,..(mgll.) X • C(l) a, .. .. T...,t r ... 2 eRF"I) I!!IF~ ,,. 
U!catlon ....... R26Ct~ (II) '""' t.....U (ani (ant (tml .. ,,._ ... 

BH9 u 0.001 0.00005 

112• .. , ... _ ... 
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C~ COMPANY, INC. 
701 W. SOUTH GRAND 

SPRINGFIELD, n.. 62704 
(217) 511-8001 

MOTOMART 
SWANSEA., ILLINOIS 
INCIDENT' # 2001~31 
ST. CLAIU. COUNTY 

MODELED 
CONTAMINATION MAP 

SCALE: 1 "=100' 
DATE: 7117116 

REVISED DATE: 
DRAWING: 0011 

DRAWN BY: VES 
REVISED BY: 

REVIEW BY: CLR 
MotoMart.dwg 

MODELED 
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South, Shirlene 

From: Hawbaker, Carol 
Sent: 
To: 

Wednesday, July 27, 2016 9:33AM 
South, Shirlene 

Subject: RE: ~!002-0431 Moto mart 

No, I cnn 't read the legend either. I would ask first for a clearer legend. and second, if the circles are supposed to depict a 
GW modeled plume in all directions, they should include the model distances on the moJeled plume depictions. 

earoO 

Carol Hawbaker 
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Section 
Division of Remediation Management 
Bureau of Land 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
(217) 782-5713 

A try pu.w n who klloll'ingly ma~c·.v a false material ,\'tatemt•llf or repn!fl'lltmion, orally or in wriring. in any label, mauife.u. rl'{·urd. 
report. permit, orlinmse. or other doctllll£111 ji/c•d. maintained or llled.for tfiC' purpose cl COIIIJ'Iirma wirft Title Xl'l commits a Clau .f 
felony. A11y ,\·t·nmd or subseq11e111 offense after comic tiou lll'rcunder il' a Class 3 felonr (415 ILCS 5/4./ and 57.17>. 

From: South, Shirlene 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 9:27AM 
To: Hawbaker, carol 
Subject: FW: 2002-0431 Moto mart 

From: vince@cwmcomoany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.coml 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:22AM 
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

-------- Original Message ---- ---­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Mo1to mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@IIIjnois.gov> 
Date: Wed, July 27, 2016 4:55am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Sorry, I thought you had sent ml!:! some figures. 

From: vince@cwmcompany.con1 [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 2:50 PM 

1 
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To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002·0431 Mote mart 

Shirlene, 

We never finished the mod1:!ling, but will. It should be ready either late today or to,morrow 
morning, and I will forward it to you. 

Vince 

-------- Original Message ··------­
Subject: RE: 2002·0431 f-'1oto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@lllinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 26, 2016 12:02 pm 
To: "vince@cwmcompany .. com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Vince, 

Could you please re-send the modeling that you did for the MotoMart in Swansea? 

Thank you, 

Shirlene 

From: vince@cwmcomoany.c:om [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.coml 
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 2:50 PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002·0431 Mot1:> mart 

Shirlene, 

Looking at the aerial (capt:ure.jpg), the right-of-way looks like it could be tight. I am also 
afraid the edges are full o1F utilities, since that is really the only location they could be. Not 
saying it is impossible to ~1et a borings in there, but it might be difficult to find a !location 
safe from utility conflicts. 

We really hadn't started the modeling yet, but in a quick preliminary assessment,, it looks 
like BH-5 would model a little less than 60 feet. The highest soil contamination, at BH-1, 
would model about 115 feet. The highest groundwater contamination, MW-1, wo1e~ld 
model about 265 feet, with MW-4 about 200 feet. Groundwater flow is away from the 
highway towards the east (and to a lesser extent south). 

If you want us to completl:! the modeling now, let me know, and I should be able to get it 
to you in the next day or two. 

Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental EngineE!r 
CWM Company, Inc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, IL 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany.com 

-------- Original Message -------­
Subject: 2002-0431 Mot1J mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shlrlene.South@IIIinois.gov> 
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Date: Tue, July 12, 2016 8:22am 
To: "vince@cwmcompanY'.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

HI Vince, 

The question came up of whether a sb/mw could be put in the 
right-of-way, in order delineate the contamination at BH-5? I was 
also wondering if you have perhaps already modeled how far the 
contamination will tre~vel across HWY 159? 

Shirlene South 
217/558-0347 
Shirlene.South@illinois.gov 

3 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

vince!@cwmcompany.com 
Wedlflesday, July 27, 2016 9:55 AM 
SouUil, Shirlene 

Subject: AE: ~~002-Q431 Moto mart 

Shirlene, 

The dark blue is the perimete!r of the furthest modeled contamination, which is the benzene in the 
groundwater at MW-1, which models 265 feet, beyond any other modeled soil or gmundwater 
contamination in all directions. 

I will prepare the drawings y()u are asking for, and will submit them later this morning, barring 
interruptions. 

Vince 

--·-··-· Original Message --··-·--­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Sfnirlene.South@lllinois.gov> 
Date: Wed, July 27, 2016 7::44 am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.c()m" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Vince, thanks for the map and TACO unfortunately I don't for examp~e what is 
outer blue line depictin!~? I can't read the legend and if the circles an~ supposed 
to depict a GW modeled plume in all directions, they should include the model 
distances on the modeled plume depictions. Could you possibly separate the soil 
and gw on to two separate maps, It is very congested. 
Shirlene 
From: vince@cwmcompany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.coml 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:22AM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
The modeling and a drc:1wing showing the approximate limits of the contamination 
are attached. Let me know if you need anything else. 
Vince 

-------- Original Message -------­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@lllinois.gov> 
Date: Wed, July 27,2016 4:55am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.c:om" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Sol_!)', I tho~ght you had sentt me some figures. 

From: vince@cwmcompany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.com) 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 2:50PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 

1 
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We never finished the mod~~ling, but will. It should be ready either late today or tomorrow 
morning, and I will forward it to you. 
Vince 

--------Original Message··-----­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <:Shirlene.South@nlinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 26,2016 1.2:02 pm 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Vince, 
Could you please re-send the modeling that you did for the MotoMart in Swansea? 
Thank you, 
Shirlene 

From: vince@cwmcommmy.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 2:50PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
Looking at the aerial (capture.jpg), the right-of-way looks like it could be tight. I am 
also afraid the edges are full of utilities, since that is really the only location they 
could be. Not saying it is impossible to get a borings in there, but it might be difficult 
to find a location safe from utility conflicts. 
We really hadn't started the modeling yet, but in a quick preliminary assessment, it 
looks like BH-5 would model a little less than 60 feet. The highest soil contaminaticm, 
at BH-1, would model about 115 feet. The highest groundwater contamination, MW­
I, would model about 265 feet, with MW -4 about 200 feet. Groundwater flow is 
away from the highway towards the east (and to a lesser extent south). 
If you want us to complete the modeling now, let me know, and I should be able to 
get it to you in the next day or two. 
Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, Inc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, IL 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince @cwmcompany.corr} 

-------- Original Message -------­
Subject: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@IIlinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 12,2016 8:22am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

HI Vince, 
The question came up of whether a sb/mw could be put in the right-of-way, 
in order delineate the contamination at BH-5? I was also wondering if you 
have perhaps already modeled how far the contamination wiiJ travel across 
HWY 159? 
Shirlene South 
217/558-0347 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

vi nee~ @cwmcompany.com 
Wednesday, July 27,201611:12 AM 
Soutlh, Shirlene 

Subject: RE: ~W02-0431 Mota mart 
Attachments: Mota Mart- soil model.pdf; Mota Mart- gw model.pdf 

Shirlene, 

Sorry for the confusion. SincE~ the groundwater contamination modeling controlled, 1For the locations where 
there was both soil and watell' contamination, only the groundwater radii were used previously, and as I 
said before, groundwater at f'1W-1 defines the ultimate modeled boundary. On the a1ttached drawings the 
dark lines are the modeled soil (drawing OOUA) or water (drawing 00118) contamination, while the thin 
lines are the opposite (modeled groundwater on OOllA, modeled soil on 00118). Ea1ch of the dark lines 
has an identifier for the sample location, and the radius of the circle. 

Vince 

-------- Original Message ---·----­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Mote mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Sih irlene.South@IIIinois.gov> 
Date: Wed, July 27, 2016 7:44am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.c()m" <vince@cwmcompanv.com> 

Vince, thanks for the map and TACO unfortunately I don't for examplle what is 
outer blue line depictin!~? I can't read the legend and if the circles are supposed 
to depict a GW modeled plume in all directions, they should include the model 
distances on the modeled plume depictions. Could you possibly separate the soil 
and gw on to two separate maps, it is very congested. 
Shirlene 
From: vince@cwmcomoany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:22AM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
The modeling and a dr21wing showing the approximate limits of the contamination 
are attached. Let me know if you need anything else. 
Vince 

-------- Original Message ------­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Mota mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@lllinois.gov> 
Date: Wed, July 27, 2016 4:55am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.c:om" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Sorry, I t~~g_tlt you had sent me some figures. 

From: vince@cwmcompany.com [mailto:vince@cwmcompany.coml 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26,2016 2:50PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Mota mart 
Shirlene, 

1 
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We never finished the modeling, but will. It should be ready either late today or tomorrow 
morning, and I will forward it to you. 
Vince 

------ Original Message ·-------­
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <:Shirlene.South@fllinois.gov> 
Date: Tue, July 26, 2016 :t 2:02 pm 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Vince, 
Could you please re-send the modeling that you did for the MotoMart in Swansea? 
Thank you, 
Shirlene 

From: vince@cwmcompany.com [m:lllto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 2:50PM 
To: South, Shirlene 
Subject: RE: 2002-0431 Moto mart 
Shirlene, 
Looking at the aerial (capture.jpg), the right-of-way looks like it could be tight. 1 am 
also afraid the edges are ~ull of utilities, since that is really the only location they 
could be. Not saying it is impossible to get a borings in there, but it might be difficult 
to find a location safe from utility conflicts. 
We really hadn't started the modeling yet, but in a quick preliminary assessment, it 
looks like BH-5 would model a little less than 60 feet. The highest soil contaminati<>n, 
at BH-1, would model about 115 feet. The highest groundwater contamination, MW-
1, would model about 265 feet, with MW -4 about 200 feet. Groundwater flow is 
away from the highway towards the east (and to a lesser extent south). 
If you want us to complet'e the modeling now,let me know, and I should be able to 
get it to you in the next day or two. 
Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, Inc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave .. 
Springfield, D.. 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany.cotl[l 

-------- Original Message -------­
Subject: 2002-0431 Mota mart 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene. South@ lllinois.gov> 
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
have perhaps already modeled how far the contamination will travel across 
HWY 159? 
Shirlene South 
217/558-0347 
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@ 

CW M Company-
Environmental Consulting Services 

701 W. South Grand Avenue 
Springfield, IL 62704 

Phone: (217) 522-8001 
Fax: (217) 522-8009 

October 3, 2016 PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 163 140502 1 - St. Clair County 
Moto, Inc. 
Incident# 20020431 

Ms. Shirlene South, Project Manager 
LUST Section, Bureau of Land 

Leaking UST Technical File 

Illinois Envirorunental Protection Agency 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Springfield, IL 62794-9276 

RE: LPC #1631405021-St. Clair County 
MotoMart - Swansea 
1324 North Illinois St. (Route 159) 
Incident Number: 2002-0431 
LUST Technical Reports-Corrective Action Plan and Budget 

Dear Ms. South: 

On behalf of FKG Oil Company (MotoMart), owner of the USTs at the above­
referenced site, we are submitting the attached Correctiv,e Action Plan (CAP) and 
Budget. The CAP proposes using institutional controls to address the contamination 
defined in the Site Investigation Completion Report approved July 28, 2016. Also in 
the CAP is a vapor intrusion investigation and some re-s;ampling of on site and off-site 
contamination that would require remediation or additional institutional controls. 
Assuming that nothing is found that requires additional r'emediation, a Corrective 
Action Completion Report will be prepared. If there is contamination which requires 
remediation, a CAP Amendment will be submitted. 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Mr. Vince 
E. Smith or me at (217) 522-8001. 

Carol L. Rowe, P.G. 
Senior Envirorunental Geologist 

Enclosure 

t ~PA•DIVISION OF IIECOROS MANAGEMENT 

REtE A<;~~IF 

DEC~~ 8 2016 

REVIEVVER: EMI 

xc: Mr. Rob Whittington, MotoMan I FKG Oil Company 

RECEIVED 
OCT 11 2016 

______ M_r_._w_il_Ii_run __ T_. _s_i~_o_n_._c_~ __ M_c_o_m_p_a_ny_,_m_c_. ______________ ~I~E:~~~~~ E3()(_ 
701 W. South Grand Avenue 400 West Jackson, Suite C 

Springfield, IL 62704 Marion, IL 62959 
(217) 522-800 I (618) 997-2238 
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PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN & 
BUDGET 

MotoMart - Swansea 

Swansea, Illinois 
LPC #1631405021 - St. Clair County 

Incident Number 2002-0431 

Submitted to: E C E JVE 0 
ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

Leaking Underground Storage Tank Section, Bureau of Land OCT 11 2016 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

Prepared by: 

CW3M COMPANY, INC. 

IEPA/BOL 

701 South Grand Avenue West 
Springfield, Illinois 

(217) 522-8001 

400 West Jackson, Suite C 
Marion, Illinois 
(618) 997-2238 

OCTOBER 2016 

IEPA·OIVISION OF RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

RELEA~~ ~l f 

DEC 2 8 2016 

REVIEWER: EMI 
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1. SITE HISTORY/EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

l.lGENERAL 

This proposed Corrective Action Plan (CAP) and Budget has been prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the 35 Illinois Administrative Code (Ill. Adrn. Code) 734. The 
lllinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) Corrective Action Plan Form is included 
in this document as Appendix A. 

A 560-gallon heating oil underground storage tank (UST) was discovered on-site during the 
construction of a new building that now serves as the active MotoMart station in Swansea, 
Illinois. FKG Oil Company (MotoMart) contracted Greystone Environmental, Inc. (GEl) 
to remove the 560-gallon heating oil UST and proceed with the reporting requirements in 
accordance with the requirements of 35 Illinois Ill. Adm. Code § 732. The UST was 
removed on April 3, 2002, at which time a slight petroleum odor was observed in the 
backfill. A release was therefore reported to the Illinois Emergency Management Agency 
(lEMA) and Incident Number 2002-0431 was assigned on April 3, 2002. This CAP and 
Budget is being prepared in response to Incident Number 2002-0431. 

The 20-Day Certification was submitted to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
(IEPA) on April 19, 2002 (GEl, 2002). A 45-Day Report was submitted to the IEPA on 
July 19, 2002 (GEl, 2002a), and approved by the IEPA on August 8, 2002 (IEPA, 2002). 

Following the submission of the 45-Day Report, MotoMart requested that United Science 
Industries, Inc. (USI), proceed with the site investigation and reporting requirements in 
accordance with the requirements of35 Til. Adm. Code § 732. On July 28, 2006, USI 
submitted an Election to Proceed under 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734 (USI, 2006). A Stage 2 
Site Investigation Plan (SIP) and Budget was submitted on February 13, 2007 (USI, 2007) 
and approved by the IEPA on March 27, 2007 (IEPA, 2007) . A Stage 3 SIP and Budget 
was submitted on October 16, 2007 (USI, 2007a) and approved by the IEPA on January 
10, 2008 (IEPA, 2008). 

Since the submission of the Stage 3 SIP, USI declared bankruptcy and is no longer in 
existence. MotoMart has requested that CW3M Company, Inc. (CW3M) proceed with the 
site investigation and reporting requirements in accordance with the requirements of 35 Ill. 
Adm. Code§ 734. CW3M submitted a Stage 3 SIP and Budget Amendment on April 16, 
2012 (CW3M, 2012), which was approved by the !EPA on July 18, 2012 (IEPA, 2012). 
Once the work proposed in the April 2012 SIP Amendment was completed, a second Stage 
3 SIP and Budget Amendment was submitted by CW3M on October 27, 2015 (CW3M, 
2015), and approved with modifications on February 18, 2016 (IEPA, 2016). 
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A Site Investigation Completion Report (SICR) was submitted to the rEP A on April4, 
2016 (CW3M, 2016), and was approved by the IEPA on July 28, 2016 (IEPA, 2016a). 

This report is certified by an Illinois Licensed Professional Engineer. The geological 
investigation and site investigation was performed under the direction of an Illinois 
Licensed Professional Geologist and completed in accordance with the Professional 
Geologist Licensing Act and its Rules for Administration. 

1.2 SITE LOCATION 

The site, known as MotoMart, is located at 1324 North Illinois Street (Route 159), 
Swans(::a, St. Clair County, Illinois. The site is located in the NE 'A of the NE 'A of the 
NE 'A of Section 21, Township 1 North of the Centralia Baseline and Range 8 West of the 
Third Principal Meridian. 

1.3 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK INFORMATION 

The 56i0-gallon steel tank was uncovered during site construction, within the footprint of 
the new building which now serves as the active MotoMart station. Tltis tank has never 
been used by MotoMart as they were unaware of its existence until it was uncovered during 
the construction. After obtaining a permit for removal from the lllinois Office of the State 
Fire Marshal (OSFM), the product was frrst removed by a vacuum truck for disposal by 
fuel re•cycling. Then the inside tank atmosphere was measured with a combustible gas 
indicator. When volatile vapors inside the tank were less than the Lower Explosive Limit 
(LEL),. the tank was removed by GEl with a backhoe. The tank appeared to be intact, with 
no holes on the sides and bottom. 

2 
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Table 1-l. Underground Storage Tank Summary 

Tank Tank Tank Incident Release Current 
Number Volume Contents Number Information Status 

(gallons) 
1 8,000 Gasoline None N/A Currently 

in use 
2 4,000 Gasoline None N/A Currently 

in use 
3 10,000 Gasoline None N/A Currently 

in use 
4 6,000 Diesel None N/A Currently 

Fuel in use 
5 560 Heating 2002-0431 Tank Leak Removed 

Oil 4/3/2002 

1.4 EARLY ACTION SUMMARY 

GEI removed the 560-gallon beating oil UST located beneath the building on April 3, 
2002. A slight petroleum odor was observed in the backfill, so a release was reported to 
the lEMA and Incident Number 2002-0431 was assigned that day. Approximately 6 tons 
(4 cubic yards) of contaminated backfill and approximately 1.5 tons (1 cubic yard) of 
contaminated native soil was removed from the former tank pit and taken to the Roxana 
Landfill in Edwardsville, Illinois. Two soil samples were collected during the excavation 
and analyzed for benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, and total xylenes (BETX) and 
polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PNAs). One sample (M 8) was collected immediately 
below the tank as it was removed and the other sample (M 10) was collected in the clay soil 
beneath the coal seam. Both sample locations were located within the soil that was 
removed and disposed of at the Roxana Landfill. A summary of the analytical results is 
included in Appendix F. 

1.5 SITE INVESTIGATION SUMMARY 

Soil analytical results from site investigation activities , indicate that Tiered Approach to 
Clean-up Objectives (TACO) Tier 1 Residential Clean-Up Objectives (CUOs) have been 
exceeded on-site and off-site to the northeast, east, southeast, and west. 

Groundwater analytical results from site investigation activities indicate that the 
groundwater quality has exceeded the Class 1 Groundwater Objectives at the western 

3 
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property boundary and off-site to the east. One well (MW-8) that was installed during 
Stage 3 site investigations activities did not produce groundwater in two separate sampling 
attempts. During the most recent drilling event, groundwater had produced and was 
sampled, from MW-8, showing PNA contamination just over Tier 1 CUOs. 

As mentioned above, soil and groundwater analytical results indicate that Tier 1 CUOs 
have been exceeded at the western property boundary. Off-site access was requested to 
investigate the extent of contamination west of the site; however access was considered 
denied. Additional soil investigation was proposed to the south (CW3M, 2015), but the 
Agency determined the soil contamination identified in that direction to not be associated 
with the 2002-0431 release (IEPA, 2016). In the second Stage 3 Plan Amendment (CW3M, 
2015), it was also proposed to not continue the groundwater investigation to the east. 

On September 6, 2006, USI advanced five soil borings (BH-1, BH-2, BH-3, BH-4, BH-5) 
and five monitoring wells (MW-1, MW-2, MW-3, MW-4, MW-5) as part of Stage 1 site 
investigation activities. Soil samples were analyzed for BETX and PNAs. Soil analytical 
results indicate that Tier 1 objectives have been exceeded for the indicator contaminants 
benzene, total xylenes, benzo(a)pyrene, and dibenz(a,h)anthracene. USI returned to the 
site on October 5, 2006, to sample the installed monitoring wells for BETX, methyl tert­
butyl ether (MTBE), and PNAs. Groundwater analytical results indicated that Tier 1 
objectives have been exceeded for the indicator contaminants benzene, ethybenzene, and 
naphthalene. The soil boring logs, well completion reports (WCRs), and analytical results 
were included in the Stage 2 SIP and Budget submitted on February 13, 2007 (USI, 2007), 
and were included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). A table summarizing the groundwater 
analytical results is included in Appendix F. 

On May lO, 2007, USI advanced four soil borings (BH-6, BH-7, BH-8, BH-9) as part of 
Stage 2 site investigation activities. Soil samples were analyzed for BETX and PNAs. Soil 
analytical results indicate that the Tier 1 objectives have been exceeded for the indicator 
contaminants benzene and PNAs. An additional soil boring (ST-1) was advanced during 
Stage 2 site investigation activities to obtain site specific physical parameters. The soil 
boring logs and analytical results were included in the Stage 3 SIP and Budget submitted on 
October 16, 2007 (USI, 2007a), and were included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). A 
summary of the analytical results are included in Appendix F. 

On July 25, 2007, USI advanced an additional two soil borings (BH-10 and BH-11) to 
complete Stage 2 site investigation activities. Soil samples were analyzed for BETX and 
PNAs. Soil analytical results indicate that the Tier 1 objectives have been exceeded at BH-
11 for the PNA indicator contaminant benzo(a)pyrene. A summary of the analytical results 
were included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). The soil boring logs and analytical results were 
included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). A summary of the analytical results are included in 
Appendix F . 
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On September 3, 2015, CW3M personnel returned to the site to conduct off-site soil and 
groundwater investigation activities. Three soil borings (BH-17, BH-18, and BH-19) were 
advanced to fifteen feet. Soil samples were analyzed for PNAs. The samples were 
sampled to fifteen feet based on the previous sampling by US! and previously approved 
plans. The seasonal fluctuation of the water table and the lack of groundwater produced in 
wells in past investigations also back up soil sampling to fifteen feet. Soil analytical results 
indicate that the Tier 1 objectives have been exceeded for the PNA indicator contaminants 
benzo(a)anthracene, benzo(a)pyrene, benzo(b)fluoranthene, and dibenz(a,h)anthracene at 
BH-19 at a depth of7.5 feet. Previously dry MW-8 was also sampled for PNAs, resulting 
in levels of benzo(a)anthracene and benzo(b)fluoranthene higher than Tier 1 CUOs. Soil 
boring logs and WCRs were included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). A summary of the 
analytical results are included in Appendix F . 

At the end of Stage 2 Site Investigation, the plumes remained undefined in the southern, 
eastern, and western directions, so access was sought for the offsite properties in those 
directions. Access to the east and south was sought and granted to two properties owned 
by Century Brass Works, and subsequent investigations were conducted. Access requests 
for properties to the west, across Route 159 (North Illinois Street), were requested at 1509 
(Karen Roussel), 1507 (Dave Wuebbels), and two properties owned by Medstar 
Ambulance, one north and one south of Brackett Street. Each of the property owners west 
of Route 159 failed to grant access, so access is considered denied to each property. 
Copies of the access correspondence were included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). Affidavits 
for the properties have been prepared in accordance with 35 IlL Admin. Code 734.350 c) 
and were submitted during the review of the SICR, and are copied in Appendix G. They 
will also be included in the Corrective Action Completion Report (CACR). 

1.6 CORRECTIVE ACTION SUMMARY 

The results from the site investigation activities indicated that soil contamination above Tier 
1 Clean-up Objectives is present on site, and extends off-site to the east and west. Upon 
the determination of the TACO Tier 2 CUOs, it was apparent that the levels of 
contamination at sample BH-9-A will require additional remediation, and the off-site soil 
contamination to the east will require additional remediation. 

Groundwater analytical results indicate that Tier I CUOs have been exceeded on site at 
MW -1, MW -2, MW -4 and MW -8. The groundwater plume covers much of the same area 
as the soil contamination, extending slightly further to the east. It is proposed that a 
groundwater ordinance be used, effectively eliminating the migration of the soil to 
groundwater pathway. 

s 

IEPA·DIVISION OF RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

RElEASABlE 

DEC 28 2016 

REVIEWER: EMI 
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The vapor intrusion pathway has not been investigated previously, and an investigation is 
proposed in this CAP. 

2. REMEDIATION OBJECTIVES 

.2.1 DETERMINATION OF CLEAN-UP OBJECTIVES 

In accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734, remediation objectives will be determined in 
accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 742. The site specific physical parameters have been 
determined, and are calculated below. 

Hydraulic Conductivity (K), 4.30 x 10'5 em/sec 
Soil bulk density (pb), 60.4 lb/ftl (0.967 g/cm3

) 

Soil particle density (ps), 2 .54 g/cm3 

Moisture content (w), 0.286 
Organic carbon content {foe), 0.0058 g/g 
Classification, Loamy Sand 

In order to determine the hydraulic conductivity, a slug test was performed on Ma.y 10, 
2007, lln monitoring well MW-3. The test was performed by lowering a "slug" constructed 
of polyvinyl chloride (PVC). USI used the Bouwer & Rice Method for calculating the 
falling and rising hydraulic conductivities. The average hydraulic conductivity was then 
determined by averaging the falling hydraulic conductivity and the rising hydraulic 
conductivity. Two tests were performed, and the results were averaged. The hydraulic 
conduc:tivity was determined to be 4.30 x 10'5 em/sec. Hydraulic conductivity cakulations 
were originally provided in Appendix E of the Stage 2 SIP and Budget (USI, 2007'), and 
was also included in the SICR (CW3M, 2016). 

Velocitty was calculated using the hydraulic conductivity results determined at the site, as 
well as the hydraulic gradient. The hydraulic gradient was found by calculating the change 
in gradient between the most up-gradient well (MW-3, 92.10 feet) and the most down­
gradient well in the direction of flow (MW-7, 82.34 feet), then dividing this answ1er by the 
distance in feet between the two wells (116.36 feet). Formula R24, (U11,.. = K • i ) of 35 
Ill. Adm. Code § 742 Appendix C, Table C was used. The hydraulic gradient was 
calculated to be 8.39 x 10-2. Velocity was calculated to be 3.61 x 10.6 em/sec. 

6 
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2.2 SOIL AND GROUNDWATER OBJECTIVES 

The soil and groundwater objectives are listed for the site below in tabular format. 
Additionally, the groundwater at this site continues to be considered Class 1 unless 
demonstrated otherwise pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code§ 620.210. The site is not within 
the setback of a known potable well, so it is assumed a groundwater use restriction will be 
imposed on the impacted or potentially impacted area , so the groundwater pathway was 
removed in determining the on site soil objectives. 

The site is located in Swansea, Saint Clair County, Illinois. The population of Swansea 
was 13,430 in the 2010 census, so in accordance with 35 Til . Adm. Code § 742, Appendix 
A, Table H background values for PNAs for a Metropolitan Area can be used. Only those 
PNAs for which the incident had an exceedence have been replaced by background values. 

Table 2-1. Soil Remediation Objectives 

TACO TACO Industrial I 
Residential Tier 1 Commercial Tier 2 

Clean-up Clean-up Objective 
Objective (mg/kg) 

Parameter (mg/kg) 
Benzene 0.03 3.21 
Ethylbenzene 13.0 389.64 
Toluene 12.0 371.29 
Total Xylenes 5.6 46.17 
MTBE 0.32 
Acenaphthene 570.0 
Acenaphtylene 15.0 
Anthracene 12000.0 
Benzo(a)anthracene 1.8* 
Benzo(a)pyrene 2.1* 
Benzo(b)fluoranthene 2.1* 
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 2300.0 
Benzo(k)fluoranthene 9.0 
Chrysene 88.0 
Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 0.42* 
Fluoranthene 3,100.0 
Fluorene 560.0 

7 
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Naphthalene 
Phenanthrene 
Pyrene 
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1.6* 
1.8 

140.0 
2300.0 

•- valJUe replaced by background value from 35 Ill. Adm. Code § 742, Appendix A, Table 
H 

Tier 2 Clean-Up Objectives and modeling has been conducted in accordance with 35 Ill. 
Adm. Code § 742, and is included in Appendix E. In a review of the off-site soil results 
from site investigation, only BH2-8' , and BH19-7.5' exceed the Tier 1 Clean-Up 
Objectives in the table above. The contamination at BH-19 was determined to not be 
associatted with incident 2002-0431. The BH-2-8' sample exceeds the benzene Clean-Up 
Objective. It should be noted that Drawings showing soil values (0006A, 0006B, and 
0006C) and soil plumes (0008A, 0008B, and 0008C) in Appendix B have not been revised 
to show the application of background PNA values, but a new overall soil plume map 
showimg the area where soil contamination above background values and over TACO Tier 
1 CleaJo-Up Objectives has been prepared and included as Drawing 0012. 

Compatring the on site soil results from site investigation to the Tier 2 Clean-Up 
Objectives listed above, only BH9A, the sample from the three to four foot depth, exceeds 
any Ckan-Up Objectives. It exceeds the objectives for the Tier 1 Residential PNA 
components listed in the following table. 

Table 2-2. Soil Industrial Commercial Remediation Objectives 

TACO TACO 
Industrial I Constructi,on 
Commercial Worker Tie:r 1 

BH9-A Tier 1 Objective 
Result Objective (mg/kg) 

Parameter (mg/kg) (mg/kg) 
nenzo(a)anthracene 2.5 7.84 18 
l~enzo(a)pyrene 2.6 0.784 17.01 
Henzo(b)fluoranthene 2.5 8 170 
Dibenz(a, h)anthracene 0.54 0.467 17.01 
lndeno(l ,2,3-cd)pyrene 1.7 8 170 

Sample BH9-A exceeds the industrial I commercial ingestion pathway Clean-Up Objectives 
for bentzo(a)pyrene and dibenz(a,h)anthracene. Tier 2 ingestion values for these two 

8 
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constituents were calculated, but the calculated values were equal to or less than the Tier 1 
values, so the Tier 1 values wer'e used. 

Table 2-3. Groundwater Remediation Objectives 

TACO Residential 
Tier 1 Clean-up 

Objective 
Parameter (me/L) 

Benzene 0.005 
Ethylbenzene 0.7 
Toluene 1.0 
Total Xylenes 10.0 
MTBE 0.07 
Acenaphthene 0.42 
Acenaphtylene OJOl 
Anthracene 2.1 
Benzo(a)anthracene 0.00013 
Benzo(a)pyrene 0.0002 
Benzo(b )fluoranthene 0.00018 
Benzo(e,h,i)perylene 0.00076 
Benzo(k)fluoranthene 0.00017 
Chrysene 0.0015 
Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 0.0003 
Fluoranthene 0.28 
Fluorene 0.28 
lndeno(l ,2,3-cd)pyrene 0.00043 
Naphthalene 0.14 
Phenanthrene 0.0064 
Pyrene 0.210 

3. CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Based upon the analytical data from the soil boring and groundwater samples collected, it is 
apparent that soil contamination is present over the majority of the site, extending into the 
right-of-way of Route 159, where the ultimate limits were not defined due to denial of 
access, and onto the off-site property to the east, where it was defined through 
investigation. Groundwater contamination is very similar to the soil contamination in 

9 
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terms of the areas affected. All site investigation details were presented in the SICR 
ccw•M, 2016). 

The following CAP and Budget has been prepared by CW3M Company, Inc., as their 
recommendation for the most appropriate and economical approach to the remediation of 
the contamination at the Motomart site in Swansea, Illinois, Tier 2 CUOs were developed 
using various parameters to help determine the most beneficial and feasible outcome. 

Soil to groundwater and groundwater modeling in accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code § 
742 has been conducted, as depicted in Drawings 0011A for soil to groundwater modeling, 
and Drawing 00118 for groundwater modeling. The Village of Swansea has an existing 
groundwater use ordinance but it does not include the area affected by the potential 
groundwater contamination for lhis incident. It is proposed to request the Village to either 
amend the existing ordinance or to adopt another ordinance covering the area potentially 
affected by this release. 

Soil contamination will need to be addressed on three parcels, the site itself, the off-site 
property to the east, and the right-of-way of Route 159. 

The soil and groundwater contamination beneath Route 159 is proposed to be addressed 
through a Highway Authority Agreement (HAA) with the Illinois Department of 
Transportation (IDOT). The off-site soil contamination on the property to the east is 
minor, and the contamination was sampled in 2006. This CAP proposes to resample the 
location of BH2 to verify if contamination over TACO Tier 1 Clean-Up Objectives 
remains. Samples will be taken from the 8 and 14 foot depths and analyzed for BETX, 
MTBE, and PNAs to see if the contamination remains, or has travelled deeper. Should the 
results not prove that the contamination has diminished to a level below TACO Tier 1 
Clean-Up Objectives, a CAP Amendment will be prepared to address the contamination in 
a manner acceptable to the off-site property owner, such as an Environmental Land Use 
Control (ELUC) or an excavation to remove it. 

With the use of a groundwater ordinance and the acceptance of an industrial I commercial 
use restriction on the property, the only contamination that would need to be addressed in 
the soil contamination found at sample BH9-A. Given that the sample at BH9-A was 
obtained in 2007, it is proposed to resample BH-9 at the depths of 3-4 feet and 7-8 feet to 
see if the contamination still exceeds the TACO Tier 2 industrial/ commercial Clean-Up 
Objectives. If the results are not favorable, a CAP amendment proposing additional 
definition of the area exceeding the industrial I commercial inhalation pathway will be 
proposed. Once the affected area is defined, the owner I operator will then decide the 
preferable course of remediation of the affected area. 

10 
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The proposed soil investigation of BH2 to 15 feet, and BH9 to 10 feet will be conducted 
using the same techniques and protocols as used in Site Investigation as detailed in the 
SICR (CW3M, 2016). 

As dis,:ussed in the SlCR (CW3M, 2016), following the June, 2013 IEPA Leaking; 
Underground Storage Tank (LUST) flowchart for vapor intrusion assessment, C\\PM 
conduc:ted a screening evaluation of the site and assessment of data to date. While~ there is 
not free product in the monitoring wells, there is groundwater contamination present on 
and of1f site. No soil sample exceeded the soil saturation (Csat) limit. 

Groundwater elevation surveys to date show depth to groundwater measurements rto be at 
least 7 feet. Therefore the vertical separation distance is greater than the appropriate 
screeniing distance (5 ft) required for soil gas sampling in respect to groundwater 
contamination. Numerous manmade pathways for utilities intercept the area of 
contamination and lead to the station building. Therefore, a soil gas sampling is 
recommended for this site as groundwater contamination and pathways to the buildings 
meet the criteria to require soiJ gas sampling. Given these facts, a threat to the health and 
safety of the public from the inhalation of vapors from either groundwater or soil 
contamination is unlikely but still required when following the LUST flowchart for vapor 
intrusion assessment. 

Since the review and approval of the SICR contained no information to the contrary, a soil 
vapor iinvestigation is proposed to be conducted in the area of MW -1 , which has the largest 
modekd distances for contamination at the site. 

Assuming the soil vapor sampling and the proposed re-sarnpling results on site and off-site 
are favorable, a CACR will be prepared once the HAA and the groundwater ordinance are 
in plac,e. 

The attached CAP Budget includes the preparation of this report, as well as the pr·eparation 
of the CACR. The abandonment of the existing monitoring wells and the recording of the 
No Further Remediation (NFR) letter are also included in the proposed budget. 

3.1 CURRENT AND PROJECTED USES OF THE SITE 

The site is surrounded by commercial properties. The site is currently being used as an 
operating gas station and convenience store and will continue to be used for such purposes. 

l \ 
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3.2 INSTITIITIONAL CONTROLS PROPOSED 

The site has public water available and is not within the setback of a known potablle well, 
so a groundwater ordinance will be sought for the potentially impacted area. Soil and 
groundlwater contamination are known to exist beneath the right-of-way of Route :159, so a 
HAA with IDOT is proposed to address that contamination. The site itself has a 
commercial usage with no plans to change, so the site will accept an industrial / 
commercial land use restriction. There is known soil contamination on the property to the 
east of the subject site, which is proposed to be re-sampled in this CAP to verify that it 
remains. No institutional controls are proposed on that property at this time, but may be 
proposed later, if soil contamination is verified to still exist, and the controls are acceptable 
to the property owner. 

3.3 WATER SUPPLY WELL SURVEY 

A survey of water supply wells for the purpose of identifying and locating all community 
water supply wells within 2,500 feet of the UST systems and all potable water supply wells 
within 200 feet of the UST systems has been conducted. The Illinois State Water Survey 
(ISWS), the IIJinois State Geological Survey (ISGS) and the IEPA Division of Public Water 
Supplies were contacted via Source Water Assessment Program (SWAP) online. 

The ISGS, ISWS, and IEPA Division of Public Water Supplies were accessed onhne on 
March 27,2012 (EPA.STATE.IL.US, 2012). The response indicated that eight wells were 
located within 2,500 feet of the site and no wells are within the designated set bacllc zones. 
Also, the response stated that there are no community water supply wells located within 
2,500 feet of the site. A groundwater ordinance in effect for a portion of SwanseaL, but 
does not cover the subject site. It is located 2,165 feet from the USTs. Refer to Drawing 
0001C in Appendix B for a map depicting the well and groundwater ordinance locations. 

Table 3-1. Water Supply Well Information 

'iVell ID Type Depth of Distance From Setback Zcme 
Well USTs (feet) 
(feet) (feet) 

00216 ISGS 1 792 200 

00216 ISGS 231 950 200 

010273 ISGS 1 1,214 200 

01809 ISGS 95 1,426 200 
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01812 ISGS 

00272 ISGS 

28103 ISGS 

28104 ISGS 

R08030303 GWO 

3.4CLOSURE 

PREVIOUSLY U\iiAGED 

510 1,426 200 

125 1,637 200 

42 2,112 200 

30 2,112 200 

--- 2,165 200 

Once all CAP activities conclude, a CACR will be submitted to the IEPA. The closure 
report will be accompanied by a certification from an Illinois Registered Professional 
Engineer. Should the activities proposed in this CAP verify that on site and I or off-site 
soil contamination still remains above the allowable Clea.n-Up Objectives, then a CAP 
amendment will be prepared to address the unresolved issues. 

13 
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1 ne Agency is authorized to require this information under Section 4 and Title XVI of the Environmental Protection Act (415 ILCS 5/4, 5157- 57.17), 
Failure to disclose this information may result in a civil penalty of not to exceed $50,000.00 for the violation and an additional civil penalty of not to exceed 
$10,000.00 for each day during which the violation continues (4151LCS 5142). Any person who l<nowlngly makes a false material statement or 
representation, orally or in writing, in any label, manifest, record, report, permit, or license, or other document filed, maintained or used for the purpose of 
compliance with Tille XVI commits a Class 4 felony. Any second or subsequent offense after canvicUon hereunder is a Class 3 felony (4151LCS 5/44 and 
57.17). This form has been approved by the Forms Management Center. 

Leaking Underground Storage Tank Program 
Corrective Action Plan MAG· ED 

PREVIOUSLy I M 

A. Site Identification 

lEMA Incident# (6- or 8-digit}: =20.=..0:..:2:..:0...:.4.=..31.;__ ____ _ IEIPA LPC# (10-digit): 1631405021 

Site Name: MotoMart- Swansea 

Site Address (Not a P.O. Box): 1324 North Illinois St. (Route 159} 

City: Swansea County: _S_t._C_Ia_i_r __________ _ ZIP Code: 62221 ----------------

B. Site Information 

1. Will the owner or operator seek reimbursement from the Underground Storage Tank Fund? 0 Yes 0 No 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

If yes, is the budget attached? 0 Yes 0 
Is this an amended plan? D Yes 0 
Identify the material(s) released: heating oil 

This Corrective Action Plan is submitted pursuant to: 

a. 35 Ill. Adm. Code 731.166 

The material released was: 

-petroleum 

No 

No 

-hazardous substance (see Environmental 
Protection Act Section 3.215) 

b. 35 Ill. Adm. Code 732.404 

c. 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734.335 

C. Proposed Methods of Remediation 

1. Soil Re-evaluation, HAA 
2. Groundwater Groundwater Ordinance, HAA 

D. Soil and Groundwater Investigation Results 

0 

0 
D 

0 
0 

RECEIVED 
OCT 11 2016 

IEPA/BOL 

(for incidents subject to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 731 only or 732 that were classified using Method One or Two, if not previously provided) 

Provide the following: 

1. Description of investigation activities performed to define the extents of soil and/or groundwater contamination; 

2. Analytical results, chain-of-custody forms, and laboratory certifications; 

3. Tables comparing analytical results to applicable remediation objectives; 

IL 532 2287 
LPC 513 Rev. July 2007 

Corrective Action Plan 

Page 1 of4 
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4. Boring logs; 

5. Monitoring well logs; and 

6. Site maps meeting the requirements of 3!5 Ill. Adm. Code 732.11 O(a) or 734.440 and showing: 

a. Soil sample locations; 

b. Monitoring well locations; and 

c. Plumes of soil and groundwater contamination. 

E. Technical Information- Corrective Action Plan 

Provide the following: 

PREVIOUSLY 1~1AGED 

1, Executive summary identifying the objectives of the corrective action plan and the technical approach to be utilized 
to meet such objectives; 

a. The major components (e.g. , treatm(;mt, containment, removal) of the corrective action plan; 

b. The scope of the problems to be addressed by the proposed corrective action; and 

c. A schedule for implementation and completion of the plan; 

2. Identification of the remediation objective!S proposed for the site; 

3. A description of the remedial technologie:s selected: 

a. The feasibility of implementing the rElmedial technologies; 

b. Whether the remedial technologies will perform satisfactorily and reliably until the remediation objectives 
are achieved; and 

c. A schedule of when the technologies; are expected to achieve the applicable remediation objectives; 

4. A confirmation sampling plan that describes how the effectiveness of the corrective action activities will be monitored 
during their implementation and after their completion; 

5. A description of the current and projected future uses of the site; 

6. A description of engineered barriers or institutional controls that will be relied upon to achieve remediation objectives: 

a. an assessment of their long-term reliability; 

b. operating and maintenance plans; and 

c. maps showing area covered by barri,ers and institutional controls; 

7. The water supply well survey: 

a. Map(s) showing locations of community water supply wells and other potable wells and the setback zone 
for each well; 

b. Map(s) showing regulated recharge areas and wellhead protection areas; 

c. Map(s) showing the current extent of groundwater contamination exceeding the most stringent Tier 1 remediation 
objectives; 

d. Map(s) showing the modeled extent of groundwater contamination exceeding the most stringent Tier 1 
remediation objectives; 

e. Tables listing the setback zone for each community water supply well and other potable water supply wells; 

f. A narrative identifying each entity COflltacted to identify potable water supply wells, the name and title of each 
person contacted, and any field obse~rvations associated with any wells identified; and 

g. A certification from a Licensed ProfeJssional Engineer or Licensed Professional Geologist that the survey was 
conducted in accordance with the re!quirements and that documentation submitted includes information 
obtained as a result of the survey (certification of this plan satisfies this requirement}; 

Corrective Action Plan 
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8. Appendices: 

a. References and data sources report that are organized; and 

b. Field logs, well logs, and reports of laboratory analyses; 

9. Site map(s) meeting the requirements of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 732,11 O(a) or 734.440; 

10. Engineering design specifications, diagrams, schematics, calculations, manufacturer's specifications, etc.; 

11, A description of bench/pilot studies; 

12. Cost comparison between proposed method of remediation and other methods of remediation; 

13. For the proposed Tier 2 or 3 remediation objectives, provide the following: 

a. The equations used; 

b. A discussion of how input variables were determined; PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 
c. Map(s) depicting distances used in equations; and 

d. Calculations; and 

14. Provide documentation to demonstrate the following for alternative technologies: 

a. The proposed alternative technology has a substantial likelihood of successfully achieving compliance with all 
applicable regulations and remediation objectives; 

b. The proposed alternative technology will not adversely affect human health and safety or the environment; 

c. The owner or operator will obtain all Illinois EPA permits necessary to legally authorize use of the alternative 
technology; 

d. The owner or operator will implement a program to monitor whether the requirements of subsection (14)(a) have 
been met; 

e. Within one year from the date of Illinois EPA approval, the owner or operator will provide to the Illinois EPA 
monitoring program results establishing whether the proposed alternative technology will successfully achieve 
compliance with the requirements of subsection (14)(a); and 

f. Demonstration that the cost of alternative technology will not exceed the cost of conventional technology and is 
not substantially higher than at least two other alternative technologies, if available and technically feasible. 

F. Exposure Pathway Exclusion 
Provide the following: 

1. A description of the tests to be performed in determining whether the following requirements will be met: 

a. Attenuation capacity of the soil will not be exceeded for any of the organic contaminants; 

b. Soil saturation limit will not be exceeded for any of the organic contaminants; 

c. Contaminated soils do not exhibit any of the reactivity characteristics of hazardous waste per 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
721.123; 

d. Contaminated soils do not exhibit a pHs 2.0 or~ 12.5; and 

e. Contaminated soils which contain arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, or selenium (or their 
associated salts) do not exhibit any of the toxicity characteristics of hazardous waste per 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
721.124. 

2. A discussion of how any exposure pathways are to be excluded. 

Corrective Action Plan 
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G. Signatures 

All plans, budgets, and reports must be signed by the owner or operator and list the owner's or operator's full name, 
address, and telephone number. 

UST Owner or Operator 

Name Moto, Inc. 

Contact Rob Whittington 

Address 721 W. Main Street 

City Belleville 

State .:.:IL=---- -------------­

Zip Code :::..6=.:22=2=2~----------­

Phone 618-23. 3-6754 ~==~J5Lc 
Signature a~ 
Date q/, 1? );6 

7 7 

Company CWM Company, Inc. 

Contact Carol L. Rowe 

Address 7001 W. South Grand Ave. 

City Springfield 

State .:.:ll=-----------------
Zip Code :::..6::::...27:..:0:..:4:...._ ___________ _ 

:~:::ur:17 -[j2 
Date ;Jiiiii 

I certify under penalty of law that all activities that are the subject of this plan were conducted under my supervision or 
were conducted under the supervision of another Licensed Professional Engineer or Licensed Professional Geologist and 
reviewed by me; that this plan and all attachments were prepared under my supervision; that, to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, the work described in this plan has been completed in accordance with the Environmental Protection Act [415 
ILCS 5], 35 Ill. Adm. Code 731, 732 or 734, and generally accepted standards and practices of my profession; and that 
the information presented is accurate and complete. I am aware there are significant penalties for submitting false 
statements or representations to the Illinois EPA, including but not limited to fines, imprisonment, or both as provided in 
Sections 44 and 57.17 of the Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/44 and 57. 17). 

Licensed Professional Engineer or Geologist 

Name Vince E. Smith 

Company CWM Company, Inc. 

Address 701 W. South Grand Ave. 

City Springfield 

State .:.:IL=-----------------­

Zip Code :::..6:::...27:..:0:...:4~-----------­
Phone 217-522-8001 

Ill. Registration No. .::0.:::..62::::...--=0-=-46=-1.:...1:...:8 _______ _ 

License Expira~n ~e, ..:.1--=1 f.-::3-=-~/'--1'7'-7..,...-;.------­
Signature cg__£Jd(fti! 
Date /fQ/17 

Corrective Action Plan 
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CW'M Company, Inc. 
Corrective Action Plan & Budget 
Swansea I MotoMart - Swansea 
LPC #1631405021 - Incident #2002·0431 

PREVIOUSLY ll\liAGED 

INDEX OF DRAWINGS 

Drawing Description File Name 

Number 

OOOlA Site Location Map SiteMap.doc 

OOOIB Topographic Map TopoMap.doc 

0001C Well Survey Map wells.doc 

0002 Site Map Site 

0003 Soil Boring Location Map SB Loc 

0004 Monitoring Well Location Map MWLoc 

0005 Monitoring Well Elevation Map MW Elev 

0005A Groundwater Elevation Map (October 2006) ow 10-5-06 

0005B Groundwater Elevation Map (December 2008) ow 12-2-08 

0006A Soil Contamination Values Map (0-5 Feet) Soil Con 0-5 

0006B Soil Contamination Values Map (5-10 Feet) Soil Con 5-10 

0006C Soil Contamination Values Map (10-15 Feet) Soil Con 10-15 

0007 Groundwater Contamination Values Map OW Con 

0008A Soil Contamination Plume Map (0-5 Feet) Soil Plume 0-5 

0008B Soil Contamination Plume Map_{5-10 Feet) Soil Plume 5-10 

0008C Soil Contamination Plume Map (10-15 Feet) Soil Plume 10-15 

0009 Groundwater Contamination Plume Map OW Plume 

0010 TACO Parameters Map TACO 

OOllA Modeled Soil Contamination Map Modeled Soil 

0011B Modeled Groundwater Contamination Map Modeled OW 

0012 Soil Contamination Over Background Plume Map Background 

17 
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~ 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN BUDGET AND 
CERTIFICA liiON 

~__...._~ CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
MOTOMART 

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS 
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PREVIOUSLY IMN'YED 

Owner/Operator and Licensed Professional Engineer/Geologist Budget 
Certification Form 

I hereby certify that I intend to seek payment from the UST Fund for costs incurred while performing corrective action 
activities for Leaking UST incident 2002-0431 . I further certify that the costs set forth in 
this budget are for necessary activities and are reasonable and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. I 
also certify that the costs included in this budget are not for corrective action in excess of the minimum requirements 
of 415 ILCS 5/57, no costs are included in this budget that are not described in the corrective action plan, and no 
costs exceed Subpart H: Maximum Payment Amounts, Appendix D Sample Handling and Analysis amounts, and 
Appendix E Personnel Titles and Rates of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 732 or 734. I further certify that costs ineligible for 
payment from the Fund pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 732.606 or 734.630 are not included in the budget proposal or 
amendment. Such ineligible costs include but are not limited to: 

Costs associated with ineligible tanks. 
Costs associated with site restoration (e.g., pump islands, canopies). 
Costs associated with utility replacement (e.g., sewers, electrical, telephone, etc.). 
Costs incurred prior to lEMA notification. 
Costs associated with planned tank pulls. 
Legal fees or costs. 
Costs incurred prior to July 28, 1989. 
Costs associated with installation of new USTs or the repair of existing USTs. 

Owner/Operator: .:.:.M.:.:o~to:.:.·~ln:.:.:c:.:... _____________ ________________ _ 

Seal 

(Notary Public) 

Title: Environmental Manager 

Date: 9 )z 'l? )~ 

Helen MODell 
Notary Public, State of I 

St. Clair County 
My Commission Expires June 20, 2 

IV ED 

In addition, 1 certify under penalty of law that all activities that are tne subject of this plan, budget,I~JA f"'\ L 
conducted under my supervision or were conducted under the supervision of another Licensed Pfomlio~~~ 
or Licensed Professional Geologist and reviewed by me; that this plan, budget, or report and all attachments were 
prepared under my supervision; that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the work described in the plan, budget, 
or report has been completed in accordance with the Environmental Protection Act (4151LCS 5), 35111. Adm. Code 
732 or 734, and generally accepted standards and practices of my profession; and that the information presented is 
accurate and complete. I am aware there are significant penalties for submitting false statements or representations 
to the Illinois EPA, including but not limited to fines, imprisonment, or both as provided in Se$i9.QS ·4~1~d 57.17 of the 
Environmental Protection Act [4151LCS 5/44 and 57.17]. /,!1. "- ~ ~ .. ,~, 

l'.l!J~~-
L.P.E./L.P.G.: Vince E. Smith L.P.E./L.P.G. Seal: ,f f .. ·~~ ''li- :~ 

7· ~.~_u, Date·. M~.~ ~ 
L.P.E./L.P.G. Signature: ~ c_ .L:E.... 

rd.-
Subscribed and sworn to be~o e the 0 day of {)e::ft;/Jer 

p Seal: 

(Notaryub IC) 

The Illinois EPA Is authorized to require this information under 415 ILCS 5/1 . Disclosure of this information is 
required. Failure to do so may result in the delay or denial of any budget or payment requested hereunder. 
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Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Bureau of Land • 1021 N. Grand Avenue E. • P.O. Box 19276 • Springfield • Illinois • 62794-9276 

General Information for the Budg,et and Billing Form REVIOUSLY U\ilAGED 

LPC #: 1631405021 

City: Swansea 

County: St. Clair 
~~~------------------------

Site Name: MotoMart- Swansea 

Site Address: 1324 North Illinois Street (Route 159 

lEMA Incident No.: 2002-0431 

lEMA Notification Date: Apr 3, 2002 

Date this form was prepared: ...:.S...:..e"-p...:..1.:....:5•...:.2:....:.0...:.16.:...._ ____________ _ 

This form is being submitted as a (check one, if applicable): 

12:1 Budget Proposal 

0 Budget Amendment (Budget amendments must include only the costs over the previous budget.) 

0 Billing Package 

Please provide the name(s) and date(s) of report(s) documenting the costs requested: 

Name(s): 

Date(s): 

This package Is being submitted for the site activities indicated below: 

35 Ill. Adm. Code 734: 

0 Early Action 

0 Free Product Removal after Early Action 

D Site Investigation . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . Stage 1: D 
12:1 Corrective Action Actual Costs 

35 Ill. Adm. Code 732: 

D Early Action 

D Free Product Removal after Early Action 

D Site Classification 

D Low Priority Corrective Action 

0 High Priority Corrective Action 

35 Ill. Adm. Code 731: 

D Site Investigation 

0 Corrective Action 

IL 532 -2825 
LPC 630 Rev. 1/2007 

Stage2: D 

RECEIVED 
OCT II 2016 

IEPA/BOL 

Stage 3: 0 
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PREVIOUSLY L1iAGED 
General Information for the Budget and Billing Forms 

The following address will be used as the mailing address for checks and any final determination letters 
regarding payment from the Fund. 

Pay to the order of: .;.;M.;.:o:..;;.to::..:•.;.:l;,..;,nc;:.;. __________________________ _ 

Send in care of: CW M Company, Inc. 

Address: P.O. Box 571 

City: Carlinville State: IL ,;,:;_;, _____ _ Zip: 62626 

The payee is the: Owner (gJ Operator O (Check one or both.) 

W~9 must be submitted. 
Click here to print off a W~9 Form. 

Number of petroleum USTs in Illinois presently owned or operated by the owner or operator; any subsidiary, 
parent or joint stock company of the owner or operator; and any company owned by any parent, subsidiary 
or joint stock company of the owner or operator: 

Fewer than 101: 0 101 or more: ~ 

Number of USTs at the site: 5 (Number of USTs includes USTs presently at the site and USTs that 
----

have been removed.) 

Number of incidents reported to lEMA for this site: 1 
--------------------~ 

Incident Numbers assigned to the site due to releases from USTs: 2002~0431 

Please fist all tanks that have ever been located at the site and tanks that are presently located at the site. 

Product Stored in UST Size Did UST have Incident No. Type of Release 
(gallons) ---a release? Tank Leak I Ove-rfllrT -

Piping Leak 

Gasoline 10,000 Yes 0 No 181 

Gasoline 8,000 Yes D No 181 

Gasoline 4,000 Yes D No [8] 

Diesel Fuel 6,000 Yes D No 181 

Heating Oil 560 Yes 0 NoD 2002~0431 Tank Leak 

Yes 0 NoD 

Yes D NoD 

Yes 0 NoD 

Yes D NoD 

Add More Rows I I Undo Last Add 
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Budget Summary PREVJOUSL Y U\liAGEO 

Choose the applicable regulation: le' 734 (' 732 

734 Free Product 
Stage 1 Site Stage 2 Site Stage 3 Site Corrective 
Investigation Investigation Investigation Action 

Proposed 

Drilling and Monitoring 
Well Costs Form $ $ $ $ $ 2,033.75 

Analytical Costs Form $ $ $ $ $ 1,661.72 

Remediation and 
Disposal Costs Form $ $ $ $ $ 

UST Removal and 
Abandonment Costs $ $ $ $ $ 

Form 

Paving, Demolition, and 
Well Abandonment Costs $ $ $ $ $ 2,191.00 

Form 

Consulting Personnel 
$ $ $ $ $ 38,571 .22 Costs Form 

Consultant's Materials 
Costs Form $ $ $ $ $ 1,492.50 

Handling charges will be determined at the time a billing package is submitted to 
Handling Charges Form the Illinois EPA. The amount of allowable handling charges will be determined in 

accordance with the Handling Charges Form. 

Total $ $ $ $ $ 45,950.19 
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Drilling and Monitoring Well Costs Form PREVIOUSLY IMP,GED 

1. Drilling 

Number of Type Depth (feet) 
Total Feet 

Borings to Be HSNPUSHI of Each 
Drilled 

Reason for Drilling 
Drilled Injection 

1 HSA 

1 PUSH 

1 PUSH 

181 Subpart H 
minimum payment 
amount applies. 

Boring 

5.00 

15.00 

10.00 

Total Feet via HSA: 

Total Feet via PUSH: 

Total Feet for Injection 
via PUSH: 

2. Monitoring I Recovery Wells 

5.00 Vapor Intrusion Assessment 

15.00 Soil Investigation 

10.00 Soil investigation 

Total Feet Rate per Foot($) Total Cost($) 

5.00 28.79 143.95 

25.00 22.53 563.25 

18.59 

Total Drilling Costs: 1,877.30 

Number of Type of Well Diameter of Well Depth of Well Total Feet of Wells 
HSA I PUSH I 4" or 6" Wells 

Recovery I B" Recovery 
(inches) (feet) to Be Installed ($) 

1 4" or 6" Recovery 4.00 5.00 5.00 

Well Installation Total Feet Rate per Foot ($) Total Cost($) 

Total Feet via HSA: 

Total Feet via PUSH: 

Total Feet of 4" or 6" 
Recovery: 5.00 31.29 156.45 

Total Feet of 8" or 
Greater Recovery: 

Total Well Costs: 156.45 

Total Drilling and Monitoring Well Costs: $2,033.75 
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Analytical Costs Form PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 

Laboratory Analysis Number of Cost($) per Total per 

~ Samples Analysis Parameter 

Chemical Analysis 

BETX Soil with MTBE EPA 8260 4 X 106.38 = $425.52 

BETX Water with MTBE EPA 8260 X = 
COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand} X = 
Corrosivity X = 
Flash Point or lgnitability Analysis EPA 1010 X = 
Fraction Organic Carbon Content (f0 c) ASTM-D 2974-00 X = 
Fat, Oil, & Grease (FOG) X = 
LUST Pollutants Soil - analysis must include volatile, base/ 
neutral, polynuclear aromatics and metals list in Section 732. 

X = 
Appendix 8 and 734.Appendix 8 

Dissolved Oxygen (DO} X = 
Paint Filter (Free Liquids) X = 
PCB I Pesticides (combination) X = 
PCBs X = 
Pesticides X = 
pH X = 
Phenol X = 
Polynuclear Aromatics PNA, or PAH SOIL EPA S270 4 X 190.24 = $760.96 

Polynuclear Aromatics PNA, or PAH WATER EPA 8270 X = 
Reactivity X = 
SVOC - Soil (Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds} X = 
SVOC- Water (Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds) X = 
TKN (Total Kjeldahl) "nitrogen" X = 
TPH (Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons) X = 
VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds} - Soil (Non-Aqueous) X = 
VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds} - Water X = 
Vaoor Intrusion Samnlino 1 X 300.00 = $300.00 

X = 
X = 
X = 
X = 

Geo-Technical Analysis 

Soil Bulk Density (Pb) ASTM D2937-94 X = 

Ex-situ Hydraulic Conductivity I Permeability X = 
Moisture Content (w) ASTM D2216-921 D4643-93 X = 
Porosity X = 
Rock Hydraulic Conductivity Ex-situ X = 
Sieve I Particle Size Analysis ASTM D422-63 I D1 140-54 X = 
Soil Classification ASTM D2488-90 I D2487-90 X = 
Soil Particle Density (Ps) ASTM D854-92 X = 

X = 
X = 
X = 
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Analytical Costs Form PREVIOUSLY lfv1PlGED 

Metals Analysis 

0 Soil preparation fee for Metals TCLP Soil (one fee1 per soli sample) X = 
Soil preparation fee for Metals Total Soil (one fee per soil sample) X = 
Water preparation fee for Metals Water (one fee p•er water sample) X = 

Arsenic TCLP Soil X = 
Arsenic Total Soil X = 
Arsenic Water X = 
Barium TCLP Soil X = 
Barium Total Soil X = 
Barium Water X = 
Cadmium TCLP Soil X = 
Cadmium Total Soil X = 
Cadmium Water X = 
Chromium TCLP Soil X = 
Chromium Total Soli X = 
Chromium Water X = 
Cyanide TCLP Soil X = 
Cyanide Total Soil X = 
Cyanide Water X = 
Iron TCLP Soil X = 
Iron Total Soil X = 
Iron Water X = 
Lead TCLP Soil X = 
Lead Total Soil X = 
Lead Water X = 
Mercury TCLP Soil X = 
Mercury Total Soil X = 
Mercury Water X = 
Selenium TCLP Soil X = 
Selenium Total Soil X = 
Selenium Water X = 
Silver TCLP Soil X = 
Silver Total Soil X = 
Silver Water X = 
Metals TCLP Soil (a combination of all metals) RCRA X = 
Metals Total Soil (a combination of all metals) RCRA X = 
Metals Water (a combination of all metals) RCRA X = 

X = 
X = 
X = 
X = 

Other 
EnCore® Sampler, purge-and-trap sampler, or equivalent 4 X 12.52 = $50.08 
sampling device 

Sample Shipping per sampling event1 2 X 62.58 = $125.16 

1 A sampling event, at a minimum, is all samples (Sioil and groundwater) collected in a calendar day. 

Total Analytical Costs: $ 1,661.72 --'-------
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Paving, Demolition, and Well Abandonment Costs Form 

A. Concrete and Asphalt PlacementJ'Replacement 
PREVIOUSLY 1~1AGED 

Number of Asphalt or Thilckness 
Square Feet Concrete (inches) 

Cost($) per 
Replacement or 
Placement for an 

Square Foot Engineered Barrier 

Total Concrete and Asphalt 
Placement/Replacement Costs: 

B. Building Destruction or Dismantling and Canopy Removal 

Item to Be Destroyed, Dismantled, or Removed Unit Cost ($) 

!lrotal Building Destruction or Dismantling and L Canopy Removal Costs: 

Total Cost 

Total Cost ($) 
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Paving, Demolition, and Well Abandonment Costs Form 

PREVIOUSLY 1~\ilAGEQ 
C. Well Abandonment 

Monitoring WeiiiD # Type of Well Depth of Cost($) Total Cost 
(HSA I PUSH Well (feet) per Foot 
I Recovery) 

MW-1 HSA 20.00 12.52 $250.40 

MW-2 HSA 20.00 12.52 $250.40 

MW-3 HSA 15.00 12.52 $187.80 

MW-4 HSA 20.00 12.52 $250.40 

MW-5 HSA 20.00 12.52 $250.40 

MW-0 HSA 20.00 12.52 $250.40 

MW-7 HSA 15.00 12.52 $187.80 

MW-8 HSA 15.00 12.52 $187.80 

MW-9 HSA 15.00 12.52 $187.80 

MW-10 HSA 15.00 12.52 $187.80 

Total Monitoring Well Abandonment Costs: $2,191.00 

Total Paving, Demolition, and Well Abandonment Costs: $2,191.00 
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I Engineer Ill I 8.00 I 125.151 $1,001.20 

TAC02or3 I TACO GW Modeling I Plume Delineation 

I Engineer Ill I 12.00 I 125.151 $1 ,501.80 

TACO 2 or3 I TACO Tier 2 Calculations I Development of CUOs 

Senior Project Manager 
$500.60 

TAC02or3 
TACO Tier 2 Evaluation I Calculation I Modeling Review I Assessment of Analytical 
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PR~IOUSt" ~fl :A .~.~-;: 
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PREVIOUSLY !Ivll;GED 
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Consultant's Materials Costs Form 

0 
Materials, Equipment, or Field Purchase I Time or I 

I Unit I Total 
Amount Used Rate($) 

Cost 

Remediation Category I Description/Justification 

Copies I 600.001 .151 /each I $90.00 

CCAP I Copies of Plan and Report I Draft Plan 

Postage I 3.ool s.ool /eachl $18.00 

CCAP I Report! Forms/ Draft/ Distribution 

Copies I 300.00 I .151 /each I $45.00 

CCAP-Budget I Copies of Budget/ Draft 

Postage I 3.ool 6.ool /each I $18.00 

CCAP-Budget j Budget Distribution 

Copies 1 800.001 .151 /each I $120.00 

CACR I Copies of Completion Report and Attachments/ Draft 

Postage I 3.ool s.ool /each I $18.00 

CACR I Completion Report Distribution/ Draft 

Copies I 1,200.00! .151 /each I $180.00 

CA-Pay I Copies of Reimbursement Claims 

Postage l 6.oo] 6.ool /each I $36.00 

CA-Pay I Reimbursement Distribution/ Forms 

Field Purchase I 1.001 68.001 /each I $68.00 

CACR I NFR Recording Fees 

PREVIOUSLY f~]PiGED 
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Materials, Equipment, or Field Purchase I Time or I Rate($) I Unit I Total 
Amount Used Cost 

Remediation Category I Description/Justification 

0 

~ J 4.ool 6.ool /each I Postage 

CACR I NFR Recording I Correspondence/ CountyiiEPN Client 

Copies 150.00 .15 ~ CACR NFR I Recording I Submittal/tEPA Correspondence 

~ 
Copies 150.00 .15 ~ ELUC Ordinance Submittal and Notifications 

Postage 8.00 6.00 ~ e ELUC Ordinance Submittal and Notifications 

Mileage 400.00 .65 ~ CCA-Field 2 Round Trips from Springfield Office to Site (Drilling/ Vapor Sampling) 

Water Levellndicato1r 1.00 28.00 ~ CCA-Fieild Test for Groundwater During Drilling Activities 

Disposable Gloves 1.00 16.00 ~ CCA-Fielld Disposable Latex Gloves for Soil and Vapor Sampling 

PID Rental 1.00 148.00 ~ CCA-Fielld Test VOC Levels in Soil Samples 

PREVIOU.SL Y Hv~ .. GED 
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Materials, Equipment, or Field Purch;ase I Time or I Rate($) I Unit I Total 
Amount Used Cost 

Remediation Category I Description/Justification 

(_ 
I 1.ool 2oo.oo l /each I Shroud supplies, canister and regulator rental $200.00 

CCA-Field I Shroud construction and operation materials, rental of gas canister and regulator 

Total of Consultant Materials Costs $1,492.50 

PREVIOUSLY l~lP .. GED 
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1~RRENDIX E 

TACO VARIABLES AND EQUATIONS & 
HYDRA~.ULIC CONDUCTIVITY 

<::::ALCULATIONS 

.GE 

CORID~CTIVE ACTION PLAN 
MOTOMART 

S'V ANSEA, ILLINOIS 
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Tier1 
Residential 

wlthGW 
Parameter Class ICUO 

Benzene 0.03 
Ethylbenzene 13.0 
Toluene 12.0 
Total Xylenes 5.6 
Benzo(a)anthracene 0.9 
Benzo(a)pyrene 0.09 
Benzo(b)fluoranthene 0.9 
Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 0.09 
lndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 0.9 
All values in mg/kg 

Tier 1 
1/C 

MotoMart- Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Soil CUOs 

A!)~ndixA 

Table H 
wlthoutGW Background 

1.6 
400 
650 
320 
8. 1.8 

0.8 2.1 
8. 2.1 

0.8 0.42 
8. 1.6 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier2 
cw cw 1/C 

wlthoutGW 

2.2 4.52 3.21 
58 10,202 389.64 
42 371.27 371.29 
5.6 46.17 46.17 
170 
17 

170 
17 

170 
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Benzene 
Residential Ingestion 12 

Inhalation 0.8 
Migration Class 1 0.03 
Migration Class 2 0.17 

lnduslriaUCommercial Ingestion 100 
Inhalation 1.60 

Construction Worker Ingestion 2.300 
Inhalation 2.20 

Soil Saturation 580 

Ben;,ene 

l~r;,sa~:::~ 1 

Migration Ma• -~irnH ' 1 
Migration Class 1 

.. uu~u ~~r;,sa~::~ 11 . )6 

Migration M••• imlt Class 1 
Migration Class 1 0.)70 

•u• ouu• 1WOrl<er .~~"lio" 2,258.21 
Inhalation 4.52 

I Soil .2ss · 

all values are in mg/l<g 

Summary of Tier 2 Calculations 
MotoMart- Swansea 

2002..()431 
07/26/16 

Table 3 

Tier 1 Ob]eatlves 
Toluene Ethyl benzene 

mQ/kq 16,000 mg/kg 7,800 
mQ/k!l 650 mg/kg 400 
ITiglkg 12 mg/kg 13 
mg/kg 29 mg/kg 19 
mg/kg 410.000 mg/kg 200,000 
mg/kg 6SO mg/kg 400 
ITlg/l<g 410.000 mg/kg 20,000 
mg/kg 42 mg/kg 58 
mg/kg 290 mglkg 150 

Tler 2 SSL 
Eq tion roluen_e_ _Equation 

6,2!i7 5-1 7,821 
S-4 
'-28 i9.85 

73 ,., 12.09 
S-< 1, .200 5-1 _2( 400 
s.E 
i-2i !8 .85 

t7 26.13 .09 
5-3 163.236 s-

~ s-; 371.27 s-~ 
5-29 708.29 ~9 

Total Xylenes Naphthalene 
mglkg 16,000 lmg/kg 1,600 
mg/kg 320 mglkg 170 
mg/kg 150 lmglkg 12 
mg/kg 150 mglkg 18 
mg/kg 410.000 mg/kg 41.000 
mg/kg ~20 mg/kg 270 
mg/kg 41.000 mglkg 4,100 
mg/kg 5.6 mglkg 1.80 
mg/kg 110 fmg/kg 100.57 

Equation rotal Xylenes Equation 
S-t 15 .643 S-1 1,564 
S-4 ~~ ~ S-4 150.72 

5-28 ~~ ~- 5-28 _11.97 
_§-17 ~ 5-17 9.08 
s-· 401 ,600 S·1 40,660 
)-4 ~ ~ )-4 239. 16 
;.28 ~'~ ~ ~'~ ~28 1.9 
;..t; ~'~ ~ ~'~ ;..1~ 1.0! 
)..1 81.618 )..1 1: !.4: 
>-5 46.17 S-5 .5~ 
;.29 30012 ;..29 100.! 

~ S1te Specific Value cannot exceed SoH Saturation liml~ otherwise ner 2 Inhalation or Tier 2 Migration objecUves are the Soil SaturaUon objectiVe 

mg/kg 
mglkg 
mg/kg 
mglkg 
mg/kg 
mg/kg 
mg/kg 
mg/kg 
mg/kg 

Equalion 
5-1 
S-4 
S-28 
5-17 
s-· 
;-4 
;..28 
~17 

)..1 
)..5 
;.29 

MTBE 
780 mg/!(g 

8.800 mg/kg 
0.:32 mg/kg 
0.32 mg/kg 

20,000 mg/kg 
8.800 mg!kg 
2.000 mgJkg 

1<10 mg/kg 
8.400 mg/kg 

MTBE 
782.1 5-1 

S-4 
i.98 i-28 
1.58 17 

211,44 ).._1 

i.98 
1.58 
1,405 s-· 
18.3' 5-l 

21 118.9/ i-29 

MTSE 
#OIV/01 R-26 

'"U 
:0 
~ 
5 
c 
Ul 

~ 
~ 
•. t> 
G) 
m 
0 
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PREVIOUSLY IMJJlGED 

Section 742.APPENDIX A: General 
Section 742.TABLE H Concentrations of Polynuclear Arom~ttic Hydrocarbon Chemicals in 
Background Soils 

Chemical Name Chicago a Metropolitan Non-Metropolitan 
mglkg Areasb Areasc 

(mg/kg) (mglkg) 

2-Methylnaphthalene ----- 0.14 0.29 

Acenaphthene 0.09 0.13 0.04 

Acenaphthylene 0.03 0.07 0.04 

Anthracene 0.25 0.40 0.14 

Benzo( a)anthracene 1.1 1.8 0.72 

Benzo(a)pyrene 1.3 2.1 0.98 

Benzo(b )fluoranthene 1.5 2.1 0.70 

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 0.68 1.7 0.84 

Benzo(k)fluoranthene 0.99 1.7 0.63 

Chrysene 1.2 2.7 1.1 

Dibenzo( a,h)anthracene 0.20 0.42 0.15 

Fluoranthene 2.7 4.1 1.8 

Fluorene 0.10 0.18 0.04 

Indeno(l,2,3-c,d)pyrene 0.86 1.6 0.51 

Naphthalene 0.04 0.20 0.17 

Phenanthrene 1.3 2.5 0.99 

Pyrene 1.9 3.0 1.2 

a Chicago means within the corporate limits of the City of Chicago. 

b Metropolitan area means a populated area, as defined in Section 742.200, (other than the City 
of Chicago) that is located within any county in a Metropolitan Statistical Area listed in 
Appendix A, Table G, footnote a. 

c Non-Metropolitan area means a populated area, as defined in Section 742.200, that is not 
located within any county in a Metropolitan Statistical Area listed in Appendix A, Table G, 
footnote a. 

(Source: Appendix A, Table H renumbered to Appendix A, Table I and new Appendix A, Table 
H Added at 31lll, Reg. 4063, effective February 23, 2007) 
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A. Site Identification 

Illinois Envlromental Protection Agency 
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Program 

SSL Input Parameters for Use with Tier 2 Calculations 

lEMA Incident# (6- or 8-digit): 2002-0431 I EPA LPC # (10-digit): 1631405021 

Site Name; MotoMart - Swansea 

Site Address (not a P.O . Box): 1324 North Illinois 

City: Swansea County: St. Clair Zip Code: -=6=22::.:2:...:1'-------

Leaking UST Technical File 

B. Tier 2 Calculation Information 

Equation(s) Used (ex: S12,S17,S28): ....:S:..::5ct.::,6:..:..,7'-'-, 8::..:·~9,c.:.1::..:0,'"'"17'-'''-'-18::..:•c...;.19::..:•=20::..:•=21-'-"'=22"'-,2=-4'-------------

Contact lnfonnation for Individual Who Performed Calculations: 

CWM Company, Inc., VES 

Land Use: Residential 
~~~~---------

Soil Type: loamy Sand 

Class II Groundwater: [R] Class 1 D 
Mass Limit: D Yes [K] No If Yes, then Specify Acreage: 

- Mass Limit Acreage other than defaults must always be rounded up. 
-Failure to use site-specific parameters where allowed could affect payment from the UST Fund 
-Maps depicting source width, plume dimensions, distance, etc. must also be submitted. 
- Inputs must be submitted in the designated unit. 

AT (ingestion) : Residential = 6 yr da = 3.048 

Con. Worker= 0.115 yr d, = 3.048 

AT (inhalation) ; Residential ,. 30 yr OA ; Benzene: 0.00129967021009136 

Con. Worker= 0.115 yr Toluene s 0.000790137682765876 

ATe = 70 yr Elhylbenzene e 0.000~7~8022317:!0363 

BW = Res. (NonCarclnogen)"' 15 kg Xylenes • 0.000327009-46436i197 

Res. (Carcinogen): 70 kg MTBE • 0.000268730620195097 

Con. Worker = 70 kg Naphthalene~ 1.62697528722497E-05 

c •• , = Benzene = 1255.7 mg/kg 

Toluene= 708.287 mg/kg 
Ethylbenzene = 389.639 mg/kg 
Total Xylenes = 300.123 mg/l<g 

MTBE = 21018.967 mg/kg 
Naphthalene= 100.568 mg/kg 

mg/kg 
mg/kg 
mg/kg 
mg/kg 

PREVIOUS~V ll\!Y:~ED 

m 

m 

cm2/s 
cm2/s 
cm

2/s 

cm2/s 

cm2/s 
cm2/s 
cm2/s 

cm2/s 

cm2/s 
cm21s 
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PREVIOUSLY U\~.t\GEO 

Incident# 2002·0431 

Cw = Benzene= 0.1 mg/L o, :; Benzene= 0 .088 cm'/s 

Toluene= 20 mg/L Toluene= 0.087 cm2/s 

Ethylbenzene = 32.087 mg/L Ethylbenzene = 0 .075 cm2/s 

Total Xvtenes • 545,678 mg/L Total Xylenes = 0.0735 cm2/s 

MTBE =0 576 mg/L MTBE = 0.102 cm2/s 

Naphthalene = 9.083 mg/L Naphthalene= 0.0000075 cm2/s 

m9/L 

mg/L 

cm
2
/s 

cm2/s 

mg/L cm2/s 

mg/L cm2/s 

d = 10.135 m Dw = Benzene = 0.0000102 cm'/s 

ED (inhalation of = Residential = 30 yr 

carcinogens) Con. Worker = 1 vr 
Toluene= 0.0000086 cm2/s 

Ethylbenzene = 0,0000078 cm
2
/s 

ED (ingestion of = Residential = 6 yr 

noncarcinogens) Con. Worker = 1 yr 

Tolal Xylenes = 0,00000923 cm2/s 

MTBE = 0.000011 cm2/s 

ED (inhalation of = Residential = 30 yr 

noncarcinogens) Con. Worker= 1 yr 

Naphlhalene = 0.0000075 cm
2
/s 

cm
2
/s 

ED (ingestion of = Residential = 30 yr 

groundwater) Con. Worker= 1 vr 
cm2/s 

cm2/s 

EDM·L = 70 yr cm2/s 

EF - Residential - 350 d/yr OF - 1.57 4829435 unitless 
Con. Worker = 30 d/yr ED (ingestion of = yr 

F{x) = 0 .194 unitless carcinogens Con. Worker = 1 yr 

foe :; 0 .0058 gig Koc = Benzene= 50 cm3/gor Ukg 

GWobl = Benzene = 0.005 mg/L Toluene= 158 cm3/gor Ukg 

Toluene= 1 mg/L Ethylbenzene = 320 cm3/gorUkg 
Ethylbenzene = 0.7 mg/L Total Xylenes = 398 cm3/gorUkg 
Total Xylenes = 10 mg/L MT8E=11 ,5 cm3/g or Ukg 

MTBE = 0.07 mg/L Naphthalene = 500 cm3/g orUkg 
Naphthalene= 0.14 mg/L cm3/g or Ukg 

mg/L cm3/g orUkg 
mg/L cm3/g or Ukg 
mg/L cm3/g or Ukg 

mg/L Ks : 540 mlyr 

H' - Benzene- 0.23 uniUess L - 67.056 m 

Toluene= 0 .271 uniUess PEF = m3/kg 

Ethylbenzene = 0.324 unftJe.ss PEF' = m3/kg 
Total Xylenes = 0.271 uniUess Q/C (VF equations) = Residential= 68.81 (g/m2-s)/(kg/m3

) 

MTBE = 0.0241 unttiess Con. Worker= 85.81 (g/m1-s)/(kg/m3
) 

Naphthalene= 0.0198 uniUess QIC (PEF equations) - (glm1-s)l(kgJm3) 

unJUess RfC (mg/m3
) Chronic Subchronic 

unltless Benzene = 0.03 0.08 
unllless Toluene = 5 5 
vniUess Ethylbenzene = 1 9 

i - 0.084137931 mlm Total Xylenes : 0.1 0.4 
I = 0.3 m/yr MTBE = 3 2.5 

JM-L = 0.18 m/yr Naphthalene = 0.003 0.003 

IF,oi~ad· = 114 (m g.yr)l(klj-d) = NA 

IRsojl = Residential = 200 mg/d = NA 

Con. Worker = 480 mg/d = NA 
= NA 
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PREVJOUSL Y tMAGED 

Incident# 2002-0431 RfD0 mg/(kg-d) Chronic Subchronic 

IRw = Residential = 2 Ud Benzene = 0.004 0.012 

K = 13.56048 m/yr Toluene = 0.08 0.8 
K.(non-lonlzing - Benzene - 0.29 c:m1/g or Llkg Ethylbenzene = 0.1 0,05 

organcis) Toluene"' 0.9164 (:tn
1/g or l.Jkg Total Xylenes = 0.2 0.4 

Ethylbenzene = 1.856 c:m1/Q Of LJ\(Q MTBE = 0.01 0.1 
Total Xylenes = 2.3084 (:m3/g or l.Jkg Naphthalene = 0.02 0.6 

MTBE = 0.0667 (!m,lg Of LlkO = 0.6 
Naphthalene = 2.9 c:.m1/g or l.fltg = NA 

c:m'lg or I.Acg = NA 
c:m-,/g or LAca = NA 
(:m1/g or LAg s - Benzene - 1800 mg/L 
c:.m11g orl.lkg Toluene= 530 mg/L 

K. (ionizing organics] - om2/g orl.Jkg Ethylbenzene = 170 mg/L 
Kd (inorganics) = cm'lg or l/lcg Total Xylenes = 110 mg/L 

VF' = Benzene= 413.79 m3/kg MTBE = 51000 mg/L 
Toluene= 530.696 m3/kg Naphthalene= 31 mg/L 
Ethylbenzene = 684.606 m3/kg mg/L 
Total Xylenes =- 824.93 m3/kg mg/L 
MTBE = 909.994 m3/kg mg/L 

Naphthalene = 3698.341 m3/kg 
m3/kg 

mg/L 
SF., = Benzene = 0.055 (mglkg-d)'' 

m3/kg Toluene = NA (mg/kg-d)'' 

m%g Ethylbenzene = 0.011 (mg/kg-d)'1 

m3/kg Total Xylenes = NA (mg/kg-d)'1 

VM,..l = #VALUE! m•tkg MTBE = NA (mgikg·dr' 

#VALUE! m3/kg Naphthalene = NA (mg/kg-d)'1 

#VALUE I m%g (mg/kg·dr' 

#VALUE! m3/kg (mg!kg·dJ'1 

#VALUEI m3/kg (mglkg-dJ'' 

#VALUE! m3/kg (tng/kg-d)'' 

m3/kg T ; Residential "' 9.5E08 s 
m~/kg Con. Worller = 3.6 x 106 s 
m3/kg T'-H ; 30 yr 

m3/kg THO = 1 unitless 

VF'M·L = #VALUE I m•tkg TR = 1.00E-06 unitless 

#VALUE! m3/kg Um = 4.69 m/s 

#VALUE! m9/kg URF = Benzene = 7.8 X 1 O"' (1Jg/m3)", 

#VALUE! m3/kg Ut = 11 .32 m/s 

#VALUE! m3/kg v = 0.5 unitless 
#VALUEI m3/kg VF = Benzene = 5390.203 m3/kg 

m3/kg Toluene = 6913.06 m3/kg 
m3/kg Elhylbenzene = 8917.956 m3/kg 
m3/kg Total Xylenes = 10745.869 mJII<g 

m3/kg MTBE = 11 853.951 m3/kg 

I'] = 0.619 Lpo,.,ILaoll NaphliJalene = 48176.055 mJII<g 

e. : 0.292 L81,/L,0•1 m3/kg 

m3/kg 
m3/kg 
m3/kg 
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Incident# 2002-0431 
9w = 0.327 l-wale!Lso~ 
Pb = 0.967 kg/1 or glom' 

Ps ;; 2.54 g/cm~ 

Pw = 1 g/cm• 

1/(2b+3) = 0.085 tmitless 

PREVIOUSLY lr\11AGED 
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PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 

A. Site ldentl!lcallol1 

Illinois Envlromental f'roloctlon Agonc:y 
Loaklno Underuround Storage Tonk Program 

RBCA Input Parameters lor U11a wllh Tier 2 Calculation• 

lEMA lncidentt (6- or 8-<llaoo: 2002..()431 !EPA LPC. (10-<llgll): t631405021 

Silo Name· MotoMatt • Swan••• 

SUa Addteu (nota P.O. Bo•): _1!.:3~2~4.!N:!.!DIIh~.!ll!!!in~o~ls:!...... ________________________ _ 

Coty· Swansea counly~ SL Clak ______ _ Zip Code.~8~22~2.!..1 ____ _ 

Leaking UST Tec:Mlc:al Flle 

B. Tlor 2 Calculation Information 

Equatlon(s) Used (e•: R12,RH.R26): R16, R171 R18,R19, FU1 R22 R23 R24 R28 

Contact lnlormaUon lor Individual \IV)lo Performed CelwaUons: 

CWM Company, Inc .. VES 

Land Use: ResldenUal SoU Type. Loamy Send 

Groundwater. []] Class! 0 Class II 

Man Umit. 0 Yes m No If Yes, lllen Specty Aae8Qe: 

Objective lrom Sl7 used In R267 0 Yes ill I No 

If Yes, then Spedty C_.. lrom S11 

• Mass Llo,..t Acteage 0111er U\on defauns must alWays be rounded up . 
• Fallunl to use •U.,...peclfic: parameters wnere alowed COUld a'Yed payment from lila UST Fund 
• Maps depldjng IOU!Co wldlll, plume dlmensl0111. dlatance, etc;. must also be submitted 
• 1114'\ft.S must be su~>mltted In 111e designated uniL 

AT. ~ 70 yr 

AT• a ResldenUII ~ 30 yr 

Con. WO!Iter=O 115 yr 

BW = 70 yr 

c .... " SeeAttaclled mgll 

c,. . SeeAttaclled moiL 
d = 100 em ~ 

o• See Attached em7/s 

o- See Attached crn1Js 
0,"" See Attached em 'Ia 

ED ResldenijaJ • 30 yr 
Con. WO!Iter• I yr 

EF Reoldentlal • 350 dlyr 
C011. Worker • 30 diVr 

erf = See Attached unitles.s RAF, (PNAs) .. 0.05 un!Uess 

(& . 0.0056 g/g RAF, (inorganlc:.s) . 0 unllles.s 

GW- . See Altacllod mg/L 

GW...-u . See Attat;hed mg/L 

RAF, . 1 uniUeos 

RBSL.. (catdn-) . SeeAUached ~gJoi? 
H' . See Attached crnl_.lcms. RBSL._-1 . See AUached Uiiiii( 

I . 0.084137931 em/em RIO, . See Attached mgil<g-d 

I . 30 anJyr SA . 3160 cmld 

IRw . 20 m•td s, . 200.0 em 

IR,.. . ResldenUll ~ 1 oo mg/d 

Con. WDII<er = 460 mold 
s.. . 9,448 8 em 
SF, . See Attached (~g·d)' 

tR.,. . Residential= 2 Lid SF, . See Attached (~g-d) 

K " 
3 715 an/d 

1356.048 anJyr 
THO " 1 uniUess 
TR " 1 OOE-08 un!!less 

K.. . SeeAHached un:JigotlJk; u " 07269 emil! 

k.t- .... - t " see Attached ='...lv... u. . 225 an/s 

k.t ............ , . Not Applatble cm,,...Jo,. 

k........-t " Not Applicable c:m,_~o_ 

u_ " 1356.132 cml'f 
VF. . 3.97133E-12 kg/,.-

L. . 100 em VF- . See Attached ....... ' .. ~··'Wio 

LF .. . See Attached .....,__"' .... VF,, •I SeeAttaclled I kglm3 

M = 0.5 mQ/cm' w . em 

Pe " 6.9 · 10 14 glcm -s w . 0.286 g_.v,.. 

RAF, . 0.5 un!Uess o. .. 200 em 
a, " Sea Attached an 
a, . SeeAttaclled an 

6_ . 200 em 

8" . 0.153-438 em' .;em'"" 
o, . SeeAttaclled em e .. . 0.276562 cm1.-tetn'-

~ . See Attaclled d- e, . 0 43 cm'lcm'.., 
1T . 3.1416 Pt. . 0967 g/cm 

I . 9.46 . 10' • Po . 1 g/cm 
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H' A Koc 
Benzene 0.23 0.0009 50 
Toluene 0.271 0.011 158 PRE.VIOUSL Y H\J AGED 

Elhytbenzene 0.324 0.003 320 
TotaiXv!enea 0.271 0 .0019 398 

MTBE 0.0241 0 11.5 
Naphlhelene 0.0198 0.0027 500 

Benzene It I Modeled urn Vertical lodeled Solis 

Lcc:aUon ~;'?i~~~ I C(x) (mg/L) X(cm a, (cm) a,(cm) o em) ·~.~~~: ·~.~~~ 
aH . 17 0.005 3535. 353.568 '.858 I 0.995 ~997 111:61 35043 

~H 0.005 304. 30,48 1~ 18 

~H .005 76:' 176.784 58.928 I 0.91 1703 

3H '134 1.005 176: ' 178.784 58.928 IQ.9f ' 1703 

~H 0.005 1402. 140.208 48.738 197• ~88: 

Benzene lt26 Modolod Go·oundwater 

erf: S.ll4 erf: S.,/(2 

LocaUon C(x)(mg/l.) X(cm) a, (cm) a, (em) a,(cm) ..Yo, xu ..y., xu 
MW1 8.300 8077.2 807.72 269.24 40.386 0.97650755 0.29409279 
MW2 0.269 3779.52 377.952 125.984 18.6978 0.99999871 0.5800175 
MW4 2.000 6126.48 612.648 204.216 30.8324 0.99717928 0.38117227 
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Elhvlbonune R26 Modeled Groundwaler !rom Vertical Modeled Sollo 
C....,.lrom er1. S.JC< er1: S.IC2 

Loc:.tbon 517 (mgA.) C(x) (mg/1.) X(cm) a . (em) ay(cm) a,(cm) -1o, JQI ..,., JQ) 

Elhvlbenuno R26 Modeled Graundwalor 
Loc:.tllan C(x) (mgl\.) X(em) a,(em) _<>,.(em) a,(cm) .., .. . XJ) ..,., xn 

MWI 3.240 457.2 45.72 1524 2.288 1 1 
MW4 3830 487.88 48.768 16.256 2.4384 1 1 

p REVJOUSL Y IMAGED 
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Total XyJenes R2S Modeled Groundwater f rom Vertical Modeled Sollo 
c_rrom etf; S./(4 erf:S./(2 

Location 517 (mg/1.) C(x)(mgiL) X(cm) a,(cm) a,(cm) o,(cm) ~ .. J<l) "1o, ·XD 
BH1 0.3005 
BH5 0.4710 

Total Xvlenn R28 Modeled Groundwater 
etf: S./(4 . etf; S./(2 

Location C(x) (mg/L) X(cm) a,(cm) a,(cm) o,(cm) ~a, · JQ) ~a,·XD 

PA EVIOUSLY IMAGED 
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Naphthalene R26 Modeled Groundwater lmm Vertical Modeled Soils 
C-.cafrom erf: S..l<• er1: S./(2 

Location S17 (mg/L) C(x)(mgll) X(cm) o,(cm) a, (cm) a,(cm) >/[a, XI) >/[a, XI) 

Naphthalene R26 Modeled Groundwater 
erf: S.l(• - erf: S../(2 

Location C(X)(mg/L) X(cm) a, (an) a (em) a,(cm) >/[a, · XJ) ,f(o, XU 
MW1 0.387 304.8 30.48 10.16 1.524 1 1 
MW4 1.230 731.52 73.152 24.384 3.6576 1 0 .99996909 

PR EVIOUSL Y IMAGED 
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C...,.. from erl: S../(4 erl: S../(2· 

Loc:atlcn 517 (mo/L) C(x) (mgll) X(cm) a. (an) a.(cm) o,(cm) "'a, XI) "'o, ·XD 
BH9 00001 

erl: S../(4· erl: S../(2 
Localion C(k)(mo/Ll X(an) a,(an) ay(cm) a,(cm) ,., XD 

""• XD 

PR EVIOUSL Y IMAGED 
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Localklll : ~;-;g~~ CM(mg/L) X(cm) a.(cm) o,(cm) o,(cm) ~ .. s.~· -·~:~ 
11-g_ 

i9 
0. 

~ 

erf: S.l(• elf: S.IC2 
Loeatloll C(x) (rngll.) x (em) a , (an) (em) a,(cm) -to, JQJ •1o, IQ) 

PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 



Electronic Filing: Received, Clerk's Office 3/9/2017

C....,.c.from erf: S.l(< erf: S./(2 

location 517 (mgll) C(x)(mg/1.) X(cm) a,(an) a.(an) a,(an) V[a, X]) V[a, XI) 

BH2 0.0000 
BH9 0.0000 

BH12 0.0000 

erf: S.l(< · erf: S./(2 

location C(x)(mgll.) X(an) a,(cm) a,(cm) a,(cm) '~a, ·X]) V[a, · X]) 

p REVIOUSLY lf\t1AGED 
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PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 
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R~6 lnpui/Summary Sheet 
Version· 8/25/2015 

lEMA Incident# 6 or 8 digit 2002-0431 
tEPA LPC # (10 d lgJtJ 1631405021 
Site Name: MotoMart. Swansea 
Site Address: 1324 Nor1h Illinois 
City: Swansea 
Countv: St. Clair 
Zip Code: 62221 
SSL EquaUons Used: S5,6 7,8 91017.18 19,20,21,22 24 
RBCA Equations Used: R-1 R·2 R3 
ConUct !ntorrrtallon for lndl'ffdual Wf'lo performed ca.reula CWM Company. Inc. VES 
Land Use: Resldenllal & Construction Worker 
Ob ectlve from S17 used In R26: No 
Groundwater. Ctaas 1 
Standard or Mus Limit EQuations: Standard EQuations If Mass Lim« \hen Speclfiv Acres: 
Square Feet o(Pi ume for Mass L mil Eg.: 0.0 < use this # above 
Date Data Is Entered: JUIY28 2016 

Entry Description 
60.4 Holcomb Bulk Dens«y (pel), or Shelby Tube Location. 

ury ::.on""'" uens11y 19 em OrKQILJ: .~.or "'rave =<.u, "ana 1.8, "'"- .D, 1...181( = . or s11e specmc I 
2.54 ps . Soil Par11cle Dens«Y' Reference 

0.619 Total Soil Porosity 0 .619 0.619 
0.327 Water Filled Poros«y 0.327 0.327 
0.292 Air Filled Porosllv 0.292 0 292 
0.430 e, • Tolal Soli Porosity (RBCA) 0.43 or, Gravel· 0 25: Sand = 0 32 S&l = 0 40 Clay= 0 36 

0.286 w-Average Soil Moisture Content 0 .1. or. Subsurf1co SoH (top_tm a.O.t ; Subsurfaca Soli below 1m att.2, or Silo Spedflc 

oamy Sand US[ A Soli lassification Pick !rom List Entry 

Organic Ma~er % : 
0.00580 Frec1ionei Organic Carbon (foe) In g/g Organic Matter mg/kgJ: 

I Total Organic Carbon (gig): 0.0058 
4.30E-05 Average Hydraulic Conductivity em/sac Well Name 
4.30E-05 FallnJI HydrauKc Conductivity (em/sec) MW-3 

Riolng HydrauliC Conduc1ivi!Jr (cm/aec) Hydraulic Gradient Calculations 
0,08414 Hydraulic Gradlent 0 02 for slte1 with no Qroundwalaf'l Maiers LMW-3 9210 

10 d.- Aquifer Thickness (II) 3.048m IMW-7 82 34 

10 d, • Oopth of Soureo (tl} (Vertical Thlc:JI.nou of Contamlna.Uon) 3.048m Distance: 118 

X. Distance a tong lhe c.enl11t1lne of the grounH&ter plum o om1natrng to 
urba~ zone or tuffaco water ttcm tho aouru k1 tho dlrec.t]an of 
gmuodw>~•r now (~) (RBCA) 

ocrn 

220 L-Source Length Parallel to Groundwater Flow II 67.056m 
310 Sw. Source Wldlh -horizontal olane Ill <RBCA 9448.8 cm 

C" ·Concentration of Contaminant in groundwater at distance X !rom the source (mg/L) Surface Water 

Benzene MTBE 
Toluene 

. JEthylbenzene 
Total X~tenea 

Chemicals of Concern 

Benz- Nallhlhalene 
Toluena 

Ethyibenzene 
Total Xylenes 

MTBE 
I M ass UmH Equation• 

J;; Inhalation Equations 

>" Groundwater lng .. llon EquaUona 
v Csat Equatlons 

r FugiU"' Dust Equations 

(;I Ingestion Equations 

Chrysene 
Benzo k nuoranlhene 

lndeno(1.2.3-cd)pyrene 

SSL Equations Needed 

PREVIOUSLY 1r rtr-.GEO 
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Hydraulic Gradient 

SOUice Length 

Aquifer Thickness 

' Depth of Source 

I Source Width 

Source Depth 

Distance (X) 

Location 
BH1 
BH2 
BH3 
BHS 
BH9 

The Hydraulir Gradient (IJ was determlined from an onsite survey of each of the groundwater monitoring wells. The riser 
elevations were determined and the depth to groundwater was noted in each well. This data was used to generate a 
potentiometric flow map wilh contour lint:s which show potentiometric head. A corresponding flow line, perpendicular to !he 
contour lines, was determined between two known points of groundwater elevation. The hydraulic gradient was determined by 
!he difference in elevation divided by the length of flow between !he points. 

The Source Length Parallel to Groundwater Flow (L) was determined from !he site map and analytical results. A value of 
45.1 104 m was used to encompass !he length of contamination parallel to groundwater flow. Thi.~ value is the distance 
between soil borings BH-1 and BH-2. 

The Aquifer Thickness (dJ is a site specific value determined by the length of the monitoring well screen. The Aquifer 
Thickness value used in the modeling equations was 3.048 meters. 

The Depth of Source (d,) was determined from !he analytical results and soil boring logs, A value of3.048 m was used to 
encompass !he vertical thickness ofcontaJnination based upon a clean soil sample at BH-IA, "hot" samples at BH-29 and BH-
2C, and a clean soil sample at BH-20. TIIUs the vertical thickness of soil contamination has been determined to be 3.048 m. 

The sour~e width perpendicular to gr01~ndwater now direction In the Horizontal Plant (S,.) was determined from the site I 
map and analytical results. A value of 3566. I 6 em was used to encompass the width of contamination in the horizontal plane. 
Tbis value is !he distance between clean wells MW-4 and and MW-6. 

Tbe source width perpendicular to groo~ndwater now direction in the Vertical Plane (Sd) was determined from !he soil 
boring logs and analytical results. A valuj: of304.8 em was used to encompass !he width of contamination in !he vertical plane 
based on the depths of contamination pres:ent and !he PlD readings from !he bore logs. 

BENZENE 
Soli Exceedances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soli X G'IY'"'(mgJL) C(x) Groundwater X C(X) 
Concentration Cma/kQ) (Ill R:!6 Csource Cmo/LI Location Concentration Cma/Ll 1111 I mall! 

3.03 116 0.217 0 .0049 MW1 8.300 265 0.0049 
0.096 10 0.007 00048 MW2 0.269 124 0.0048 
0.463 58 0.033 0.0048 MW4 2.000 201 00049 
0.474 58 0.034 0.0049 
0.312 46 0.022 0.0048 

PREVfOUSL Y IMAGED 
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Toluene 
Soli Exceedances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gw001 (mg/L) C(X) Groundwater X C(X) 

Location Concentration (mg/kg) (tl) R26 Csource (mgll) Location Concentration (mg/L) (tl) (mg/L) 

Ethylbenzene 
Soli Exceedances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gwobl(mg/L) C(x) Groundwater X C(X) 

Location Concentration (mg/kg) (tl) R26 Csource (mg/L) Location Concentration (mg/L) (ft) {ITlQil.l 

MW1 3.240 15 0.6391 

MW4 3.830 16 0,6875 

PREVlOUSLY 1~1AGED 
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To~l Xylenes 
Soli Exceedances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gw""(mg/L) C(x) Groundwater X C(x) 

Location Concentration (mg/kg) (II) RZ6Csou~e (mg/L) Locatron Concentration (mg/L) (II) (mg/L) 

BH1 16.4 0 ,300543354 

BH5 25.7 0.471 

MTBE 
Soli Exceedances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gw..,(mg/L) C(x) Groundwater X C(x) 

Location Concentration lma/kal (ft) R26Csource !mo/Ll Location Concentration lma/Ll (Ill !moiL I 

PREVIOUSl V tvtt~.G::~ 
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Nap11thalene 
Soli Exceodances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gw,.,(mgll) ccx> Groundwater X C(x) 

Location Concentration (mQ/k!ll (fl) R:26 Csource (mg/L) Location Concentration (mQ/Ll (ft) (mgll) 

MW1 0.387 10 0.1386 
MW4 1.230 24 0.1332 

Bonzo a]pvrena 
Soli Excaodancos Groundwater Excoedances 

Soil X Gw""(mg/L) C(x) Groundwater X C(x) 

Location Concentralionl_m_g/kg} (fl) R:!S Csourco (mg/L) Location Concentration (mg/L) (n) (mgll) 

BH2 0.16 O.I:J00001352 

BH9 2.6 O.I:J00021973 
BH11 0.11 O.ll00000930 

BH12 1.5 O.il00012677 

BH14 0.13 O.ll00001099 
BH16 0.12 O.il00001014 
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Olbonz a h anthracene 
Soli Exceodances Groundwater Exceadances 

Soil X Gwobl(mg/L) C(x) Groundwater X C(X) 

Location Concentration (ma/kQ) (ft) R26 Csource (mll/L) Location Concentration (maiL) (ft) (mg/L) 

BH2 0.23 0.000000522 
BH9 0.54 0.000001225 

BH12 0.26 0.000000590 

Lead 
Soli Exceedances 

Soil X Gwobl(mgll) C(x) 

Locatlon Concentration (mg/kg) (ft) R2:6Csourco (mg/L) 

PREV~OUS!.. Y J~Jlt_Gr.:!) 
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Benz a anthracene 
Soli Exceedances Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gw""(mgll) C(x) Groundwater X C(x) 

Location Concentration I maiko> (ft) R26 Csource lmc/LI Location Concentration lma/Ll 1n1 (mgll) 

BH9 2.5 0 000054142 

Acenaohthene 
Soli Exceedancea Groundwater Exceedances 

Soil X Gw001 (mg/L) C(x) Groundwater X C(x) 

Location Concentration (m!llkCl) {II) R26Cscurce /moll) Location Concentration /maiL\ (ft) lmgll) 

PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 
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lnout V•lues 
tfokamb'IIBulk CJansll'y~ 60,4 

0,967 • 0tv Soil BuY!: DensiiV 
2.M ·SOli P-Dtnl 

0.292 e.· AlrfliHtd ~ Pomlity 
0 .327 Bw- W'.ter Fillod SoU Porolly_ 
0.619 • SSL Tolal So4t PorositY 

0.0&11379 1-
0 .006 foe • T a4aJ ank CiiibOn 
20.000 OF - OOuUon Fac.\or 
10135 d·-Z0!10 m 
3.048 d, • Dop(h o!SOIII<t (m) 

Tier 2lndustriai/Commercial Calculations for Benzene 
MOIOoM;ut-S~nn1 

2002.()431 

roc conv<o<>~on to !!Ill: 
1.5 or. Gla¥el • 2~0': Siind: 1.!: S ll• 1.6~ ClaY -a; 1.7: or She Soeelf!G 
2.65 o,.. Stte clr.: 

4.2SI1: V.-oo from S.21 Top 1 meterz 0 .28: bekM 1 meter ~ 0.13; Gravei • 0 .05; S.nd'"' 0,14: 5j,lt ""0.24: C~y s.Q,19: 04'Cakula1ed Value (S21) 
0.327 Value fn>m S-20 
tU11 Value from S.Z4 

1.575 Value fn>m S-22 
10.135 Value from S-25 ,..._,0 

T 1 meier: 0 .1 5' below 1 meier• 0.30· Gravel• 020· Sand • 0.18· Slft •0.16· C~•0.17· Of C.kulatecfValtJe 
0.43 or G"vel- 0.25· Sand • 0.32: Sill• 0 .40' ClaY-. 0.36· 01 CtJc:Wited Value S24 
SileS me. 
SUrface S04I * 0 006· SUbsutface Son"' 0.002: or Site cme 
If ealtullled value for OF Is lass ltJan 20 I hen 20 def•ullls used else ~ilfed v•lue ls used 
2· or ea~.ed v•IUe 
Depth of Socne (VCJtkal thlc:.X,u.s or tOI'Itl!'T'13natlon) 

13.511 K·HvdraulleC:~(m/YII em11ec,., • . 30E<l5 SlloSooclflc 3 .7210+00 cmld l .ll6E+03 cmlvr Uucmld lafRI5 RIG. I.~ cmlvrlo<R2<1 
67 056 L • Sou-ru Le- h Parall&llo erFlow m 
3.048 d. · AquiferTNekncu (m) 

0.3 1- lnllll'"'lon R&lo '"""' 
MO K, • Sotu.-td -Ilk COodvCIMiy 

0.005 GW - GrounctN81er R.emedldon ObiK'tfvc Clan 1 

0.085 1 - enl for S20 

feel • 220 

fHI • tO 
Site m 
Sllo SpecifiC (m) 
0.3 for lllnm 
Sea Tabte K ror Input Valu~~:s 

0.025 GW • Grwndwlter Reme-dlil'tion Objedlve Class 2 
See iabfe K lor l Values 

Dl121i/16 

0.000 

7ll BW· Retldentllt * 70 cart nk. · 15 • lncluslttal/Commerdat- 70· ConstrucUon WoRer• 10· RBCA 111 70 
11• IF-.... -Age Adjusted Soli lnge.stkm Factor for C.~lnoQens 

1 IR,.-IlallyW-IngallonRoto 
1800 S • Solubilltti1 Water 

,,. 
Rcs-ldenUal • 200; lndWitrlaVCCHnfMfdal • SO: Construction Wortlf • 480 
Bln:zane. G.055 
Residential , 2 ; lncSustriaW:ommerdl.l • 1 
Benz.ene• 1750 

25 rucUon Woftet"" 1 
68 at OJC. inYeru:o e mean c;onc;enttaUoft atU'htt umarDf • a arasOtJR.e • construdioftWoB.er.: M .at· orTab&a H 

7.9QE+Ge T-~ure lo1MVIII i • tal· Con1truc:tion. W01br• 3.61l 1o' 

30 T-· &;pcmlnllnterval forMoiiUmM-FadO<~S26 30 
70 Eo..., • &I'M~• Dur.uon lew Mog~Won to Gr~~ MuHJmtl E~S'Z& 

0.18 • ln'f'lftrallon Rate lor Mignltton to Grounctwl1er Mass·Urrit EqvMlon S28 

0.088 0. • OlfluiMiy In Air 
0.23- H' ~ He 1 LRWCon.l\ant 

1.02E.OS O.· Oifluslvlty In Willer 
50 K_ • Organk: Catt10n PattJUon Coefficleol 

lodu.s1rla11Commen::lallnges1ton Tlf'f' II Berwtne Ob}ec11Ve 
TR xBW x AT.• 36S 

= 1.0E-06 

0055 
S..J= Sf~ x11i' xEF xED ll IRsoil 

ConctNct.Jon Worl{ler lngcs Uon ner II Benzene Obtettlve 

= 1.0&06 

0055 

TRx.BWxAT. x365 
S..J= 

Tier 2 I·C (Benze,e) 

70 
O. lB 

Benzene ~: o oaa 
Ben.aene • 0..228 
Benzene -a 9 II~ 10 

Benteno -a 58.51 

• 70 
X I.OOE·OS 

• 70 

X 1 OOE-06 

X 70 X 365 

• 250 • 25 . 50 

X 70 X 365 

X JO X •so 

=~ 
1,72S-02 

=~ 
792E-04 

; 10-4.058 

= 2258.21 

mg/kg 

m9ik9 
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Tier 2 Industrial/Commercial Calculations for Benzene 
MotoMan • Swansea 

1002-G431 

lndu.slriiVCommen:lat JnhalaUon Tltt II Beruene Ob)ecttve 

S-6 = TRxATtJ~365 1.DE.o6 10 365 ==~ 3.213 mg/kg 
URF x 1000x EF x EDx tNF 7.80£.()6 1000 250 25 Ill 6.1lE•03 7.95E43 

CortS{Net)on Wortcer WYI.a1lon Tier ll Benzene Objectlvt 

S-7= TRxATc::.kl65 1 OE..Q6 70 365 =~ 4.518 mg/kg 
URF X 1000 X Ef' It EO X 1NF' 7.BOE·06 1000 JO I'' 4.14801 5.66E.Q3 

I<EsiDEr'mAt. OR COM'MERClAL 

S-8 = VF= 
Q (l.t•xD..,xT)W• 101 

8581 X ( 31~ 1 JOE-03 7 9DE•08 )"' ' 0.0001 15.~075 
6129.7565 -· c (2xr.xOJ ( 2 0967 1 lOE-03 ) 00025 

Co"sttuctJon Wottter 

S-8% VF= 
Q (314xD,.xl)tn.c 10.,. 

8SII1 . ( 31• 1,30E·DJ 3,60806 )"' ' 00001 :~ 413-7909 -· c {2 xc.xD.V ( • 09117 • 1.3DE-03 ) D.002S 

Equation reK Dertvat/On of VolaUNlatJon Fae1or • ConS1ructlon Wo~er 

S-9= VF'= VF ~ 41 .3791 
10 10 

Eqwr.Uon for ~rtvauon Of Appare«1t Ottrustvlty 

S-10= o .. ,. (0,~ xD1 xH') • (0.. ).l:)ICD.,J . 1 

~· IJ>.•K.J•O.•IU.•Hl 

= I 1.66E..02 X 0.08& X 0230 I· ! O.D"l41:2 X 1.02E.QS I . 
0.3832 

1 = 1.30E-03 
( 0.167 l 029 )· 0.33 . ( 0.292 l 0230 ) 

Soli c._,. Of 1M MIQ[Uon to......,-.,., Cloonup 01>~~ ~~~ 11] 

{ +I 0.327 . 0.292 • 0.230 l] = 0.070 S-17= c. x K.o • 1>1> = 0.1 0.29 mg/kg 
0.967 
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T•'lJd So41 L .. ct..te conce-ntration {Class 11 

S-18= c.= Ol'xGW.., 

I Solt.Wator P•rt•IOn Coetll<lent 

S-19= K0 = 

S-20= e .. = I -~ ·----11, 

IAJr->'lllodPoroslly 

s-21 = a.= 

Dilution F.c1or 

S-22= OF= 

GW Ingestion 

S-23= 

" . 

Kx l xd 

Ia L 

TRxBWaAJ..~365 

r ... ISOOPoroslly 
S-24= "1'" 

... 
1 ·--... --

1 ·-tucp 

tlmauon of Mixing Zone Depth 

S-25 = d = (0.0112aL'l,.•o.[ 

c .. = IlK. • pb) +Ow •IH' • O.lJ 

Tler 2 t..c ceen.zene) 

{•LXI) 

(Kx i x dJ 

Tier 21ndustriai/Commercial Calculations for Benzene 
MotoMart • Swans.• 

ZOOl.O.U1 

2000 )( 0005 

5000 X 0.1)06 

062 ·[~J·-600000 

062 033 

13 56 00&41 10 135 
0300 67056 

1 DE·D6 70 70 
0.055 1000 250 

0961 
---nr-

J 
0.0112 67.056 ~)u• 

3048 •[ 1·e•p 

~~ •II 0.29 0961 ) . 
-67 056 
13.560 

0.327 . ( 
0 .3 

OOI!Ai 

0230 

ib48 ~ 

o.:m )) 

0.1 

0.29 

0.3273 

Q.2920 

1.5748 

0.0052 mg/l 

06193 

10 13S m 

1,255.70 mglkg 

"U 
:0 
~ 
5 
c: 
(I) 
r-., 
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In out Ill ..... 
Hocomb'a Bulk Dens ~ 60.4 

Dfllonk: Mldetf')~ 0 
0.1167 - Orv Soil 8u1k DensitY 
2.54 -SoiiPOIIlelo 

Tier 2 Industrial/Commercial Calculations for Toluene 
MotoM•n • SWitlnt•• 

2002-G431 

COn¥orted v-.. 1o be used k1 ca~tulltbl aneet--> 0.967516 USOA Soil Closs-: LDomy S.nd 
!'OC%(0.51- -'> 0.000 

__ ,_) 
0 FOc-iD!!I-l 0.000 

t .Sor. G~vel • 20:Sand~ 1.!. SMI • l 5 Clay a: 1 7: or Site SpecifiC 
2.65 or: Sbe UffJC. 

DatoCompllc<t 07126116 

foe convmlon 10 C115J! 0.000 

0.292 e •. Air Filed Soil PonKity o . .zn Vatuo from &.21 Top 1 meter 11: 0.25, bekJw 1 ml'ter 'II' 0 13, Grn11 a 0 OS. s.nd =- 0 14, Slfl •0.24 Clay • 0 19: or CattuLated Viilw CS21) 

O.l27 ew • W._,er Fined Soil Poms O.JZ7 Value from S-20 T 1 meter s 0.15 beklw 1 meter • 030: Gr.rvel '*" 020 ~nd• 0 .18 Sll •0 10 Cll • 0 17 orCaa&:u'-'ed Value 
0,119 - SSL Total SOil Po!O.shv O.ltl V~fromS-24 0.43 oc Gravot • oO 25 Siind • D 32j 511 • D 40 Ciav .a 0.36 or Cak:ula1ed VaJue S24 or R23 

0 1)141379 1- s•e s eclrk 
0006 roe- Total enk: CarDOn Surface SoJI • 0 006 SUbsurface SOil• 0 002 or Slle: S eclflc. 
20.000 OF- Di'UOon Faetor 1.S15 Value ftom S-22 If caltultted value lor OF IS leu than 20 then 20 def1ull l1 used ella c:aiWIMted v11ue 11 used 
10.135 de-Zone m 10.135 Value fmm S-.25 · orcaJcua.ted \l'alue 

3.048 ct.-De pU'l 0{ soufte: (m) feet a: 10 Oeplh ot Source (Vertle111hk:lmus of contaMination) 

13.56 K - _,.ullc: Concluctlv!ly (mlyr\ etl\"t&C ;:o; 4.JOE,OS Siec~edflc: 3.72E+OO c:m'cl 1.36E+03 _CI11fjf_ U..<m'dfarR15 R19;&R26. lorR24 
67,056 l- Souft:e Le~h Panillel to Grounct.rmer flow m feet • 220 Slle tlflt m 

~- d.-~er Thkkneu (m) feetc 10 S"eSj>e<:il\c: (m) 
0.3 1-lnflllrationRate 0.3 fo<lllnols 
540 K. - s-1-ad -ulio Conductivity Su T•.tM K I« rnpu1 V•l~.m; 

1.000 GW - Gt'04.11'lCtwt1et Remedl.a11on ObjectiYe Class 'I 2.5 GW - Grau1'16Ha1er Remediation Obt'DclN• Ctan 2 
0.085 II 0+3 - EJ< enl for S20 SH Ta.b4e K lor In Ul V•lue.s 

15 -- Re.s~$c1D c.arcJ ' 15 non-a · lndustriai/Comrnerc.~l '"' 70:: COfiStrudion Wartier"' 10· RBCA • 71) 
114 IF -Ago Adjusted Soil lngesUon Fador for C•n:inogen.s 114 

50 I~ ·Solllngealion Rota RcsldoniJ•l a. 200. lnduslriaVCommordltl • 50. ConstRICtiOn Wor\ar- 480 

1 I~ -Deily W-lngoslion Rota Ro.alden11•t a 2; I ndu.ttrtaucom~l-al a 1 
530 S-Sol lnWeter Toluene • 526 

1.o&<l6 TR -T•rvetC......Rio> Ruiderllai •10•§i•10" ConalructlonW""-"'"10"' at oolnlolhumanoxPO'"'" 
2SO El'-Eio>oltn FrtOUIII<II Reold6llllal • 350 • 250 COMiruetiM Worlttt • !lO 
25 ED- tn Durllon for lnhNUon for Re.s&denUal * 25· Comtruttkw1 Wortle, -1 

68.1!1 QfC ... trweBO or the mun wnGen!raUon., 1h41 c:errtet of • s .RI SOUf'U: Re.sidellllal• · lndustn•IICotnmertlal • es.et· C005II\I(;Iion Worbt • 85.81 ' orTabte H 
7.90E+08 T • El!pasurt~ 1merva1 Ruldont.!el• 9.5x101 lndustrlaVCamm.rc.ta1 • 79 • 10" Construction Worker~ 36x 101 

30 TIIIM ·Exposure lnletv.l JCM" Malllim"h Vo11111iutlon FactorE~iofl S26 :10 
70 l'tDwationfot f&tion to Gl~~ Mai.I•Umil E 1521 70 

0.18 lw.t..._ • tnfllndion R8te for Mig radon to Grounctwater M1ss-Umit Equation 521 o.te 
0.087 0.- OOfushnty ln M Tofoene • 0 017 
0,211 K ·HenrY's t...w Catu1•nt Totuene •0.272 

1.60E.Q6 0. · OHfusMty In Water Tofuene • l\,6 x. 10 .. 

26 AT-Avera 11me for n.s In I Lion E uat&on Residential • &· lndu.striaii'Cornmerc!al• 2S CCMU-ttuct1on Worlcer • 0 115 
26 AT · A~enl Timeror~Carc ns tn lnl'ta\11ion EauatJon Resldentlal • 30' lnchatriaVCommerclll • 25· Construction Worter * 0115 
1 THO- 'T Hautrd Quotient 1 
5 RfC - 1 nha1aUon Rererenu conc:er\ttaSJon --&~~ .. 5 

0.8 Rm. - Oral Rer.,.nc.• Dose Chrurilc.•O.OilSul>cliiViilo•O.B 
158.00 K.. Ofgank. Catbon Pam:lon CoePr\C:lerrt Toluene r 132 

nduotnatte...,...n:tallngunon Ram;:~·:~ ":':.~~or NG...Can: nooen10 t;onta;""'ants • 
70 • 25 X 365 638750 

= 1635200 S -1 = 103x(11RID.)xEfxEDxl~ "' 0.000001 x11 0.8 • 250 • 25 • 50 = o:3iii625 

ICon.ttrvcUon Wortler noest on M.ernect~~ :"e~~~=~~r Non-cere nogeftiC ~~ nantl :It 
70 • 0.115 • 365 2038.25 

= 163236 S·1 = 10lix(1IR1DJxEFxEDx iR..a :::: 0.000001 x 11 0.0 . 30 . ' • 4110 =~ 

lnbalaUon Non-Cerc-lnooenlc Residential, lndi'CCJmr<MR:lll 

S-4= rnoxATx36S = 1 . 25 X 365 = 9 125 = 57J89.346 
el' x EO x(1mte x1Nf) 250 X 25 .,, 5 •" 7lllll.ss4232 0.1~9002 

Tier 2 1nhalollon Objective connot exceed Soil Sowr.otlon limh 

lnhatatlon NQn-Cnclno.,nle COflltnletton Wor1ter 

S-5:. THQxA.Txl6S = ' x Cll1S • 365 ::~ = 371.2S6 
EFxE0x(11RICa;1Nf") .. . ' ., 5 XII 53.06963729 011130~9 

I~ESIDE~ OR COM~ERCIAL 
(3,14 xo,..nv.tx 10 .. 

= . ( 3 .14 . 7.90E-04 X 7.9010'08 I "' X 0.0001 =: 12.Dl:W = 7861.5542 S-8 = VF = 85.81 
<;: (2-.r.•D,.) ( ~ . 0,9&7 . 7 ,91)E-o.t ) 1.S3E-o3 

irar 2 ~ (Toluone) 

mg/kg 

mglkg 

mg/~g 

mg/•g 

I 
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Constrvctlon Worbr 

S-8= 

Equ.Uon for DHtv•tlon of VoLaUUuUon Factor. ConstNctk)n Wortcer 

S-9= VF'= VF 

10 

EouaUon for Dertn:tion or ADDA-nllnt Olft'ustvHv 

S-10 = o,.= (O.'"xD;x~ • (0. =, £U 
r( • 

= 

Tier 2lndustriaUCommercial Calculations for Toluene 
Moto~rt • SWinMI 

2002-0431 

85.81 x~(~~J~.I~·--~--~7~9D~E~-~~~~--J~.~~~·oo~~~-·~--~•---·~-~~~~--=~ 
( 2 D 967 79DE.o.l } ).SJE-03 

~ 
10 

1 

(p. xKJ•O..• (U. • H") 

I 166E.02 X 0087 

( 0 967 X 091&4 

X 

) . 

0,271 ! • I 0.0242 . 8,60E·06 l . 
O.l8J2 

1 

0.33 . ( 0.292 X 0.271 ) 

Soil Component of 1M M110n to Groun-1et Clo•nup Obje~e::-~ (::~~ 11] 

{ + ( 0 ,327 . D.292 . 0 .271 
S-17 = e. • K. • "" : 20 0.9164 

0.967 

Tatvel SoH L .. en.re Cont.entr.ltlon fCtau 1) 

S-18 = C,. = OFxGW"' 20.00 X 1000 

S-19= K.= 158 00 X 0008 

S-20= I -• 
~ ·-------... 062 ·[~J·-500 000 

Water.f"tued Porosity 

530,69&4 

53.0696 

= 7.90E41 

I]= 26.728 

20 

0.9164 

0.3273 

l!>!llkg 

., 
:u 
~ -0 c: 
(1) 

r< 
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lAir-Filled Porosity 

s-21 = a.= 

OUutlon Factor 

S-22= OF= 

GW lngu:UOn 

S-23 = 

r-1 Soli Porosity 
S-24 = 11 ~ 

e. 

K xh: d 

lxl 

TRxBWxAtc-x-l&S 

p, 

EstlrnaUon of Mixing Zone Otpth 

S-25 = d = (0 0112 xL')" • d.[ l·up 

Soli Saturatton Umtt 

S-29 = till. • pbl• ew • (H' • tall 

fier 21-C (Toluene) 

ner 2 Industrial/Commercial Calculations for Toluene 
Mocolihrt - S~nsea 

I·L<I) J 
(I( •••<W 

0 62 

13.56 

0.300 

1.0E-06 

0.000 

2002.0431 

033 

0 ,0&41 10.135 + 
67.056 

15 0 

1.000 250 

0 .961 
---nr-

= ( 00112 rnosa ')u• 

3048 a.[ t- ecp 

0~7 X [ ( 0916.4 ... O.i67 f .. 

J65 

25 

-67.056 
13.560 

0.371 . ( 
0.3 

6.68041 

o.:.nt 

=~ 
0 

30d ~ 

0.292 ) I 

0 .2920 

1.5748 

IDN/01 mstt 

0.6193 

10.1lS m 

708.29 mgtkg 

i) 
:0 

~ 
0 c: 
((} 
r-: 
""' 
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ner 2 Industrial/Commercial Calculations for Ethylbenzene 
McxoMan ~ ~W11na .. 

lOOl-0.131 
Date CompPie~ 07126116 

v~ &?$"101.5 

Input Valuu 
t-tatc:omb'a Bulk ~ 60.A ConYenecl V81Ue to be uted In Cft:Ul.oon 1ttnt-> 0 867!515 USOI\ Soil CW.tllU1ion "-""""'Sand 

Ofllanlt-1'1)~ D FOC ~ C0.$8 --~~ D.DOO 
__ ,_, 

0 I FOC,_to .. _l 0,000 foe coov~ lo .Qig: 0.000 
0.957 • Drt SoM 814 Oanslty 1.5 or: Grav•l • 2.0; SaM • 1 !J. Sill • 1 !!i Clay• 1.7. orSlc SDcc:lt'ic 
2.54 · SoiiPIIftldollenl 2.6Sor:~es fie 

0.292 e. • /I!Jr FiMed Sot! Porosity O.lt! Value fromS--21 iop 1 meier• 028' ~ 1 me1er._ 013, Gra>Jtl• 0 05! Sand • 0 14: ~It a0.24.C&ay .. D 19. orCalculaledVaJue-tS21) 

0 .327 ew. Water F"lllad s~ Poros 0.3Z1 VakHJ ftom S..20 T 1 metar• 0 15' below1 rM'er• 0.30: G~l· 0.20: Sancl t O. tB· Sill "'0,16· C&av_• 0.17 Df'C.~tatod V&Jut: S20 
0,81D • SSL. Tolal Soil Porosity o.ett Vatuo from 5-2<4 D.U or. Gravel· 0.2$' S•nd = 0.32: Slits- 0,40' ctav= O."l6· otcalc.~edValua 52<1 

0.08C137!il I· Gnldlonl Sile Spec:lr~t 
0006 foe • TcMI OtQa,.Jc Carbon (QIQJ Surface Soil : 0 006' Sub~utface SOil• D 002' or Silie S ec:ffic 
20.000 Of - Dilollon FOdor 1.ST5 V-ftornS-22 tf cak.ubdcd v1lve tot OF 1s leu lt\an 20 then 20 dela1111 is used e!1111 ea1Culllted valut~ Is used 

10.135 d-Mix Zo<lem 10.135 ValullfrDmSo-25 2: or calculated valUe 
3.048 d.· Otp\h ot aouru (m) fiN(= 10 Depth Of Soufte (Ver'{iQI4 ttllc:knon of c:ontamtn.Uon} 

13, fl6 K- li'Jd,.ullc ConducllYltV lmiYn tmiiOC:• • 30E.O.S SbSpeclflc 3.72E+OO cmld 1.38E+OJ C1J11Yr UNCIIIIdlo<R15,R18, &R26, <ml'yrlo<IUO 
67 056 L · soun::e Let'§tl' Pat&le.lto G~.r Ftaw rn tH1 • 220 Site~_oc.lfle m 

3 048 d • • Aqul1er Thlc-ness (m} feet c 10 SHo Speclro< (m) 

0.3 l·lnMra!lon ~• 03fOriUioott; 
SolO K. • s.,...,.., t¥noullc: c.....,.. .. lly Se.e Table K tor Input Vatues 

0.700 GW - Groutldwaler Remadl~ltm Objec:tNe C.la-St 1 1 CW - • Groundw'l'ler RcmecfiaUon ObjcCIWe C lass 2 

0.01!5 11(21>+3 .E.Jc •nt fOf S20 See-Table K for I V1tues 
10 BW · Rot\denti&J • 10 c.~~n:i anic - tS non-c.rclnoganlc:.]·lndusldalfCommerclal • 70• Corutructlon Wodter • 70· RBCA• 70 , . JF ........__.Age_ ~usted Solllngeslk)n F•c.tor for Ca~1nagens ,. 
50 1R..., -SoM Ingestion Rite Re11<1entlat: 200: ltldustrlaiiCommertial• 50; CoostruttlOtl Worter • 480 

1 IR, .QailyWIIOt ,_....,!<a Reliclent~J ~ 2: lndustnavcommen:ia4 • 1 

170 S· lnW~er El emcno• 169 
I.OE-06 TR~- Restde:nUaJ • 1a-· lnclustriaiiOommertllt .. 10"" cons1rueuon Wottttt :. 10 .. at~ of hiJmM elUIOSutr! 

250 EF F ReJidonUal-.- 350: lndusi111111Commen:lill ; :zso:-Conslruetion Wof\er..a 30 
25 ED Oonllon lotlnhaiOIJon lot ' Retldenllll• 30 lndu.siMIICommen:lll• 25- C<tMtructlon Wort.er• 1 

68.81 OIC • lnvRrst: of the mean e.ontentraUon at lhe c.e:niGraf a sau1nt sourea Re.sidentl•1 • 68 Bl· Jndusula11Comme~lal1 85.&1· COMtrut'llon w o.-el • as 81 ' OfTableH 
790E+OII T • &pos_U1'11 lnlef'\111 ResidanUal • 9 5 x10 • JndU•tri~IICammerdaf • 7 9 • 1o'· Constn.lc:'OonWOii.e:r• J&1111rf6 

:)0 T-.,- &posure tnre-rval forMaN Um'i\ \roeatHI:taUon F&e10f'Equa{lon S26 :)0 

70 E • Exoolure ~ lof M!Qratlan to Gl~ MM•·Umtl [qU.IUDnS21 70 
0.18 ~~-tnf'~fbteftw~toG~ter~ts·UrnttEquaOonS28 018 

0.075 o,. "'""'"'i(y In Air tshyWl&NMoe • 0 075 

D 324 H' .. HHHy"s Law Consta.nt Elhyfbenune .. D 323 
780E.OO D • • Oiffuslvity ln Water £t~n.zene•7.11x 10 .. 

.2.5 AT - Averaae1lme- for Non-Care ns In I .stlonE ...., Ru tcs.ntlal s- 6 lndrJslriaateommerclll • 25- Conslruc:tion Won:e-r • 0 .115 
25 AT • Averaoc nme for Non-Cutin nt In lntl.ataflon £Quillon Rt.sldenUal • 30' tnduslri•IIComme~hM • S· Conslruc:Uon Wolter • 0 t15 , THQ • Tarqct Hazanf OUOUent , 
'1 Rtc- lnh•laf.kln Refera\U Concentratkm t~· : SUbchfunk: • 0 

<0,1 RID •• or.ao Rele,...e Dose ~ .. 0_1!~•0.05 
32000 11.. • O<ganoe Calboo Pill- Coel1lc .... Elhytbenxene • 363 

navSina,.;;ommerc:oaoo-""~':'~.:~~~~:5or Non-Gan: nooenoc con1a:' naMS • 
70 X 25 • 36$ 83ll750 

S-1 = 1ii"xiiiRIDJxEFxEOxiR,.. = 0000001 xl/ 01 250 25 so :~ = 204400 • • . 
1\;onStNCtiOfl norur ngelltion Remediation'?._~~~ or NOn~n: nogtntc c-ontam nants 

70 0.115 365 =~ S-1 = 1o;s~~;~:~!IR_ = 0~1 ~~J A . = 10202 
005 X 30 • , . . .., 0,281! 

lnh&larJon Nof"..C.n::fnogenlc RukSential,lndiC'Ommerclll 

S-4= iHO:tATlt365 = 
, X 25 • 365 = 91ZS = 14807 

EF• ED x (IIRICx1NF) 260 • 25 • 1/ , xll t01(1 521175 0.616278 
Tier 2 lnhalotlon Objective cannot exceed Soil Salllratlon Limit 

lnh.111tl0n Non-Carcinogenic ConstNctlon Worker 
THO x ATJt36S S-5= EF X EO "W (11RIC ll 1NF") 

0 11S 365 =~ 862.091 
30 , ., ., 68A6066776 0.04069 

Tier 2 .Inhalation Objective conno1exceed Soli Saturation Limit 

RESIDE~L OR COMMERCIAL 

as 81 ,! 3.1-' • 75E·04 790E+llll ) .., .. 00001 9.3,2:6 
101.(1.!J28T =---

( 2 0.961 • 75E-O< l 9-18E-Oi 

S-8 = VF = ~., ___ _,t3;:· .:..••;..;•;..;D;.:•.::•.:.ll':"'...;•.:..l;,;o_• __ _ 
C (2x., x O.J 

mg/kg 

ITl!llkg 

mg/kg 

mg/kg 
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VF= 0 

c 

Equ.tlon for Der1vatlcm of VolatllluUon FadOf - ConstrucUon Wo~•r 

VF'= VF 

10 

S-10= OA= 

Tier 2 lndustrlaUCommerclal Calculations for Ethylbenzene 
MotoMart • Swenua 

85.81 

~ 
10 

1.66E-02 

0967 

20024Ml1 

·~~--~3~.1-•--~--~··~7SE~~~~----3~.~~-~~~)~'-"-·~~o~.~~·~-- = o.&~7 
( 2 0.9e7 U5E-l)ol ) 9 .18E-l)ol 

0 076 0.32. ) • 0.0242 

0.3832 

1856 >· 0.33 . ( 0.292 

Soli Compone,. ollhe Mlor>[tlon to Groundwatot Cleanup Ob~~~ ~~:~ 11] 

S-17 = c. • K, • pb •• 

TII"'d SoN l.&lchlllt Conuntfllldo4'1 (Class 1J 

S-18= C.,= DFxow.., 

Soii..W11er p .. rtition coemclent 

S-19= K0 = 

W.ter-FIIIed Porosity 

S-20= 0.,= 

-ner 2 I.C (Ethytbenz.eoe) 

1 - .. 
~ ·--M.--

2000 X 0.700 

32000 )( 0006 

0,62 ·[~]""' 540.000 

684.6067 

68.4607 
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s-21 = e. = 
\Air-Ailed Porosity 

S-22 = OF= 

GW Ingestion 

S-23= 

I Total SOII I'onlslly 

5-24 = lJ= 

. - e. 

"" 1-----p, 

Estimation of Mlalno Zone Dept 

S-25 = d = (0 0112> L')". ·.[ 

S-29= 

rJer21.C (EthV!ben:.r.ene) 

Kxhcd 
Ill 

1-Dp 

Tier 2 lndustriaUCommercial Calculations for Ethylbenzene 
MotoM•". swa"••~ 

2002-o431 

0.62 0.33 

13.56 0.0141 10.1lS 

0 300 67,056 

1.0E-Cl6 70 

0.000 1.000 25o 

0 .967 
---nr-

+ 

365 

25· 

-67.056 
13,560 

0.327 . ( 
03 

6.6841 

03Z4 

OOE<OO =---
0 

300i8 ~ 

D.292 I l 

0.2920 

1.5748 

#DIV!Ot mg/l. 

0.6193 

101:1s m 

389.64 mg/kg 
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Tier 2 lndustrlaUCommercial Calculations for Total Xylenes 
MotoM.ar1 • SWinsn 

ZOOZ-4411 
L)Mip ~ted 07/26116 

lnputValuu 
~ .. Bulr. OendV-:. 60.<4 

0.967 lp, • DIY SOli Bulk Density 
2.54 · Sol P1<11c:le Dens 

~V-"'etobewadln~tnMC-.> 0.967515 
FOC-(0.51-1 0.000 

l S or. Gt~~vel ~ 2..(1~ Sind :. 1.8: Slit :. 1.6: Clay• 1.7: Ot S~e Spec: Ilk 
2 6S or. Site Speeif.c 

~ r/YXJJS 

foe convenJon to gig; 

0.292 e.-~ Fll1td Soli POfDitty o.:gz 
0.327 9w ~Water F,.led Soli Poro1 0.327 

VakH>fi'OmS-21 
Value lrOm 5-20 

Top 1 meter:;O..ze: below l meter • 0.13: Gnavet- 0.05; Sand• 0.14; Sitl'~-0..24; Cby • 0.19, orCalcubriedVaiUe (521) 

T 1mders0.15 below1me!er • D.30 Gravel.-0.20 Sand•0.11 511":0,16· Cta •0 11 «Caie.lllltodVall.tle S 

0.610 ~ 
0 .0841379 1-

0 .006 foe 1_(glg}_ 

20 000 OF · Dilution Foetor 
10 135 d. Mbnnt;t Zone (ml 
3 048 d. · D•l'lh ol ,.,.,.. (m) 

0.41J 

1.STS 
10.135 

v.we from S-2-4 

Vakla fnxn S-22 
Value frOm S-25 
(..t"' 10 

0 ~3 or. Grav~. 0.25· Sand"' 0 l2· SMt .a 0 .40• C.tay z 0 36• ot C.lculated Value s2• 
SileSpcclflc: 
Surface~ • a ooo· Subtlll'face Soil • o · or ~e r:ir~e. 

If caleulahtd value f04' OF I~ hns than 20 then 20 defaUlt Is used ello cakl.llated value 11 used 
2 • ~~/ated vaiiJG 
CHplll of Soun:e (Vertkat tnk:kness o' c.ontam!MUon) 

13,56 K • Hydrall1lo ConctuctMtv (1!11yo! cmtnc• 4.30E-05 saosoocitlc 3.72£<00 """'- t.36E<Ol~ UMcoM!IorRtS,Rt9. &R26 """'lorR24 
67.056 L • Sou«:e Length Paraltel to GJl)Urldwaff!r Ftow m 
3 048 d. • Aqutfer T'htc.knes.s (m) 

0.3 J - lnfibaUon Rete fmlvn 

10.000 GW~-C~IIIierRemedlttlonObjoc.ti"'eO..nl 

0.085 11(2b'4'3 ~ & '"' fOf 520 

..... 220 
feel • 10 

Stte ~_p_e,e;lfiC m 
Site Speetfic (m) 

D3forlbls 
See Tat* K few lnpu1 ValueJ 

10 .OW • Gr0unct¥1a1er Remedi.aUon Obj.etfiVI!l Clu.J 2 
See iabfe K fat" I VllueJ 

10 BW • Body We Rclidentlal • 70 c.Jt nit , 15 f\01'1-.t.-rti ·lndt.tsltl.aUCommeteial~ 10· Con•lrudlonW~er • 10 R8CA • 70 
11• IF""'" 1 ...a,ge Adjusted SOli rnoe.srion Factor for Carcinogens 

t 111.. .o.11y w- togosUOn Rille 
110 S - Sol!llblftty!flW~er 

114 

Ruklentlal * 20QI; lndul1rill1Commorclal ~ SO: CDn1trudion Wothr • 480 

Roaidehtill• 2: lndustriaVCr:N"nmmial • 1 
Tot.! X" tieS • ~ 86 

l--,881';.a;.,1-;.;;QIC";: • Jmene of IM maen conc:ent,_lon ., I he eente:r of a ,a~_ are :~ouroe 
T - ExDOiunt lnte.tVII 

• 6S at· lndustrlaK:omme~l•l ., 85.81· l1Ndl0n Wort.er 3: 85.8l· or Table H 

790E- Relldetrlial • 9 S x1r:f: lnduttrtaVCommertlal • 7.9x 1rf· Construction Wotker .. 3.& x 1cf 

!10 
70 

ote 

T..._ • Ellpoaura Interval fOf" Malt l.tmil Volatlbutlon FactOf Equ•tlon S26 
EO.. - l&pcKute OutWDtl for M~ration lo Graundwlotar Mau-l..mlt Ei uanon $21 

....... . lnfilmiOn R.te for MlgmJon to GfOUI"'(tNater Mau·Umil Equation S"U 

0 .074 0 1• O.tfustvly tn Atr 
0...2.71 H' - He a. lAw Conltant 

9.23E..{)6 0 ,.- Olffualvfty In Watar 

30 
70 
01& 
T~al X}'k'MI • D Di'Z 
Tot.a.IX enu • D:ZS 

TDI•I Xyfen~s "'91.34 a: 10• 
25 AT~ A.'tle111QO nme for Non-Ca~l e.n5 fn es:tion E uilltioo 
25 AT-Ave1"11 Time for Non.-C.rt:l ns rn lnhal.tion E ion 

Ralde.nt~l• a· lnctuslrialiCo~ • 2.5 COnstndJOn Wor'l.er :- 0 115 
Re.aidenU.al • 30· lnduslrtai/CDm!T'Ifm .. l • 25 ConstnJctJon WOf1ter • o 115 

1 THO • ""Ta Hazan:l Quotient 
0.1 RIC. fnhll.tloo Reference ConeanlnwUon 
0.2 Rro. • Orll Re.fe,.nc.e Oc»e 

-..o .. SUibc:lwor*"., o..• 
CI'Won6c. o.2: ~ •tl.4 

ni0x8WxATx365 _ 1 X 
~~:a~•;ommo.cllllnQUU<>n t<o~.,'I~~~"'!!.'"'NO•-<OorclflOQO,.. ooonu_mtnanu 

Ul J ( nRIO~ i EJ! i ED i IR;: - U.DDODDI 'i ll 
70 
0:2 • 2. 

R 250 

on•""""'" .,.,.., noosuon R•me~~a':~~~ ~r Non-car< noge~ conu~ nanu • 

5 .1 = 10 W(IIRJDJiEFit:OiiJGI - Dbt\Wi ill 
70 
U.4 • 0,11~ 

i JIJ 

lnhalaUao Nan~rc~ Ruklen1lal, lncUCommen:Tal 

• II 
36> 
25 R 

. 
i 

36 • 
I I 

SIJ 

490 

= 

= 

638150 
ISS25 = 

29~.~ 
0.036 = 

0000 

408800 

81618 

mg/kg 

mglkg 

THC )( ATxl65 

EF • EO • ttiR1C•1Nf) S-4 = 1 
.250 

25 
25 

• ., 3115 
0.1 xtl 122.21!.23734 = 5 11~~951 = 1784·155 mg/kg 

Tier 21nhalatlon Oblecuve c1nnot exceed Soli Satunttlon Limit 

lnhllfaUon Non.Cudno~nle Canst~Ua·ton Worktr 

S-5 = ----.£"F"'•.;~;;:o;..,;~~;;;;,;:;:c16;:,:;~JVF)=:---- '"--~;.,---e:'--0~~1:.:5--,,~~.,., --36;o~!--:,-:1:-, --=a=•.""••"304=7::::06,...-------- = -,o;;!lOtl;:;•::t\::9
;:;;;5,.32;; 46.169 

RESJOENT'IAL OR COMM£RClAL 

S~= VF= 85.81 ·~(-.;;.3·"''•---'•'---''"·';.;.7E;..·;;.04;_..;•.;...._ ... , .oo=e.'--"oe'---'l'-"'-•'--o'-ooo"-'-'-1 __ = _ ... 7_7.;;.285;.;..._ 

( 2 X 0 967 X 327E-l>O ) 6.32E-l>O 
12.220..2373 

""Tlor 2 K (Xyh.!ncs) 10 
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Tier 2 lndustrlaUCommerclal Calculations for Total Xylenes 
MotoMan - Swansea 

2002~1 

Construction WoA;er 

VF= ll5.81 
3.27E..OC 3.&0€.+06 ) "' . 

01107 3.27E-04 

Equ•Uon for Dtrtvauon of Vota111tutlon Factor · ConttNCt)On Wort~er 

VF' = VI' ~ 
10 10 

~q_u.atlon for Oetivatlon of Aoo:mmt OWiusMtv 

S-10= OA= 
(O.UJ ll: 0. x H') • (O..ul x 0.) • I 

•• CP .. xi(,J+O. • (O.xH1 

= ! 1.66&02 X 0074 . 0.271 I · I O.Q242 • 
03832 

1 

( 0961 . 2 J08.4 ) + 0.33 + ( 0.292 • 
So•l Com~M Df tM M~Oan 10 GroundwaM:r Cloea.nup Ob)Kttw fCIIU 1) 

{ [ <e..•e.xH) J + ( 0.327 . 
S-17= c.. • K. • ,.. = 200 2,301>4 

00001 0.!.217 
824.9305 

6 32E-04 

82.4930 

9.23E<l6 I . 
= 3.27E-04 

0.271 ) 

>]= 
0.292 • 0.271 545.678 mg/kg 

0.967 
Tier t SoN CompoMnt of GW lngudon ObJt-ttfw: annat e.~c:eed sou &ltunUon Umtt 

T,.rvd SoU Le.uha:ta C:oneemratfoA {Crus 11 

S-18 = c.= OfxGw.., = 20.00 X 10.000 = 200 

Soii..Wa'*r P.arll'llo.n Coetnctent 

S-19= K•"' te_xf~ = 39a00 X 0006 = U084 

S-20 = 0,. = 062 ·[~l'"' ~0000 J 0.3273 

Tier 2 l-C (Xy1enos) It 



Electronic Filing: Received, Clerk's Office 3/9/2017

s-21 = e. c 

r r.fHiod PCH'Dslty 

OUutlonhctor 

S-22 = 

GW Ingestion 

S-23= 

OF= 

IT.,.I SoH Po,.,>lty 

S-24= 1J= 

" . 

lxL 

TRa9Wx""'IC365 
SF.xiR..,xEF•ED 

p, 
1 ---p.--

EatJrnaUon or MllJnQ' Zone Depth 

S-25 = d = (0 0112 X L'J" ... [ 1 ... p 

Son SatunUon Umtt 

S-29 :: s - · Po 
(IK,•pb)+9w +(H'xt.H 

Titi 2 t-C (Xylenes) 

Tier 21ndustrlaUCommercial Calculations for Total Xylenes 
Moe oMan· Swansea 

2002~4.31 

0.62 0 ,33 

1356 00041 10.135 + 
67.056 0300 

1.0E-06 70 J6S 
0,000 UlOO 250 25 

O.ll67 
-rn-

= ( 00\12 67056 

,.,.. 1·t1;rp 

0967 I • 0327 . ( 

11 

0.2920 

1.5748 

0 OE+OO 

0 
#DN/01 mg/L 

0,6193 

10135 m 

0.271 0.292 l J 300.12 mglkg 
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Tier 2 lndustriaUCommercial Calculations for Benzo[a]pyrene 
MotoMart. sw.ns .. 

2001..G431 
0712fi/16 

y__..~r5 

lnPutVa1ua 
t10k::Omb's Eka ... 80.4 Convet~e v~ 1e bll used~ alcu&.Yon •hHI ~ oge7515 USOA.Sal~l.D.1 s.oo 

OIQ.nk:-!'1')-> 0 FOC% ('0.~ e:onv.nkJn) _, 0.000 ~MIID!Ir(mp'tlgjl 0 FOC ft9'ID 10,51 ~l 0,000 foe conven1001c gig: 0.000 

0.967 p,-D<y Sail Bulk OensiiY 1.5 or: Gravel • 2.D; Sand • 1 I , Sill c t 6, Clav• 1 7, tKSite Soe.dfiC. 
2.54 :ps-Soli POflltle Dons 2.65or:Site~ 

0.292 e.-AW· Fitted Soil PorosMy 0.292 Value from S.2t Top 1 meter:% 0.2B: btlcw 1 met~r • 0. 13. GAvel: 0.05. Sand ... 0.1oi; Silt .0.2.4, Clrt • 0 ,19, orCaleuaatcdValue (S21) 

0 .327 ew ~Wiler Filled SOil Ponulry 0.327 vu.rmm>20 Tap 1 metti• 0 15 below 1 meitt, 0 30 Gra.,;eJ c 0.20 Sand~ 0 11!1 Sat •0 16 ClaY .. 0 17 M Ca.k:ula18d ValOR. [S20) 

0 .6 19 - SSL Total Soil Poroslly O.lf. Vatue lnJm &.24 0.43 or.: GtaWIJ • 025 Sand ~ 0 32 Sl• • 0 40 Ctay_• 0 36 ot C.ltulaled Vak.lo S24 
00841:175 

lifif~ 
SiteS cifiiC 

0006 foe anrcC~Jbon SUtfaee son • D 006· Subsurr.u SOD • D 002• 01 Site Speeirlc 
20.000 OF FKtor 1.575 Value fiUI'II s-22 If ulc.ullllad value for OF Is tess than 20 then 20 defaullls usod also caleutatc.d value Is u seG 
10.135 ~- no cml 10.135 Value hum $.25 2.: Of eatcul.l:ttld value 
13.58 K - Hv<lf;>UII< Conductlvl!V (rNvl) cmluca ~.lOE-0!» M e Spectnc: 372800 <mid 1.!!6E+Ql cmiYr UoecmldrorR15.R1U.&R26.·cm1Yr·lorR2• 
67,056 l· SOufUI le h Paranet to G~er Fk:IW m feet• 220 s~es Ollie m 
3.048 d,.- AquHer Thklmes-s (m} feel• 10 SbSpec:Jftt m) 

0.3 I - lnrillntlon Rzle 03 I« INneR 
540 K. . s.s ... ted t;y<lraull< Con<!uellvily See T•bte tc. forfn,pu1 VaJuN 

0,005 GW--G~IerR~ Objedive C~SI 1 M25 GW.- • Gmundwa'ler Remecbtlon ~diYe Ctus2 

0.0115 1 2b+3 - ExPonenl for S20 Su T•bte K lor tn..put Vaiues 
70 BW· Weio111 Ruldentlal z 70 carcinogenic · 15 flOO-Carclooa&nlc · Jndustriali'Commcn:lal z 70· Ccnstructlon Worller • 70 RBCA,. 10 
114 IF -Ago Adjusted SoU lngo..stion Factor fOf Can;iflo9om: ,. 
50 IR..o -S<>IIngestlon Rote RestdenUal • 200: lndustrtal/Commercial = SO, CorutrucUoo Worker • 480 

7.3 SF • ..o..l Slop FKtot • 7.3 
1 IR.,-OIIIIy W_l_., Rolo ResldenUal • 2: lnc:S\alrtaiiCommtn:lal • 1 

0.00162 S-Solt}b!II!YJn Water BeiUl • ne • 0.00162 

I.DE-116 TR· r.-c.ne.rRitk Ru.kten!lal • 1oA lndu~tieiiComrnerclal: 104• eonstruGUGn Wonter -=- 10 .. at point of noman cxPQSu~ 

70 AT,...__ 'T1mo lot e.clnogons 70 

f.10E.Q3 

URF~~r-
... hill" 

250 EF· Raskklntlal • 350· lnduslr1a11Commerc:illl • 250· Ccmstrudlon Wo"-er• 30 
25 EO- I foC Re.sldenUal • 30' tndustriaUCommerclll z 25· ConslructJon Wolter • 1 

85.81 0/C - ln'oleBe tl\6 rne.1n eone:enlta!Jon at lhe unter of • sQUate soun::t: Ru~l :=c68 51' 1Ntuslria~omtntuttal c 85,1!11 ' construetionWott.ert 115.81 

9.~ T • ~ptOsure ln1arv.l Reskfenllll • 9~xto'· lndu.striaiiConunert:lal._ 79x to• Construc:1kwl Worker• J .G .x 1<f 

0.043 0.-Dillusivilylni>Jr Benz.o(a}pyrene ,. 0.043 

H3E-G5 H' . Henr(s t..aw COI\ltant Bt:nzo{alrM~~nt a 4 63 x 10 

900E.Q6 0.,-Oitruswity In Wlter Berv.o(a)P'Yf'8no = 9 00 x to• 

1020000 K. • Org1ok Cafbon Partitkln Cooff~elont Ben:to{l)pyreno ~ 1,020,000 

lndus.tn.al/Commen::t.• lnautJon Tklr N Ob}eettve 

S-3= 
TRx8WxAT. x365 1.0E-OG 70 70 365 =~ 0.784 

Sf. k lOl:lC eF x:EO.x tRsoll 7,300 1,00E-Ce • 250 25 50 228E+OO 

Constructlon Won-.e:r Jn.gesUon Tlclr If Ob!octtve 

S-3 = 
TRx8WxAT~x36S 1.0E-D6 70 10 36~ =~ 17.01 sr. x 1tfi x EF •IRsoij 7 300 1 OOE-08 • 30 480 1 OSE-41 

lndtl•tNUComrne.rcllillnhalaUon T1er II ootecttve 

S-6= 1'R ll.ATc X 365 1 OE.Q6 70 365 =~ 8.42E+01 
LIRF x 1000xEF x EO Jl VVF 110E·03 • 1000 250 25 (II 227807 ) 3 0:1&0-1 

mglkg I 

f119/kg 

mgllcg 
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Tler 2 lndustrlai/Commercla.l Calculations for Benzo[a]pyrene 
MoCoMart PSwansu 

200~1 

Construction Worker klhllaUon Tlet a ObiKtlve 

S-7= TRxATcx36S I.OE-06 70 30~ 

URF x 1000 x EF 1. EO at 1NF' 1.10E.()3 1000 30 

RESIOENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL 

85.81 • ! 3,U 1.1-reE-10 

( 0987 
VF= 

85.81 • I 3,14 1 \4E·1D 

( 0987 
VF= 

EqueUon for Derivation of VofatiUutlon F•ctor- Construction Wor1ttt 

VF'= VF ~ 
10 10 

S-10 = OA= 
(p, • l(j .... (0. •1<1 

Soli Component at' tbe MlgraUon. to Gr<u.lnd\nter Cl••n~p Obfecttve 1Ciau.1) 

[ 
(0..•8,~"1 J 

S-17 = c,. • "- ' P" 

Target Solt luchaa. ConcentraUon (Clan 1' 

S-18 = c,... DF•GW.., 

Soii·Wo1ter Partttk>n CoefftcW:n1 

S-19 = K• = 

Wai..-.F"Nkd POfOaUy 

S-20 = 0,.= 

ner 2 t.C (SaP) 

I ,__, 

~ ·--1(.--

1.66E-02 

0.967 

2000 

1 02E<06 

0 .62. 

0.043 0000 l· { 
03532 

5916 I• 033 . I 

01 { 5916 + ( 

)( 0005 

X 0006 

·[~] ... 
540,000 

(II 

9.50E- l 1<2 X 

I UE-10 J 

J ,60E•06 l 112 • 

114E-1D J 

OD242 

0.292 ~ 

0327 

=~ Ul4E+02 mglkg 
1 40E-05 2.J7E-04 

00001 00050 
22663071 0232 

2.216-10 

0,0001 0 0003 
1.40E+06 

2..21&10 

.. 139510.9216 

""'() 

900E·06 l • 

:0 

~ 
0 

114E-10 c 
• 63E-05 00 

I< -
0.292 4 6Je..DS Q= =:;:. 

591.634 mg/kg ~ 
0961 '\';!) 

~) 

E9 
0.1 

5916 

0.3273 
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s -21 = e .= !"""""'"" ..... .., 

DUuUon Fae1or 

5-22 = OF ·= 

S-23= 

rota! Soli Porosity 

S-24 = TJ= 

. -
lxl 

SF.XIR.xEJ!xEO 

P> ·-- .. --

Estln\a.Uon of Ml:a:lng Zcme Dtpth 

Tier 2 lndustriaVCommercial Calculations for Benzo[a]pyrene 
MotoM•rt • Swanse.a 

2 002..0..31 

062 

\3 56 X 0 0841 10135 
0300 67056 

I OE-06 70 70 l65 
7 300 " 1.000 250 25 

09&1 
---nr-

!·bl! S-25 = d = (0 0112K L'l" • d.[ 1-oxp 
(K xh:dJ J 

son Sttuntton U.nlt 

S-29= c..,.=-;;-.. DK.~pb)+&w +(H'x h)) 

( O,Ol12 67056 

3.~ 

a ~.rc 5916 
0,967 

' )0~. 

•[ 1-exp 

0.967 I • 0327 

0.2920 

1.5748 

=~ 
45625 

0.0000 mg/L 

0.6193 

10.135 m 

0.292 I I 9,58 mgll<g 
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lnoutVol .... 

0 .!16< • DIY S<>ll Buft O.nob 

o.m 1&.- AirFllledSoll'c<ulit; 

10. 135109 ld - l!btlnQ Zonotml 
501W8 1 - tfotdolulie 

6< OS6 .. 
3.048 • (m) 

200 
540 

0.005 
0.085 

11<.-SO!UIIIIod 
lOW.., 

•lnWrl ·-
11121>-31 - E.oonemlor 5211 

IBW·BodvW-

FOC%111.511 

tfernl 
olcml 

olcml 

ner 2 Industrial/Commercial Calculations for Oibenz(a,h)anthracene 
MotoMan • S'tldnsaa 

~14431 

o.te Complied: 07/26116 

O.:rtl V-from S.21 TOf! I melor •0.211. boloW I moler • 0 13, GI'O\Ie1• 0.05. Sind • 0.14. s .. -a.24, Clly • 0 1i; orCIIculoledVolue (S2l) 
r • 1.15; .. 1Qw I•' 1.20! Sond • 0.18; SRI 1VorueiS201 

0.110 V ... o fmm S.24 14>"' G<Wel- 0.25: S•rod • 0 .32: Sill • 0 40: C .. v • 0 36o • '""' 

10.135 Vlluo fn>m S-25 ; or .. lcullle<l yO We 
cmtsor. • 4.30E-ll5 ;n. S.etille 1 72E+OO aMI 

feet• 10 
1001•10 
foet• 310 
feat: 6,569 

SileSpocllle(m) 
DlsiiiiCo olOoO 11\e eomedine ' 
Source- Dem<ndltuiO!IO 
lcul\:ewtthoe....o;curorlo 

1 I 

1honlonL1loiOno 
' lfirection in vertiCOl ,.no 

10bjectlvoCIIu2 

70 
111 
200 

!IF ..._ -Ago 1\djulled Solllngo,.llo•• Foclor for C.n:lnogons 
;IR, .-sow ,,_,lion fbte 

114 

Rosldentlll• 200; '50. Construcllon WO<IIet • 480 
~:s 

2 
-,nn2•• 

,sF. 

n·rmnnl [TR.T ...... C.......,.RI<k 

70 : .. r.-AvonooTlmeJorcatdnogora 

OM17 !uR•. """'""'""'lnll R~<•••.t~ 

oJiho moon 
I 9soonti00Cl - """"""'" lnte.vol 

0.0202 lo.-
6.03E-D7 
5.111600 - Dlffusivit; on Walet 

.... .,. .. Timo .... 

lndustri•UCamtM.n::l.lllng.a:Uon llet II Obfectt\le 
TR x-SWJ1 AT.;~; 365 

cons~ruc:Uon Woncer tnoestlo.1 Tk!lr II Ob)ectiYe 
iRxBW x AT, x:.l65 

S-3= 
Sl,.a10 X"EFxrRsolt 

liar 2 1-C (OBA) 

= 1.0£.00 

7.300 

= 1.0E-06 

7 300 

Rosldomlll• 2: 

Ro.ld.onllal•1D4 • 

70 

.. 
)00249 

,.,._ • • !llxlri' 

Resldonl,.l • 9 .5 >1o", 

~ 70 

• 1,00E-06 

. 70 . 1 OOE·06 

. 
• 

• 
• 

• • 0 0202 

···_ll_~_.:_!O'' 

• • 3800000 

70 

350 

70 

30 

>: I04 .Con<rruet""'W!Io!!<•rc!JD4 at_ = 

•1• 85 
79x 

. 365 =~ = 0.467 . 30 • so 3831:+00 

. 38S =~ = 17.C1 . •eo lOSE-01 

mgllcg 

mglkg 
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Tier 2 tndustriaUCommerciat Calculations for Dlbenz[a,h]anthracene 
MotoMart • Swanau 

200Z.0431 

lndYStriiVCommen::l.ll lnhllltlon Tler n ObJe;CUve 

S~ = 
lRxATe.-365 10E-116 70 36S 

URF x tOOOxE:F x £o k 1NF 1.20£..03 11100 ~so 

Con•tiVC11on Wotiter lntql~tlon Tlef II ObJective 

S-7= TRJCATe¥365 l .OE-00 70 36S 

URF x 1000 z EF x EO 11 1/VF' 1.20E·03 11100 30 

RESIOENTIA~ OR COMMERCIAl. 

VF= 
Q (3.1."D•al)1AJt1D• 

68 81 . ( llj I.SjE-11 

c (2• Ao •0~ ( 0967 

VF= 
0 (31fkOA:a:l)v.rx10 .. 

8581 . ( 3. \4 1.5<E·11 

c (21r>X0.) ( 0.967 

EquaUon tor OerfvaUon of VoliUUuUon Faetor. ConsUuctJon Worlf.et 

VF'= \JF ~ 
10 

SoU Component ol tile MIOr>[llon1o GrvuMwaoor Cleonup 01>~~ 1~1:~1)] 

S-17 = c.. • K. • Ill> 

Taroet SoU Luchlte Cancentr.~tlon (Class 1) 

S-18 = c.= OFwGW_.. 

SoU-Water Parthlon Coetnc:lent 

S-19= K,= K...xr. 

W.a.t•r.flt'-d PorttS~ 

S-20= 0,.= I ·----1(, 

TierHC(O~ 

10 

(A.•K,)•U.•(O.>H") 

1.1i6E.02 0.020 01100 ) + 

D3Sl2 

0.967 22040 I• 033 . ( 
0,1 

2000 X 0.005 

3 80E•06 X 0.006 

062 ·[.....!!1!!L]''* 640 000 

30 ,, 

(11 

9.sot-oa ) "' . 
1 S4E-11 ) 

3.60E+06 ) ... 
1 S4E·11 ) 

00242 .. 

0-292 l< 

=~ 
4 98E+07 2.5jE.j)4 

1.01 E+02 IT1!Jikg 

:~ 2. 70E+02 mg/kg 
3 81E+CS 9 C6E-05 

00001 =~ :;> 495790,2 7947 
2 ,!17E· 11 

OJXKJ1 0.11001 
3.B1E+06 

2.97E-1t 

380604.28 

S IBE-116 ) . 
1.54E-11 

fi 03E.OT 

mglkg 

01 

22040 

0,3273 
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IAir-l'lfted Porosity 
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Tier 2 lndustrlaVCommercial Calculations for Dlbenz[a,h]anthracene 
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0 .967 
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, -exp 

0.967 ) . 
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30 

-67.056 
13.560 

0.327 . ( 

03 
O.OM1 

=~ 
153300 

l .Od ~ 

0.292 l I 

0.2920 

1.57~8 

0.0000 mg/L 

0.6193 

10.135 m 

54.88 mg/kg 
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APPENDIXF 

ANALYTICAL RESULTS 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
MOTOMART 

SWAN SEA, ILLINOIS 
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--

Parameter 
Benzene 

MotoMart- Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Waste Characterization 

Location M8 
Date 4/3/2002 

Depth 2.5' 
Class I CUO 

0.03 0.531 
13.0 2.32 Ethylbenzene --- 0.72-l'" Toluene 12.0 

Total Xylenes 5~6-- s.g---
- -~ 

MTBE 0.32 
-

Acenaphthene 570.0 ND 

M10 
4/3/2002 

2.5' 

0.444 
1.74 

<0.002 
2.77 

ND 
Acenaphtylene 15.-0-- 4.1 4.4 
Anthracene 

--
12,000.0 NO- 1- NO-

Benzo(a)anthracene 0.9 NO 0.19 
Benzo(a)eyrene 0.09 NO 

-
NO 

Benzo(~)fluoranthene 0.9 - - NO----NO" 

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 
--

2,300.0 NO NO 
_!3enzo(k)fluoranthen~ --9.0 NO NO 
Chrysene 88.0 NO NO -· 
Oibenz(a,h)anthracene 0.09 NO NO 
Fluoranthene-

- -- 2.-s--- o]" -4,300.0 
Fluorene 560.0 0.17 0.27 
lndeno(1 ,2~3-cd)pyrene 0.9 NO NO 
Naphthalene 1.8 2.8 3.8 
Phenanthrene 140.0 1.9 2. 
Pyrene 2,300.0 

--
NO 

. 

1.1 
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Location 8H-1A 8H-1 8 
Date 9/6/2006 9/6/2006 

Depth 10' 12' 
Parameter Class I CUO 

Benzene 0.03 0.749 3.03 I 
Ethylbenzene --13.0 

- 0.039_ 6.01 
Toluene 12.0 ND -- ND 

Total Xylenes 5.6 0.037 16.4 
MTBE 0.3Z 
Acenaphthene 570.0 ND NO 

N O ~cenaphtylene 15.0 NO 
Anthracene _____30(!~0 - ND NO 
Benzo.@)_anthracene _= - NO --- l'fu 0.9 
Benzo{<J)Jlyrene 0.09 NO NO 
~~)fluoranthene 0.9----NO NO 
~e~gl!J}perylene 2,300.0 NO NO 

- - NO--- NO Benzo(k)fluoranthene 9.0 
C~ne 88.0 _ NO NO 
Oibenz(a.h)anthracene 0.09 NO NO -- --
Fluoranthene 4,300.0 NO ND 
Fluorene ---560~0-- NO 

_ N_O ___ 

I ndeno_i! ,2,3-cd)pyrene 0.9 NO NO 
Naphthalene 1.8 NO -~0 NO--

1~enanthrene - ,__140.0 NO 
Pyrene 2,300.0 NO NO 

BH-2A 

MotoMart- Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 1 Soil - 9.6.06 

I BH-28 BH-2C I BH-3 I 
9/6/2006 I 9/612006 9/6/2006 I 9/6/2006 I 

4' 8' 14' I 13' I 

0.025 0.096 0.001 __ 0.~~!..._ 

NO 0.274- ND NO 
NO - !----'NO - ND - NO 

O.D1_2_ No---: -r.ro~ --Nb 
--

ND ND liD __ I-- ND 

0.0~~ --;w- NO 
-

N~-
0.045 

r-
ND ND NO 

0.012 ND NO NO 
0.16 ND NO NO -
0.18 NO--

~g_ ND 
0.13 0.17- NO - ND 

NO - =-N~-o .. \-__ N~~ 
0.19 ND ND-- NO 

--ND--- NO--0.23 NO 
OA6 ND NO NO 
NO - N~--

N~-=~g_ 
0.12. N~- N~- N~-
NO ND NO 

BH-4 
9/6/2006 

14' 

NO 
NO 
NO 
NO 

ND 
NO 

-CO."> 

I 

8H-5A 
9/6/2006 

4' 

0.001 
ND 
NO 
NO 

NO 
NO 

I BH-58 I BH-SC 
J 9/6/2006 I 9/6/2006 
I 9' I 13' 

0.474 l 0.173 
--9.8H- 2.6f_ 

NO NO 
25.7 1.76-

- No- NO--

NO NO--
--

0.021 ~ NO NO--

0.0~- NO- No-- NO 
0.054 NO NO ND --
0.054 ND 

NO ___ 
NO 

0.017 --NO--!- NO ~-

;___No · --
0.023 ND NO 
o.oss---NO 

- 1- "!Q___ _ ND -
NO NO NO NO 

N-0-- Nb -
0.15 NO --NO NO NO NO 
0.0~~ NO NO NO 
0.11 NO I- 0.18--

_N~- - 0.1_~ 
~ - NO- -----o:1-:;-- NO--1-

0.01~ 0.25 ~ 0.014 
0.3 ND NO NO 0.11 NO NO NO 
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-
Parameter 

1~enzene 
Ethyl benzene 
Toluene 
~otal ~lenes __ -
MTBE 
Acenaphthene 
Acenaphtylene 

-- 1-

Anthracene 
Benzo(a)anthracene 
Benzo(a)pyrene 
Benzo(b )fluoranthene 
Benzo(g.h,i)pervlene 
Benzo~fluoranthene 
Chrysene 
Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 
Fluoranthene 
Fluorene 
lnden~1 ,2,3-cd)pyrene 
_Naphthalene 
Phenanthrene 

I= --
Pyrene 

MotoMart -Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 1 GW - 10.5.06 

Location MW-1 MW-2 
Date 10/5/2006 10/5/2006 

Class I CUO 
0.005 8.3 0.269 

0.7 3.24 0.036 

MW-3 
10/5/2006 

ND 
ND -

No---
~-

1.0 0.01 ND 
10.0 5.24 0.019 ND -
0.07 0.048 ,_ 0.037 ND 
0.42 ND ND ND - -
0.010 ND ND ND 

2.1 ND ND--- ND 
0.00013 ND - N~ - - ND 
0.00~ --;;m- I- ND ND 
0.00018-- -ND ND _ ND _ 
0.00076 ND - ND- ~g_ 
0.00017 ~ 1- ~ ND -
0.0015 ND ND ND 

1-
0.0003 NO NO NO - -

No-0.2~- ND ND -
0.28 ND ND NO 

0.00043 ND ND ND 
0.14 0.387 ND ND --0.0064 0.002 0.001 NO 
0.21 - ND - ND - Nc;--

MW-4 MW-5 
10/5/2006 10/5/2006 

2. ND 
3.83 - ND -

0.122 ND 
8.77 ND 
~ 0.032 
ND ND 

- -
NO ND 
NO - _ N__D_ 
ND ND 
ND ND 
ND ND 

- NO- . N--o--
--N5 --N~ 

-
ND NO . 

NO ND -ND _ ND - - Ni)" NO 
NO ND 
1.23 ND 

0.003 ND 
- N--o--- ND 



Electronic Filing: Received, Clerk's Office 3/9/2017

MotoMart - Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 2 Soil - 5.10.07 

Location 8H-6A 8H-68 8H-7A 8H-78 8H-8 8H-9A 8H-98 
Date 5/10/2007 5/10/2007 5/10/2007 5/10/2007 5/10/2007 5/10/2007 5/10/2007 

Depth 4-5' 6-7' 4-5' 6-7' 7-8' 3-4' 7-8' 
Parameter Class I CUO 

Benzene 0.03 ND 
Ethylbenzene 13.0-- ND 
Toluene 12.0 ND 
Total Xylenes - 5.6 ----ND 
MTBE - 0.32 
Acenaphthene 570.0 -- ND 
Acenaphtylene 15.0 ND 
Anthracen-e-- 12,000.0 NO -

- - -
Benzo@)anthracene __ _ 0.9 - -1--~D 
Benzo(a)pyrene 0.09 0.012 
Benzo(b)fluoranthene 0.9 __ 1- ND 
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 2,300.0 ND 
Benzo~)fluoranthene 9.0 ND 
Chrysene _ 88.0 N.Q__ 
Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 0.09 ND 
FiuOi:aiiu:;er;; - 4,3oo.o No 
Fluorene 560.0 ND 
lndeno(1 ,2,3-cd)pyrene 0.9 ND 
Naphthalene 1.8 -----;;;;D 
Phenanthrene 140.0 0.012 -
Pyrene 2,300.0 0.012 

ND __ ND 0.001 ND ND 
_ N~ ND ND ND ND 

ND ND- ---Nb-~D- ND 
ND ~ ND ND ND --·-----! - --

0.312 
0.195 
ND 
0.31 

-- ------= 
ND ND ND '- ND 0.41 0.11 
ND ND -~ ND 0.94 0.21 
ND-~0 - NO - ND 1.2 0.25 

0.011 ND - ND -N~- 2-:s---- 0 79 
0.024 M2 ND ND t---=2:::.:.6=---t-- 0:..:.:9;,-.:9'---' 

0.03 0.016 ND ND 2.5 0.84 
0~046 ND - ND NO 1.8 0.42-
ND ND ND-- ND 1.3 0.47 

0.021 ND N--o-------No---2.9 0.88 
ND ND N~- ND- 0.54 0.17 

0.058 M 29 ND- ND 8. 2.1 
-

ND c- ~D ND _ N_D +- 0.21 0.38 
O.Q~_L__NQ_ ~~ 1.7 0.52 
ND ND ND ND 0.23 0.2 

~ 0.025 0.18 ND - ND 5.2 0.93 -
0.032 0.18 ND ND 4.7 1.5 
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MotoMart • Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 2 Soil· 7.25.07 

Location BH-10A BH-108 BH-11A BH-118 
Date 7/25/2007 7/25/2007 7/25/2007 7/25/2007 

Depth 4' 
Parameter Class I CUO 

~nzene __ 0.03 _ 0.004 
Ethylbenzene 13.0- NO 
Toluene --1-2.0 --0"7>1"-

Total Xylenes--__ 5.~6o---l-..::0.007 _ 
MTBE 0.32 

9' 4' 8' 

0.006 NO NO -NO NO NO 
o.o-:;-:J ---r:JD- - NO 
o.OOB- - O.o1s- NO 

AcenaE_hthene - - S70.0 ND - No- - NO NO 
~ena£h!Yiene__ _ 15.0 N~- ND 0.23 NO 
Anthracene 12,000.0 -- ND NO - o-:015--NO 
Benzo(a)anthracene 0.9 NO NO 0.042 ~ 
-Benzo{a)ei'[ene __ _ 0.09 ---;;JI) NO- 0~11- - NO 
Benzo(b)fluoranthene O.g-__ NO - ND 0.087 NO 
~zolg,h,i)perylene __1,300.0 ___ ~ NO_ 0.018 _ NO 
~enzo(~)fluor~nthene _ 9.0 Nf2__ N_D _ 0.074 __ NO _ 
Chrysene __ 88.0 ND __ N_!) _ ____Q:07~_NO 
Oibenz~a,h)anthracene 0.09 ND _ _ NO ND NO 
Fluoranlhene 4,300.0 NQ_ _ ______!::!!)...:--- 0.42 ND 
Fluorene 560.0 NO NO 0.059 ND -- --
lndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene _ _!I.!_ NO _ ____!i_D _ 0.042 ND 
Naphthalene 1.8 ND NO NO NO 
Phenanthrene _ 140.0 _ @ N~- 0.4 NO 
Pyrene 2,300.0 NO NO 0.1 ND 
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Location ---
Date 

Depth 
Parameter Class I CUO 

1~enzene 0.03 
13.0 Ethylbenzene -- 12.0 Toluene - 1-Total Xylene_s __ 5.6 

MTBE- -1- _0.32 
Acenaphthene 570.0 
Acenaphtyle ne 

---
15.0 -

Anthracene 12,000.0 
Benzo(a)anthracene ,_.. 0.9 ~ 
~zo(a)pyrene - 0.09 

0.9 _Benzo(!>)lluoranlhen!_ 
_t3~nzo(9,h,~~e~lene 2,300.0 -
Benzo(k)fluoranthene 9.0 -
ch~iie ~~ 

1 

Qi.benz( a, h )anthracene 0.09 
Fluoranthene 4,300.0 __ 
Fluorene 560.0 
'tideno(1 ,2,3-cd)pyrene - 0.9 

~~thalene -- 1.8 
14o:o-- -~he_11anthrene - 2,300.0--Pyrene 

MotoMart - Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 3 Soil-11.19.08 

8H-12A I 8H-128 _I 8H-12C I 6H-13A I 8H-138 8H-14A 6H-146 BH-15A I BH-156 I 8H-16A 8H-168 
11/19/200BI11119/2008I11/19/2008I11/19/2008I11/1912008 11/1912008 11/19/2008 11/19/2008l1111912008l11/19/2008l11/19/2008 

4' I 8' I 12' I 4' I 8' 4' 8' 4' I B' I 4' I 8' 

ND ND ND NO ND ND ND_ 0.002 ND NO ND 
No - No- --

I- NO _ NiJ - - N o -r.To ~.g_ NO NO NO NO --oo _N~- NO- - - NO - -- - rlfo ND NO NO 0 .001 NO NO_ 
NO --oo- - NO ~ N5" - -

ND - - ND--
~ NO NO .~o -- --- -

- -
N~ - NO - --NO No--: - NO - - - NO NO NO NO NO ND -

NO - - - NO - - NO - - NO- - NO --rlto ---NO- NO NO NO NO ---- NO- - NO - - ND N6 ND 0.15 NO 0.02 NO NO NO 
0.02~- ~~ 

=- - ~g_ _ 0.025_ - 0.032 
-

= o.g_ NO ~0 0.063 0.051 -_0.04~-
0.033 1.5 ~_,~_g_ NO _()_,~ 0.053 0.13 ~ NO l---·_0.12~ O.os-
0.045 1.8 NO - o-:D28 -- -

0.058 0.025 .;~ _ NO _ NO 0.087 0.06 
O.o13 1.3 0.043 --NO 

0:~ - 0.036 _ O.D78_ ~ ~ 0.042 0.039 
- -- NO NO _ NO ~ - NO NO ____lj_O - NO NO NO NO NO 
_ 0.049 1.5 -o.oa- NO ----o:o39 0.051 0~ - NO --mf o.o~L_ - o.o76 

NO 0.26 NO ~ ---m> NO oo--- NO t-ND NO - NO 
0.15 2.-8- 0.23 NO - 0.09 0.11 - 0.55_ --Nb NO- - 0.23 __0.22 

- NO--
1-

NO ND NO - Nq~ - N~ NO _ NO -~ NO NO 
- o.o28 0.93 

--
0.043 

- N-0- 0":029 1cfQ61 -
0.043 --..2;024 0.073 ~~- NO 

NO- - NO - -m> No-- No-NO NO ND NO ND NO 
0.099 - 6.8 --~ 0':034 0.046 ~~- _ NO _ 1

_ ND -NO 0.1 0.12 
0-.1- 2.4 0.13" NO 0.08 0.081 - 0.~ - 0.12 0.4 NO NO 

Tl 
:0 
~ 
0 c 
(I) 

!< 
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--
Parameter 

Benzene 
Ethylbenzene 
Toluene 
Total Xylenes -
MTBE 
~naphthene 

~cenaphtylene -
Anthracene 
Benzo(a)anthracene 
~nzo(a)pyrene 
Benzo(b)fluoranthene 
Benzo(g,h,i)pe_!Yiene 
Benzo(k}fluoranthene 
Chrysene 

-

pibenz(a,h}anthracene 
Fluoranthene 
Fluorene 
lndeno(1 ,2,3-cd)pyrene 
Na hthalene 

MotoMart- Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 3 GW • 12.2.08 

Location MW-6 MW-7 
Date 12/2/2008 12/2/2008 

Class ICUO I 

0.005 ND ND 
0.7 ND ND -- - ---
1.0 ND ND 

MW-9 MW-10 
12/2/2008 12/2/2008 

ND ND 
ND ND 
ND 

-- ,_ND~ 

f---- 10.0 - NO ND ~D-JD~ ----
0.07 

1-ND 0.42- ND ND- ~D-- -- - - ND N~ 0.010 NO ND 
~ 

2.1 --r- ND ~ ND ND 
0.00013- 1-- NO -

ND ND ~ --- --
0.0002 ND ND ND ND 

0.00018-- - ND - ND ND ND 
~---~·00076 ND ND - N"D- ND 

0.00017 ND -- 1- ND ND ND-
-----~ - ND - ND -- ND 0.0015 
0.0003-- No-- ND ND ND --- - -
0.28 NO ND ND_ ND -
0.28 ND ND ND ND 

0.00043 ND ND ND ND 
---o::i4 ND ND ND ND 

Phenanthrene 
-
1- 0.006~ - ND --ND ND 1-ND _ 

Pyrene 0.21 ND --No-- - ND- ND 
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Location 
Date 

Depth 
Parameter Class I CUO 

Acenaphthene 570.0 
Acenaeh~lene 15.0 
Anthracene 12,000.0 
Benzo(a)anthracene 0.9 
Benzo(a)pyrene 0.09 
Benzo(b)fluoranthene 0.9 
Benzo(g,h,i)eerylene 2,300.0 
Benzo(k)fluoranthene 9.0 
Chl)'sene 88.0 
Oibenz(a.h)anthracene 0.09 
Fluoranthene 4,300.0 
Fluorene 560.0 
tndeno(1 ,2,3-cd)pjtrene 0.9 
Naphthalene 1.8 
Phenanthrene 140.0 
Pyrene 2,300.0 

BH-17 J 

NlotoMart • Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 3 Soil- 9.3.15 

BH-17 I BH-17 BH-18 
913/2015 I 913/2015 I 913/2015 9/3/2015 

2.5' I 7.5' 1 12.5. 2.5 

NO NO NO ND 
NO ND ND 0.004 

0.006 ND ND 0.012 
0.047 NO ND 0.123 
0.065 NO ND 0.141 
0.109 ND ND 0.195 
0.038 ND ND 0.064 
0.039 ND ND 0.067 
0.068 ND ND 0.116 
0.01 NO NO 0.018 

0.096 ND ND 0.159 
ND ND ND ND 

0.034 NO ND 0.068 
ND ND ND ND 

0.036 ND ND 0.055 
0.086 ND ND 0.146 

BH-18 BH-18 BH-19 J BH-19 I BH-19 
9/3/2015 9/3/2015 913/2015 I 9/3/2015 I 913/2015 

7.5' 12.5' 2.5' I 7.5' I 12.5' 

ND ND NO 0.265 ND 
NO 0.006 NO 0.183 ND 
ND 0.012 0.006 0.913 ND 
NO 0.061 0.031 2.85 0.027 
NO 0.063 0.034 2.41 0.026 
ND 0.093 0.046 2.86 0.044 
ND 0.033 O.Q17 0.955 0.019 
ND 0.035 0.015 1.18 0.017 
ND 0.069 0.036 2.28 0.032 
ND 0.009 0.004 0.223 ND 
NO 0.139 0.056 6.95 0.067 
ND 0.004 ND 0.32 NO 
ND 0.031 0.014 0.858 0.016 
ND ND 0.005 0.138 NO 
ND 0.071 0.039 4.42 0.026 
ND 0.117 0.06 5.49 0.056 
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-
-

MotoMart- Swansea 
Site Assessment Data 

Stage 3 GW- 9.3.15 

Location 
Date 

Parameter Class ICUO 
Benzene 0.005 
Ethyjbenzene 0.7--

- 1.0 

MW-8 
9/3/2015 

ND 
ND --;;;m-

~~~7~~1enes - I' 10.0 - ND -

Acenaphthene - 0.42 --- No--
Acenaphtylen~ 

tc· - --

1-~! ND 
Anthracene 2.1 ND 
~zo(a)anthracene 0.000~ 0.00014 
~nzo(a)pyrene _ 0.0002 0.00011 - 0~00018 ~b)fluoranthene 0.00019 
_§enzo(g,h,i)perylene ----o.ooo1s 0.00010 
Benzo(k)fluoranthene 0.00017 ND 
Chrysene 0.0015 0.00014 
Dibenz(a.h)anthracene 

- 0.0003-- ND 
Fluoranthene 0.28 0.00022 
fluorene _ 0.28 ND -lndeno(1 ,2,3-cd)pyrene 0.00043 ND 
~phthalene 0.14 ND -
~~~enn~nthrene 0.0064 0.00012 

0.21 -- 0.00017 
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APPENDIX G 

OFF-SITE AFFIDAVITS 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
MOTOMART 

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS 
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In ac:cordance with the 415 ILCS 5/57-57.17, I do solemnly swear that every effort bas been 
attempted in order to gain access to properties west of the Mota, Inc. facility in Swansea, 
Illinois, owned by Medstar Ambulance, Inc., Sparta, illinois. The Mota, Inc. facilJity property 
is lot::ated at 1324 North Illinois Street, Swansea, Illinois and has been assigned Incident 
numlber 2002-0431. The Medstar Ambulance, Inc. properties are identified as 1209 North 
Illinois Street, and a parking lot located north of 1209 North Illinois in Swansea, Illinois 
located adjacent to the west side of Dlinois Street. The access requests have been completed 
for tl!J.e purposes of site investigation and remediation of the Mote, Inc. property. The 
following is the attempt that has been made and the neighboring property owner's rc~sponse to 
the attempt. 

• A request for access was dated January 25, 2008 and sent via Certified Mail #7006 2760 
0000 6494 4991 to Medstar Ambulance. The letter was received January 26, 2008. This 
letter included the language required by 35 lllinois Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• A second request for access was dated March 25, 2008 and sent via Certified Mail #7006 
2760 0000 6494 4328 to Medstar Ambulance. The letter was received March 28, 2008. 
This letter included the language required by 35lllinois Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• A third request for access was dated January 14, 2009 and sent via Certified MaUl #7008 
0500 0001 2051 2540 to Medstar Ambulance. The letter was received January 16, 2009. 
This letter included the language required by 35 Illinois Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• To date, no response to the requests has been received. 

Copies of the requests and proof of delivery are attached. 

Owner/Operatoc Rob WhittinJ?;ton Title: Agent 

Signatture: tit~- A/);~ Date: 7 !t./;~ 
/ 

I I~ -:fu.)Lf Subseribed and sworn to before me the (g\:: day of • 2016 

'~Ju~~ [) 1 lQJL Official Seal 
Helen MODell 

s Notary Public, State of llliMoir; 

(Notary Public) St. ClAir 00Ytlty 
Oommlnlon Ex lret!i JYnll' 20, ~017 
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PIREVIOUSLY ~~ 11/lED 

In accordance with the 415 ILCS 5/57-57.17, I do solemnly swear that every effort has been 
attempted in order to gain acces:s to the property west of the Moto, Inc. facility in Swansea, 
lllinois, owned by Ms. Karen Rloussel, Waddell, Arizona. The Moto, Inc. facility property is 
located at 1324 North illinois Street, Swansea, illinois and has been assigned Incident number 
2002-0431. The Roussel property is identified 1309 North Illinois Street, Swansea, lllinois 
located adjacent to the west side of lllinois Street. The access requests have been completed 
for the purposes of site investigation and remediation of the Moto, Inc. property. The 
following is the attempt that has been made and the neighboring property owner's response to 
the attempt. 

• A request for access was dated January 14, 2009 and sent via Certified Mail #7008 0500 
0001 2051 2557 to Karen Roussel. This letter included the language required by 35lllinois 
Administrative Code 742.350 b). 

• To date, no response to the request has been received. 

Copies of the requests and proof of delivery are attached. 

Owner/Operator: Rob Whittington Title: _ ___;A:..=ge:::..:n::.:t __ _ 

Signature: ~ ('/ M;ptk- Date: //.f. /;6 
{; 

Subscribed and sworn to before me the Ln-f.J.. 

(Notary Publilc) 

- / 

day of :S u_/ lf '2016 

Seal: 

I 

Official Seal 
Helen M ODell 

Notary Public, State of Illinois 
. S~. Clair County 

M CommtasJon El! irn Jun& 20, ~011 . 
..,...._,-.....t"'-.,0 
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In accordance with the 415 ILCS 5/57 ~57 .17, I do solemnly swear that every effort has been 
attempted in order to gain access to the property west of the Moto, Inc. facility in Swansea, 
Illinois, owned by Mr. Dave Wuebbels, Belleville, Illinois. The Moto, Inc. facility property is 
located at 1324 North Illinois Street, Swansea, lllinois and has been assigned Incident number 
2002-0431. The Wuebbels property is identified 1307 North 11linois Street, Swansea, lllinois 
located adjacent to the west side of lllinois Street. The atccess requests have been completed 
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
0001 2051 2533 to Dave Wuebbels. The letter was received January 15, 2009. This letter 
included the language required by 35 Illinois Administrative Code 742.350 b), 

• To date, no response to the request has been received. 

Copies of the requests and proof of delivery are attached. 

Title: Agent _ _.;;...;:..c;z..;=.;. __ _ 

Signature: ate: 7/6. /J·b 
--~~~,~~--------

'2016 

:Seal: Official Seal 
Helen MODell 

Notary Public/ Stilt~ Of llllnolt; 
91, CIA r Oeumy 

My Oommla;lon e.llpJroll Juno 20, 201'1 
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LEAKING UST TECHNICAL REVIEW NOTES 
Reviewed by: Shirlene South File Heading: LPC # 1631405021 Co. St. Clair 
Date Revi1ewed: 3/8/07 Swansea/ Mota Mart, Inc 
Re-reviewed: 7 I 1012012 
Reviewed: 7/1/2016 
Re-Reviewed: 11/18/16 
lEMA Date: 04/03/02 

LUST Tec:hnical File 

PRP: Mot:oMart, Inc 

Leaking UST Incident No. 20020431 
H. Oil 
Under: 734 

Attn: ~;eph Hooten Rob Whittington Env Mang 
P.O. Box 122 

Consultant: CWM YSl 
Attn: Vince Smith 
701 s. grand Ave 

Belleville, llJ 62222 
618/233-6754 

Documen1t(s) Reviewed: 
SIP I AND SIP II 

General Site Information: 
Site subject to: Title 734 

IEMA date(s) 4/03/02 
UST Syste:m removed (YIN): Y 
Encountened Groundwater (YIN): Y 

Free Product (YIN): N 

Current/Past Land Use: Gas Station 
E & J: mir~nd low lncome a' of 7/25/J..!J.__ 
Size & Product of Tanks: Release 
Tank 1- 560 g Heating Oil y 
Tank 2 10,.000 GASOLINE N 
Tank 3 -8,1000 GASOLINE N 
Tank 4 -4,1000 GASOLINE N 
Tank 5 -6,1000 DIESEL N 

Springfield, ll 62704 
217-522-8001 

Reimbursement (YIN/unknown): Y 
OSFM Fac. ID #: «OSFM ID» 
SWAP mapping and evaluation completion 
date: 3/09/2007 
Site placement correct in SWAP (Y /N): Y 
38.526140/-89.983725 

MTBE > 40 ppb (Y N):<<Date» 
VI: Y 7125/16 RTK-Y 7/26/16 
Cause Removed Eligibility 
Tank leak y y 

N N/A 
N N/A 
N N/A 
N N/A 

':'al i~!>uancc uf C J\.P ~ ill need lu fini~h filing out I:. & J Reporting furm 
Review Notes: 
From Dl ware 
7Jl6/02-45 day report 

560 g ROil/ fuel?? 
Rennoved 5 yds3 of contaminated fill and native soil 
Small amount of odorous water emptied in to tank pit after removal of tank 
Did not recharge, 
45 day reports states gw-Y, 

sheen-Y, 
F.P.N 

8/8/02-Letter from EPA 
7/28/06-Elec:t to Proceed 

IEPA·DIVISION OF RECORDS MANAGEMENt 

RELE~1S-\BI E 

DEC 2 8 2016 

REVIEWER: EMI 
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3/8/07- Summary of Sip Stage I and Budget 

• GEI collected 2 soil samples , one beneath the tank and one from the claysoil beneath the 
clay seam 

• USI advanced 5 SB 'sand 5 MW's, Results exceeded TACO Tl c.u.obj's for BTEX and 
PNA's, and GW Class! obj's 

• The site is primarily silty day 
• Hy. Con.(K) -4.030 X10'5 em/sec 
• No community wells with iJ[J 2500' radius and no privte wells locted w/in 200' , no 

regulated recharge areas or well head protection w/in setback 

• 
Proposal for obtaining Teir 2 obj ' s 

HY/ cond (K) 
Soil bulk density(Pb) 
Soil panicle(Ps) 
Moisture Content(w) 
Organic carbon content(foc) 

Four additional soil borings(6-, 7 ,8, and 9). Two of these sb 's will be to the nw and ne of the 
tank bold along those property llines. Along with two contingency boring to the south if 
needed during stage ill 

Will install monitoring wells during Stage ill investigation for off-site, since they are already 
at property boudaries. 

Budgets 

Stage T 

Drilling and Monitming Well costs Form: 
Analytical Costs Form: 
Remediation and Disposal Costs Form: 
UST Removal and abandonment Costs Form: 
Paving, Demolition and Well Abandonment Costs Form: 
Consulting Fees Form: 
Total Proposed Budget 
L.P.E./L.P.G. Certification: 

(Proposed) (Actual) 

$4,615.00 $-
$4, 100.39 $-

$1,541.88 $-
$- $-
$- $-
$3,932.58 $-
$14,189.85 $-
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Joseph Kelly 
11/30/07 

IEPA Recommendation/Comments: 

Requesting information for the following: 

• Actual source of the contamination and of the MTBE > 40 ppb* 
• Tank and pipe tightness results since 2002. 

Response Due: 
6/13/07 
* sent required email to D. Clay and HAA 
SLS:sls\ ---------·---------------------........ ---------~--
Document(s) Reviewed: 
SIP Stage ll & ill 

Review Notes: 
Sll~6 sb's were advanced, BH~9 and BH~Il were found to exceed objectives. 

5 mw's were advanced 

Proposed: 
Sill- 6 add'l borings BH12-17 to define off-site 

9(3) add'! mw.s to define gw contamination, BH12-l7, will be converted from sb'ing to mw. 
will be off-site and one will be to the south 

Stage ll (Proposed) (Actual) 

Drilling and Monitoring Well costs Form: $2,775.33 $ 
Analytical Costs Form: $5.001.83 $ 
Remediation and Disposal Costs Form: $770.94 $ 
UST Removal and abandonment Costs Form: $- $ 
Paving, Demolition and Well Abandonment Costs Form: $- $ 
Consulting Fees Form: $12,697.65 $ 
Total Proposed Budget $21,245.75 $ 

L.P.E./L.P.G. Certification: 
Joseph Kelly 
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ll/30/07 

IEPA Recommendation/Comments: 

Response Due: 
2/13/08 
* sent required email to D. Clay and HAA 
SLS:sls\ ------
Document(s) Reviewed: 7/3/2012 
SIP stage ill CW3M is the new c!Lmsultant 

Review Notes: 
Soil- has been delineated for btex but not pna's. Proposing three soil borings to the easL 
Access has been denied to the west. The plume goes off-site into the neighboring property and 
into the street (RT 159) to tbe west. 

BH-1, 2, 3, 5, 9,Ll ,12 &16-9 & 12 had PNA's 

GW-propose only sampling mw-8 as have not been able to get a sample as yet. 

MW-1, 2, 4, BH-9, 11, 12, & 14, o:ff site 

7/9112-Spoke to Vince Smith to clarify the reports statement of completing previously approved 
work pertaining to GW they only plan on sampling mw-8, 

The report is only 100 pages in to with 10 pages being the budget so 
The plan is narrowed down to 100 pages, 3x's ($50-$20=$30) 
The budget to 10 pages, 3x's_($20-$17=$3) 
And the reimbursement generously 30 pages, 3x's.($50-$35=$15) 
In total $72 adjusted in the consu1ltant material costs 

L.P.E./L.P.G. Certification: 
Vince Smith 

IEPA Recommendation/Commelilts: 
Approve plan with modified budget 
Response Due: 
8114/2012 

sls\ 



Electronic Filing: Received, Clerk's Office 3/9/2017

Page 5 PREVIOUSLY IIV~GED 

Document Reviewed: Stage 3 SIP and budget amendment 
Dated: 10/15 
Received: 10/27115 

Last report received in July of 2012 
Watch budget for rates used 

Review Notes: 
Two soiJ borings are being proposed to delineate extent of soil contamination off-site for 

PNA's 
The 3 PNA's are BaA, BaP, BbF and Di(a,h)BA theses are locate on the south and east 
properties, due to the poorly marked map( failed to show bldg. to the south or grassy area to the 
south) it is difficult to say exactly where they plan to place them. The area is gravel per google 
satellite map. Cannot see where it would be coming from off-site 

And a gw sample from mw-8 which after two dry attempts and I event where it had exceedences. 
( that barely qualified) 

Gw map is drawn incorrectly plume goes out into HWY 159 there is a clean mw at the edge of 
the property, there are multiple borings and mw marked incorrectly or plume not drawn and one 
bh-5 needs to be delineated so I called Vince Smith and ctsked him to hal'e it corrected and send 
me new maps. Some say it is n.or sampled. bur are rather IW exceedences. And BH-19needs ro 
be delineated and they askfor 2 more borings to delineate and yet map is marked clean??? 
Putting to the side and hoping 1 get a map quickly.] 
1-27116--Have recei1•ed new maps (all of them redone) 

The two proposed boring are for delineating BH-19(it is decided that the contamination at BH-
19 is unrelated ro this incident and is from another source, but another boringlmw is required to 
delineate BH-5/mw-4 on the west property boundary which has soil exceedance, (yet the gw 
plume is drawn our in to the street, because of the soil/gw e.xceedance) 
The plan will require modification of an additional SB/mw in the street (?) in order to delineate 
BH-5/mw-4 

Soil ft. B E T X BaP DiE Nap In BbF 
Bh-1 10 .749 #1 
BH-1 12 3.03 16.4 
BH-2 4 0.23 
BH-2 8 .096 
BH-3 13 0.463 -
BH-5 9 .474 25.7 
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.54 1.7 
.312 .99 .17 

.11 
l.S .2 .93 1.8 

BH-9 3-4 
Bh-9 7-8 
BH-11 4 
BH-12 8 
BH-19 7.5 2.41 .223 BaA 2.85( OUT OF ROOM) 

GW B E T X NAP 
Mw-1 8.3 3.24 .387 STAGE#! 
Mw-2 .269 
Mw-4 2 3.83 1.23 
MW-5? 
MW-6 STAGE#3 

BaA BaP DiB Nap ln Bbf 

MW-8 .00014 .0001 

Drilling and Monitoring_ Costs $1,486.97 $.00 $.00 
Analytical costs $1 ,454.82 $602.25 $852.57 
Remediation and Disp_osal Costs $.00 $.00 $.00 
Ust Removal and Abandonment Costs $0.00 $.00 $.00 
Paving, Demo, and Well Abandonment $0.00 $.00 $.00 
Consulting Personnel Costs Form $14,520.87 $.00 $.00 
Consulting Materials Costs Form $695.00 $.00 $.00 

Total Budget $18,777.23 $.00 $18,174.98 
Subtracted the costs for 3 of the PNA soil cost sand encore sample kits 
6X 188.36 $1,130.16; 3x 188.36=$ 565.08 
6x 12.39 $74.34: 3 x 12.39=$37.17 
There will be additional cost formw which will be received in an amended report 
The costs for the drilling was subpart Hand would not c/WIZ(ge. 

L.P.E./L.P.G. Certification: 
Vince Smith 

IEPA Recommendation/Comments: 
Modify plan to delineate east of BH-5 I mw-4 which has soil and gw exceedences. 
No boring is needed south ofBH-19 and can go ahead and check mw-8(gw) 
Budget is modified 

Response Due: 
2/24/16-120 days 
Completed: 2-29-16 

#2 

#3 
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Document Reviewed: SICR 7/5/16 
Dated: April1 2016 
Received: April4, 2016 

-State that they will be including a soil gas sample in the CAP, unless the IEPA decides 
otherwise. 

Review Notes: 

Hy C(K)=I.30 X 10"5 

Soil bulk Density(pb)=60.41b/ft3 or (0.967crnlsec) 
Soil particle Density (ps)=2.54 g/cm3 
Moisture content(w)=2.86 
FOC=0.0058g/g 
Classification=Loamy sand 

Soil : BZ, XY, BaP, DiBenzo A,h 
GW: BZ, ETBZ, Nap 

Soil is delineated for 0-5 feet 
Soil is(?) delineated 5-10 feet, BH-19 has PNA's and is not delineated and BH-5 has BTEX at 
same depth and not delineated. Apparently access was denied 
Requested copied of the access denial s and Vince smith emailed me copies of these and are 
attached to the front cover of the report. 
Gw is Class I 
There is no GW ordinance in effect, there is a limited gw ordinance just north east of the site. 
There is likely contamination in the roadway(HWY 159) but all the properties to the west have 
denied access. 
The contamination south of the site is likely from the copper smelt as it is higher in concentration 
to that found on the property. 

This went to the managers meeting and it was decided to question whether or not one boring 
could be put in the ROW, appears it cannot also requested modeling which Y. Smith provided. 

Pertaining to the budget: 
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There are costs such as PID, measuring wheel, camera, bailers and oversight/technical 
review that presently would be either eliminated as indirect costs or reduced to more 
reasonable rates. Since the proposed budgets were approved the costs stand as submitted. 

total USI CWM CWM 
Part I Pan ol'part Part3 

ISICR 
Drill in!! and Monitoring Costs $4,911.28 $3,536.20 $ 1,375.08 $1,375.08 
Analytical costs $6,093.09 $4,100.65 $ 1,992.44 $1,992.44 
Remediation and Disposal Costs $.00 $ $.00 $.00 
Ust Removal and Abandonment Costs $0.00 $.00 $.00 $.00 
Pavine., Demo, and Well Abandonment $0.00 $.00 $.00 $.00 
Consulting Personnel Costs Form $41.825.73 $13,451.43 $9.456.42 *( **) $11,509.30 
Consulting Materials Costs Form $1,445.35 $739.35 $49.50 $4 18.00 

Total Budget $54,487.19 $21,827.63 $15,083.08 $15,294.82 

2*105.87=211.74 
exceeds the original approved budget of 8 hours for projects cost review/ approval, 
reimbursement package review for Sr_ PM 
(**) 9456.42-211.74=$9,244.68 is approved 

CWM 
Part 4 

$.00 
$.00 
$.00 
$.00 
$.00 
$7,620.32 
$238.50 

$7,858.82 
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C\\l!i\·t C()\lP,\NY. J<>;('. 
70 I \\.SOt; T il GRAM> 
SI'RI~GF!Elb, IL. &2704 

(217) !;2!-11001 

I\IOTOI\1-\In 
SWA'iSF.A. TtLJXOIS 
1:-iCIJ)E:'\'T II 21102-UH I 
ST. Ct. \IR COU:\TI· 

~100f.J.F.O 

CO'(T A~ll:'o!ATIO;\' 'lAP 

7/27/16 the paragraph below pertains to the figures OOllA and 00118 
Shirlene, 

SC;\LE: 1"=100' 
OATf.: 7/27/1~ 

REVISED OATF.: 
DltAWIM,: ODII 

ORAW:'Ii B'r: \ CS 
RF.VISF:IliiY: 

RF.\'I~:W BY: Cl R 
.\1 oln :\lartd" J: 

;\100ELEO 
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Sorry for the confusion. Since the groundwater contamination modeling controlled, for the locations where there 
was both soil and water contamination, on1ly the groundwater radii were used previously, and as I said before, 
groundwater at MW-1 defines the ultimate: modeled boundary. On the attached drawings the dark lines are the 
modeled soil (drawing OOllA) or water (d1rawing 00116) contamination, while the thin lines are the opposite 
(modeled groundwater on OOllA, modelecl soil on 00116). Each of the dark lines has an identifier for the sample 
location, and the radius of the circle. 

C\\0:-J CO:'\J rA:SY. ll'"C. 
7U l ~.SOl Til Cll ·\.'>U 

SI'RI'Gl·'H; LO. 11- 627114 
(Z 17) ~Zl-8001 

\IU rO\IAK'J' 
SWA1\SI ' ~, li .I.I ... OIS 
"C' IOF.I\ r II !UUl...fi4J I 
S 'l , C l AIK COL' n 

"0111 1.1.11 ~1)11 

c O'TA"INo'\110" M,\1' 

!>C:,\LI::: 1" - IOU' 
n ,\ n ·: 71!7/lt, 

Hf:\'ll>F.I> [),\IE: 
J)K \ \Hl'G: 0011" 

llR,\ \\•l' JlY: Vf,.., 
RE,ISE!ltl\ : 

RI.\Jt:\\ flY: C I J( 

:\luto:\bu r.dM'J: 
'\IOOF.T.F.!I SOil. 
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' "~I< ( J'\U'.~'' .I'-< . 
.,0 1 "' ·""-ttl 'u ( .. it ... ,u 

"-I''II " • !JLL!L>. H H7"~ 
(211) $.!J!~4H-I 

'\If) t.{t \ t ,.\ A J 
... \\. A .. J'\"'- · \ .• U t I 'OJt.., 
I'( hH ' 1 H ~uu:: H·''l 
' ' (.I ... 1ft <.. 01' . , 

L.P.E.!L.P.G. Certification: 
Vince Smith 

sc. ,._ • . ! · ;·- t ti'U' 
n ... n :-; 1- lb 

tH \..1,11) U '\t 1.; 
UR'\\'\I"ro,(,.; UU IIIt 

IEPA Recommendation/Comments: approve with budget modifications. 
Response Due: 
8/2/16-120 days 
Completed: 7-26-16 

sls\ 

llll \ \ \ "' IH ; "\ ~.~ 
M..E \ l ... IU!t' J 

Rr'- n \\ t:tY: t I ff 
'luro \1 AO-l1LIIIU. 

\ftUJ'F"t li!J t:" 
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9-22-16 spoke to Vince smith about the CAP not be submitted due to Val sending a email about 
VN lettei·s. He said client has report and it should be in-house in the next week or so. 

Document Reviewed: CAP/Budge:t 
Dated: 10/3/16 
Received: 10/llll6 

Reviewed 12/--/16 
Review Notes: 
In this cap is a vapor intmsion investigation and some resampJJng of on-site and off-site 
contamination that would require remediation or additional institutional controls. 

The former heating oil was where the new bldg. is now. 
Hy C(K)=l.30 X 10"5 now 4.30 X 10-5 em/sec?? why different 
Soil bulk Density(pb)=60.4lb/ft3 or (0.967cm/sec) 
Soil particle Density (ps)=2.54 g/cm3 
Moisture content(w)=2.86 
FOC=0.0058g/g 
Classification=Loamy sand 

Soil: BZ, XY, BaP, DiBenzo A,h 
GW: BZ, ETBZ, Nap 

Corrective Action Summary 

Soil-Tier I extends off site to the east and west. BH-9 will require additional remediation, and 
the off-site soil contamination to the east will require additional remediation. 

GW- MW-1, MW-2, MW-4 and MW-8 tier I has been exceeded. The plume covers much of the 
same area as the soil plume, extendjng sUghtly further to the east. It is proposed that a gw 
ordinance be used, effectively eliminating the migration to gw pathway. 

Vapor intrusion pathway has not been investigated previously and in proposed in this CAP. 

S 'I d' f b'' 01 reme ta ton o IJ s 
Parameter TACO Tier 1-CUO mWI<~ Tier 2 CUO's 
Benzene 0.03 3.21 
Ethyl benzene 13.0 389.64 
Toluene 12.0 371.29 
MTBE 5.6 46.17 
BaA, BaP, BbF, DiB(ah)A and J[][deno replaced by background values. 
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Parameter BH-9 TACO Tier 1-CUO Tier 1 CUO's 
industriaVcommerdal Construction mg/kg 

B(a) anthracene 2.5 7.84 18 
Benzo(a)pyrene 2.6 0.784 17.01 
Benzo(b) fluoranthene 2.5 8 170 
Dibenzop(a,h)anthracene 0.54 0.467 17.01 
Inden(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 1.7 8 170 

Check to see if Tier 2 yalues were les~ or equal to tier 1 
Soil need to be addressed on three parceJs the site itself, off-site to the east and the ROW (RT. 
159). From report 

Where is map of where proposed boring I mw are going and is VI necessary? Received one bu 
email on 12/8/16 from V. smith 
Proposing: 
734 B d u .get 

Drilfing and Monitoring Costs 
Analytical costs 
Remediation and Disposal Costs 
Ust Removal and Abandonment Costs 
Paving, Demo, and Well Abandonment 
Consulting Personnel Costs Form 
Consulting Materials Costs Form 

Total Budget 

ropose 0 I I tna p d I M d.fied IF I 

$2,033.75 $.00 
$1,661.72 $.00 
$0.00 $.00 
$0.00 $.00 
$2,191.00 $.00 
$38,571.22 $23,240.42 
$1,492.50 $901.50 

$45,950.19 $26.332.92 

$2,033.75 
$1,661.72 
$.00 
$.00 
$2,191.00 
$ 15,330.80 
$591.00 

$19,617.27 

Except for measuring wheel; sr pm reimbursement which were cut, other costs can be submitted 
in a plan that is consistent to the plan with documentation. As stated before these were discussed 
with vince smith. So work related to the proposed boring including vi are approved. Some could 
not be separated 
therefore are delayed in approval with next submittal 
L.P.E./L.P.G. Certification: 
Vince Smith 

IEPA Recommendation/Comments: 

Response Due: 
2/28/17-120 days 
Completed: 1-14-16 

sls\ 
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12/9/16- spoke to Vince smith about teh three proposed boring and having possible excavation 
or ELUC proposed for corrective action, that first the Agency would need to see the results of the 
borings before approving a CAP. Those should be in the next su mittal, whiCh shoulooe ve!'y 
similar to the one in-house. 
Allowing drilling, analytical, and field costs at this time. the MW abandonment, consultant 

costs TACO, CACR, ELUC, HAA are all cut at this time. The soil gas sample costs need to be 
broken down for approval from agency. 

Inc# 20020431 - 3/08/2007 
MotoMart, Inc. Swansea I St. Clair Co. 
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South, Shirlene 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Shirlene, 

vi nee@ cwmcompany.com 
Thursday, December 08, 2016 9:19AM 
South, Shirlene 
[External] Motomart - Swansea 2002·0431 CAP 
Mota Swansea.· Proposed SB map.pdf 

As you requested, we have prepared and attached a proposed soil boring map showing the two proposed 
soil boring locations and the vapor intrusion sampling well location. If you need any other information, let 
us know. 

Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, Inc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, IL 62704 
217-522-8001 
Fax 217· 522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany.com 
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INCIDENT# lOOl-0431 
ST. CLAIR COUNTY 

"PROPOSED SOIL 
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South, Shirlene 

From: vince @cwmcompany.com 
Sent: 
To: 

Thursday, December 08, 2016 1 0:02AM 
South, Shirlene 

Subject: RE: [External] Motomart- Swansea 2002-0431 CAP 

Shirlene, 

Yes, it is labeled "Proposed vapor well", located between the station building and the canopy. 

Vince 

-------- Original Message --------
Subject: RE: [External] Motomart- Swansea 2002-0431 CAP 
From: "South, Shirlene" <Shirlene.South@IIIinois.gov> 
Date: Thu, December 08, 2016 8:25am 
To: "vince@cwmcompany.com" <vince@cwmcompany.com> 

Is the VI boring on here? 

From: vince@cwmcompany.com fmailto:vince@cwmcompany.com] 
Sent: Thursday, December 08, 2016 9:19AM 
To: South, Shirlene 
SUbject: [External] Motomart- Swansea 2002-0431 CAP 

Shirlene, 

As you requested, we have prepared and attached a proposed SI::Jil boring map showing the two 
proposed soil boring locations and the vapor intrusion sampling well location. If you need any 
other information, let us know. 

Vince E. Smith, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental Engineer 
CWM Company, I nc. 
701 W. South Grand Ave. 
Springfield, IL 62704 
217- 522-8001 
Fax 217-522-8009 
vince@cwmcompany.com 

State of Illinois · CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information contained in this communication is confidential, 
may be attorney-client privileged or attorney work product, may constitute inside information or internal 
deliberative staff communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee. Unauthorized use, 
disclosure or copying of this communication or any part thereof is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you 
have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and destroy 
this communication and all copies thereof. including all attachments. Receipt by an unintended recipient does 
not waive attorney-client privilege. attorney work product privilege. or any other exemption from disclosure. 

1 
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1631405021/ MotoMart-Swansea 

Swansea/ St. Clair 

1324 N. Ill inois St (RT 159) 

inc# 2002-0431 

LEAKING UST TECH FILE 

Drilling and Monitoring Well Cost 

ANALYTICAL 

Remediation and Disposal 

ust removal and abandonment 

paving, Demolition and Well 

abandonment 

Consultant Cost 

CONSULTANT'S MATERIALS 

TOTAL 

DEDUCTIONS- EXPLANATION 

(AMOUNT DEDUCTED)- REASON 

Paving ,Demo and MW abandonment 

CAP 

DATE 

REVIEWER 

REQUESTED 

$2,033.75 

$1,661.72 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$2,191.00 

$38,571.22 

$1,492.50 

[ $45,950.191 

hours*rate 

December 9, 2016 

sis 

DEDUCTED APPROVED 

$0.00 $2,033.75 

$0.00 $1,661.72 

$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 

$2,191.00 $0.00 

$23,240.42 $15,330.80 

$901.50 $591.00 

I $26,332.921 $19,617.27 

deduction reason 

MW-1-MW-10 only those not removed by· an possible excavation 

personnel costs 
CCAP 
sR. PM.-report coor/techoversight/compliancE 15*125.15 

sr. PE-report review and cert .3*162.70 

engiii-CA design/ reprt dev/IEPA corres .36*125.15 

SR DRAfT -draft/edit/CAD 16*75.08 

SR Admin Asst-reprt compl/assembly/distru 2*56.32 

total 

TACO 
englll- gwmodeling/plume delination :8*125.15 

eng Ill-tier 2 calc/dev cuo's 12*125.15 

sr PM-tier 2 eval/calc/modeling review/ 4*125.15 

assessment total 

6307,52 

3003.6 

750.9 3604.34 

488.1 1501.8 

4,505.40 

450.48 6532.98 

112.64 20950.24 --------------------------6307.52 

1001.2 paying for one time only 

1,501.80 

500.6 

3,003.60 

P:\2002043112-9-16 BUDGET SHEffi.xlsx 



Electronic Filing: Received, Clerk's Office 3/9/2017

CCAP-Budget 
SR. PM-budget compliance/tech oversigh16*125.15 

englll-budget calc/desigh 18*125.15 

SR PE-budger review/cert 3*162.70 

sr admin asst-budget compl/assembly/distru 2*56.32 

total 

CA-PAY 
SR PE- budget review/cert(CAP,Drilling 6*162.70 

closure submittal 

SR ACCT Techreim prep(cap/DR/CI submit 30*68.83 

Sr Ad Asst-RE compliation, Ass/Dist/0 4*56.32 

Sr PM-RE comp/tech oversight() 12*125 . .15 

total 

CACR 
Sr PM-reprt coor/tech oversight jcompliance8*125.15 

sr PE-reprt review and cert 4*162.70 

SR Admin Asst-reprt compl/assembly/distru 2*56.32 
ENG Ill-report prep/development 36*125.15 

sr admin asst-NFR recording/corres 

w/village 

2*56.32 

sR PM-NFR review/IEPA correspondence 2*125.15 

total 

ELUC 

ENGIII-gw ord dev/meeting/notification 

SR PM- gw ord negotiations/notific. 

Sr Ad asst-gw ord corres/ notifications 

sR PM-HAA I DOT review/ COOR 

ENGII1-HAA I DOT Oev/ corres 

SR Draft/CAD-HAA drawing 

Sr, ad Asst- HAA compliation/ Ass Dist 

total 

CCA-field 
SR PM-field prep, sched/arrang/coor 

ENGIII-dr/VI sampland prep 

ENG 11-Drilling/VI sampling 

SR AD Asst- arangfor Invest, utilitie~ 

julie scheduling 

ENG 111-borlogs, 51 Doc, Analytical entry 

sR PM-reviewtn. Eval analytical/sl Doc 

, field data 

24~U5.15 

6~125.15 

2*56.32 
6*125.15 

24"'125.15 

4*125.15 

16"'125.15 

14"106.38 

2*56.32 

4*125.15 

2•125.15 

Sr PM-off-site 51 coer 6*125.15 

ENG Ill-off-site notifation/result reports 4*125.15 
sR Ad asst-off-site PO drilling notif and re l 2''56.32 

total CCA 

CAP 

750.9 

2,252.70 

488.1 

112.64 

3604.34 

976.2 

2,064.90 

225.28 

1,501.80 **'cut per BB 17/31/30 

3,791.98 

1,001.20 

650.8 

112.64 

4,505.40 

112.64 **was off by 100.00 

2290.18 

rose called and I had the 100.00 

250.3 

6,632.98 

3,003.60 

750 9 

112.64 

750.9 

3,003.60 

300.32 

112.64 

8,034.60 

500.6 

2,002.40 

1.489.32 

112.64 

500.6 

250.3 

750.9 

500.6 

112.64 

6220 

P:\2002043112-9-16 BUDGET SHEffi.KISK 
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CAP 

Material Costs 

CCAP 
CCAP-copies of plan and report/draft plan 150* .15 90 

postage-report/forms/ draft/dist 3*6 18 

copiesbudget -budget I draft 300*.15 45 

postage-rbudget dist 3.6 18 

total 171 
CACR 

copies -completion report dist/ draft B00*.15 120 

postge-copies report dist '3*6 18 

Material costs cont. 

CA-PAY cut 

ca-copies of RE c;aim 1200*.15 180 
postage 15*6 36 

NFR recording 158*1 68 

total 284 

CACR 

postage -NFR 4*6 24 

NFR·recordin/submittai/IEPA corres :150*.15 22.5 

total 46.5 

ELUC 
copies- ordmca submitttJI;/notiflca 150~.15 22.5 

2 round trip from spfld-VI/ Drillling 400"'0.S4(not 0.65) -44 

water level 28"'1 28 

gloves 1*16 16 
PID 1*148 148 

vi shroud, OH, canisrer/regualror 1*200 200 cut,17/30/31 

CCA Field 

measuring wheel-vi 1*18 18 CUT,31 

postage-HAA 8*6 48 

copies-HAA corres/exec/dist 250".15 375 

postage-CCA - filed off-site po dril/s results2'·6 12 

copies-oft-site'"' 100*.15 15 

total 501 

gree11 is for iten1s bemg addressed 111 this n=port and budget. Does not signify whether they are being approved 

drilling 

analytical 

eluc, HAA 

field costs, minus shroud{$200), measuring wheel 

make sure Rob Miluer is contacted and is at the site and the time is noted for the three wells. 

P:\ 20020431 12·9·16 BUDGET SHEETS.JCisx 

262 

639.5 
901.5 

200 

18 

262 

171 
138 

284 

46.5 

639.5 
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Environmental Justice (EJ) Area Reporting Form for leaking UST Program Sites 

Reviewed by: Shirlene South 
Date Reviewed: 12-14-16 

Re: LPC #1631405021- St. Clair County 
Swansea/ MotoMart Inc. 

1324 North Illinois Street ( Rt 159} 
Incident No. 20020431 
LUST Technical File 

For a site located in an EJ area, as defined on the EJ GIS map, the information listed below will be 
provided by the Leaking UST Section's assigned project manager to the EJ Officer as soon as possible 
upon receipt of all Corrective Action Plans (CAPs) and Completion Reports (CACRs). For subsequent 
amended CAPs, if no substantial change in remedial effort is proposed then an additional memo is not 
necessary. 

Request for Review of Leaking UST Program Site Located in EJ Area 

Item 

Project M~nager Name 
BOL 10# 

Site Name 

Site Address (Street Address) 

Site City 

Site County 

UST Owner or Operator ~ame 

UST Owner or Operator Contact 

UST Owner or Operator Phone 

Description of Facility: Previous 

Use of Site and Current/Proposed 
Use of Site 

Proposed Corrective Action 

Land Use after Corrective Action 

_!ngineere~arrie!s Used 

Institutional Controls Used 

Contaminants of Concern 

Complete field below for known items at time of request 
(leave blank if unknown) 

Shirlene South 
1631405021 
MotoMrut-Swansea 
1324 North illinois Street(RT. 159) 
Swansea 
St. Clair 
MotoMart - -
Rob Whittington 
618/233-6754 
Gas station 

possible excavation 
Gas station 

HAA, groundwater ordinance, ELUC , Ind/ Com land use 

Is there off-site contamination as a yes 
result of the release? 

Was site referred to CEG for Right- no 
to-Know notifications? 

If yes, have notifications been sent, 

and who is the assigned 
Community Relations Coordinat_?r? 

Other Relevant Information: 
Enforcement, citizen complaint, public 
interest, etc. 

Date CAP/CACR Received 

Date Request for Review Sent to EJ 

Officer 

10/3/16 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONM ENTAL P ROTECTION AGENCY 

1 ·• 1 1\• t <...;;,-, • ,\ · ;·. J:~ l!.r.~ r, 1> o. 1:1'', 1') .•;r., ~· •t '- ;; a .. .!:•, h .. U:\i.'l' (,~·;t;~·<J.\;'6 • (.~ 17) 7tl ~-·3 JG"' 

BRucE RI\UNER, Covnu·.o=. ALEC MESSINA. ,'\.:Tir~c DIRECWI.; 

PREVIOUSLY IMAGED 

217/524-3300 

DEC 2 0 2016 

Mota Inc. 
Attn: Rob Whittington, Environmental Manager 
P.O. Box 122 
Belleville, Illinois 62222 

Re: LPC #1631405021 - St. Clair County 
Swansea/ MotoMart-Swansea 
1324 North lllinois (Route 159) 
Leaking UST Incident No. 20020431 
Leaking UST Technical File 

Dear Mr. Whittington 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

7014 2120 0 002 3292 209 4 

JAN 11 2017 

REVIEWER: JKS 

The Ulinois Environmental Protection Agency (Illinois EPA) has reviewed the Corrective Action 
Plan (plan) submitted for the above-referenced incident. This plan, dated October 3, 2016 was 
received by the Illinois EPA on October 11, 2016. Citations in this letter are from the 
Environmental Protection Act (4 15 ILCS 5) (Act) and T itle 35 of the Illinois Administrative 
Code (35 lil. Adm. Code). 

The Illinois EPA requires modification of the plan; therefore, the plan is conditionally approved 
with the Illinois EPA's modifications. The following modifications are necessary, in addition to 
those provisions already outlined in the plan, to demonstrate compliance with Title XVI of the 
Act (Sections 57.7(b)(2) and 57.7(c) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734.505(b) and 
734.51 O(a)): 

W ithout results from the proposed soil boring (resampling for BH-2 and BH-9), monitoring well 
installation and soil vapor investigation in the area of MW -1, the Ulinois EPA cannot approve the 
plan as subntitted. Subsequently, the lilinois EPA only approves the two soil borings (collection 
and analysis of additional soil samples), installation of one groundwater monitoring well and 
performance of a soil vapor investigation. 

Please note that all activities associated with the remediation of this release proposed in the plan 
must be executed in accordance with all applicable regulatory and statutory requirements, 
including compliance with the proper permits. 

4302 N. Main St., Rotkfard,ll 61103 II I 5) 987·7760 
595 S.St01<>, Elgto~ ll 60123[1147) 608-3131 
2125 S. Flrn St., Champaign, ll e 1820 ·217) 278.5800 
2009 Mall ST, CoUiosvHio,ll62234 {6181346-5120 

9! 11 Hart1tOn St., Do• PI ainu~ IL 60016 {847) 294-4000 
412 SW Wc>~hlnglonSt., Svlto 0, Po arlo, ll 61602 (.109) 67 1."J022 
2J09 W. Moln Sr., Sullo 11 6, Morton, ll62959 16 181993-7200 
100 W . Randolph, Sullo 10..300, Chicago, IL 60601 
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In addition, the budget is modified pursuant to Sections 57.7(b)(3) and 57.7(c) of the Act and 35 
Ill. Adm. Code 734.505(b) and 734.510(b). Based on the modifications listed in Section 2 of 
Attachment A, the amounts listed in Section 1 of Attachment A have been approved. Please note 
that the costs must be incurred in aGcordance with the approved plan. Be aware that the amount 
of payment from the Fund may be limited by Sections 57.7(c), 57.8(d), 57.8(e), and 57.8(g) of 
the Act, as well as 35 lll. Adm. Code 734.630 and 734.655. 

If the owner or operator agrees with the Illinois EPA's modifications, submittal of an amended 
plan and/or budget, if applicable, is not required (Section 57. 7(c) of the Act). 

NOTE: Pursuant to Section 57 .8(a)(5) of the Act, if payment from the Fund will be sought for 
any additional costs that may be incurred as a result of the Illinois EPA's modifications, an 

am·end'ed'J?udget must be submitted. Amended plans and/or budgets must be submitted and 
approved prior to the issuance of a No Further Remediation (NFR) Letter. Costs associared with 
a plan or budget that have not been approved prior to the issuance of an NFR Letter will not be 
paid [rom the Fund. 

Further, pursuant to 35 Ill. Adrn. Code 734.145, it is required that the lllinois EPA be 
notified of field activities prior to the date the field activities take place. This notice must 
include a description of the field activities to be conducted; the name of the person 
conducting the activities; and the date, time, and place the activities will be conducted. 
This notification of field activities may be done by telephone, facsimile, or electr-onic mail­
and must be provided at least two weeks prior to the scheduled field activities. 

Besides providing at least two weeks} notice to Leaking UST Section staff in Springfield, 
notification must be provided to Rob Mileur either bv telephone at (618) 993-7223 or by e-mail 
at Robert.Mi/eur@illinois.gov. 

Pursuant to Sections 57.7(b)(5) and 57 .12(c) and (d) of the Act and 35 Til. Adm. Code 734.100 
and 734.125, the illinois EPA requires that a Corrective Action Completion Report that achieves 
compliance with applicable remediation objectives be submitted within 30 days after completion 
of the plan to: 

illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Bureau of Land - #24 
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Section 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 19276 
Springfield, IL 62794-9276 

Please submit all correspondence in duplicate and include theRe: block shown at the beginning 
of this letter. 
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If within four years after the approval of this plan, compliance with the applicable remediation 
objectives has not been achieved andl a Corrective Action Completion Report has not been 
submitted, the Illinois EPA requires lthe submission of a status report pursuant to Section 
57.7(b)(6) of the Act. 

An underground storage tank system owner or operator may appeal this decision to the lllinois 
Pollution Control Board. Appeal rights are attached. 

If you have any questions or need fmther assistance, please contact Shirlene South at 217/558-
0347. 

Sincerely, 

Stephen A. Colantino 
Acting Unit Manager 
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Section 
Division of Remediation Management 
Bureau of Land 

SAC:sls:SS\ 

Attachment: Attachment A 

c: vince@cwmcompany.com (eletctronic copy), 

BOL File 
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Appeal Rights 

An underground storage tank owner or operator may appeal this final decision to the Illinois 
Pollution Control Board pursuant to Sections 40 and 57 ,7(c)(4) of the Act by filing a petition for 
a hearing within 35 days after the date of issuance of the final decision. However, the 35-day 
period may be extended for a period of time not to exceed 90 days by written notice from the 
owner or operator and the IlJinois EPA within the initial 35-day appeal period. If the-owner or 
operator wishes to receive a 90-day extension, a written request that includes a statement of the 
date the final decision was received, along with a copy of this decision, must be sent to the 
lllinois EPA as soon as possible. 

For infowmation regarding the filing of an appeal, please contact: 

John Therriault, Assistant Clerk 
Illinois Pollution Control Board 
James R. Thompson Center 
100 West Randolph, Suite 11-500 
Chicago, IL 6060 I 
312/814-3620 

For infowmation regarding the filing of an extension, please contact: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Legal Counsel 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 19276 
Springfield, IL 62794-9276 
2:17/782-5544 
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Attachment A 

Re: LPC # J 63140502 t -St. Clair County 
Swansea/ MotoMan-Swansea 
1324 North Illinois (Route !59) 
Leaking UST Incident No. 20020431 
Leaking UST Technical File 

SECTION 1 

As a result of illinois EPA's modification(s) in Section 2 of this Attachment A, the following 
amounts ar1e approved: 

$2,033.75 
$1,661.72 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$15,330.81 
$609.00 

Drilling and Monitoring Well Costs 
Analytical Costs 
Remediation and Disposal Costs 
UST Removal and Abandonment Costs 
Paving, Demolition, and Well Abandonment Costs 
Consulting Personnel Costs 
Consultant's Materials Costs 

Handling charges will be determined at the time a billing package is reviewed by the IJJinois 
EPA. The amount of allowable handling charges will be determined in accordance with Section 
57.l(a) of t!he Environmental Protection Act (Act) and 35 lilinois Administrative Code (35 Ill. 
Adm. Code) 734.635. 

SECTION 2 

l. $2,191.00 for costs for well abandonment, which exceed the minimum requirements 
necessary to comply with the Act. Costs associated with site investigation and corrective 
action activities and associated materials or services exceeding the minimum 
requirements necessary to comply with the Act are not eligible for payment from the 
Fund pursuant to Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act and 35 Ul. Adm. Code 734.630(o). 

The:se costs may be included in an amended corrective action plan and be reviewed at 
that time 

2. $21,,738.62 for costs for personnel that are inconsistent with the associated technilcal plan. 
One of the overall goals of the financial review js to assure that costs associated with 
materials, activities, and services are consistent with the associated technical plan. Such 
costs are ineligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act 
and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734.510(b). 

These costs may be included in an amended corrective action plan and be review1ed at 
that time. 
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3. $1,501.80 for costs for personnel. which exceed the minimum requtrements necessary to 
comply with the Act. Costs associated with site investigation and corrective action 
activities and associated material-. or ~ervice" exceeding the minimum requirements 
necessary to comply with the Act are not eligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to 
Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734.630(o). 

Senior Project Manager costs for reimbursement compliance/technicaJ oversight(CAP, 
Drilling, Closure submittals) 

In addition, for costs for corrective action -pay which lack supporting documentation . 
Such costs are ineligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
734.630(cc). Since there is no supporting documentation of costs, the lllinois EPA 
cannot determine that costs will not be used for activities in excess of those necessary to 
meet the minimum requiremen ts of Title XVI of the Act. Therefore, such costs are not 
approved pursuant to Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act because they may be used for site 
investigation or corrective action activities in excess of those required to meet the 
minimum requirements of Title XVI of the Acl. 

Also, for site investigation or corrective action costs for corrective action-pay that are not 
reasonable as submitted. Such costs are ineligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to 
Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act and 35 III. Adm. Code 734.630(dd). 

4. $639.50 for costs for material cost that are inconsistent with the associated technical plan. 
One of the overall goals of the financial review is to assure that costs associated with 
materials, activities, and services are consistent with the associated technical plan. Such 
costs are ineligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act 
and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734.5 JO(b). 

These costs may be included in an amended corrective action plan and be reviewed at 
that time. 

S. $200.00 for costs for material costs that are inconsistent with the associated technical 
plan. One of the overall goals of the financial review is to assure that costs associated 
with materials1 activities, and services are consistent with the associated technical plan. 
Such costs are ineligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to Section 57.7(c)(3) of the 
Act and 35lll. Adm. Code 734.510(b). 

The Illinois EPA is requesting documentation for the shroud construction and operation 
materials, rental of gas canister and regulator prior to approving these costs as was 
discussed in the phone conversation on December 9, 2016 with the project manager. 

6. $ I 8 for indirect corrective action costs for a measuring wheel charged as direct costs. 
Such costs are jneligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to 35 111. Adm. Code 
734.630(v). In addition, such costs are not approved pursuant to 35 Ill, Adm. Code 
734.630(dd) and Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act because they are not reasonable 
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7. $44.00 for costs for mileage, which lack supporting documentation. Such costs are 
ineligible for payment from the Fund pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 734.630(cc). Since 
there is no supporting documentation of costs. the lllinois EPA cannot determine that 
costs will not be used for activities in excess of those necessary to meet the minimum 
requirements of Title XV( of the Acl. Therefore, c;uch costs are not approved pursuant to 
Section 57.7(c)(3) of the Act becattse they may be used for site investigation or corrective 
action activities in excess of those required to meet the minimum requirements of Title 
XVI of the Act. 

sls:SS\ 

The current federal rate for mileage is $0.54, therefore the cost as been adjusted ro reflect 
this in the budget 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I, the undersigned, on affirmation state the following: 

That I have served the attached CERTIFICATE OF RECORD ON APPEAL and the 
accompanying documents comprising the entire record of the Respondent’s decision 

by e-mail upon Patrick D. Shaw at the e-mail address of pdshaw1law@gmail.com and 

upon Hearing Officer Carol Webb at the e-mail address of Carol.Webb@Illinois.gov. 

 

That my e-mail address is Scott.Sievers@Illinois.gov. 

 

That the number of pages in the e-mail transmission is two-hundred and thirty-nine (239). 

 

That the e-mail transmission took place before 5:00 p.m. on the date of March 9, 2017. 

 

/s/Scott B. Sievers                              

March 9, 2017 
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